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IFRS
( )
12 31 12 31
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
776,002 725,121 675,654 641,681 668,733
389,269 369,324 361,691 360,675 360,905
313,361 298,723 287,451 279,106 277,720
312,224 297,676 286,049 278,249 277,131
1,137 1,047 1,402 857 589
30,109,436 27,699,540 26,087,043 24,137,265 22,209,780
356,407 356,407 356,407 356,407 356,407
2,676,186 2,330,001 2,127,491 1,969,751 1,789,474
6.93 6.30 5.73 5.29 4.80
@
( )
0.86 0.82 0.79 0.77 0.77
( )
694,521 724,133 770,864 239,221 1,131,764
(875,967) (731,745) (489,258) (468,932) (666,961)
112,874 (35,924) 81,835 (50,786)| (36,732)
1,450,413 1,509,523 1,520,330 1,189,368 1,441,298
() 445,106 449,296 453,048 461,749 466,346
( )(2) 1.08 1.11 1.14 1.20 1.30
13.05 13.79 14.35 15.24 17.10
( )(3)
( )(4) 16.77 15.39 15.14 14.61 15.22
() 8.94 8.47 8.21 8.21 8.11
@
@
(3) CSRC
(2010 )
O]

52/474




1984

1984 1993

1994

2005 10 28

2006 10 27

1994

53/474

2004

EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)

2019 12 31
(
@ 828,209 34.71
)
— 31.14
@
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
1CBC 100
44,188
2019 1CBC
122,446 17,189 1,066
ICBC International Holdings Limited ICBC
1CBC 100
4,882
2019
8,521 1,378
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
1CBC
1CBC 589
2019 1CBC 43,860

374
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423
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ICBC

833

ICBC
12.29

Limited I1CBC
ICBC

8,426

Company ICBC
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1CBC

3.71

2019
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PT. Bank ICBC Indonesia 1CBC

98.61

1CBC 3,806
31.08

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad

ICBC

548

2019

1,237 285

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Thai) Public Company
20,132 97.86

2019 1CBC

1,049 73.56

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Almaty) Joint Stock

8,933

2019
68 12.02
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (New Zealand) Limited
ICBC
ICBC
234 1CBC
2019 1CBC 1,534 173
15.45
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Europe) S.A. ICBC
1CBC 437
I1CBC
2019 1CBC 6,200 700
25.69
ICBC (London) PLC ICBC
1CBC 200
2019 1CBC 2,262 445
19.54
ICBC Standard Bank PLC ICBC
1CBC 1,083 60%
ICBC
2019
1CBC 24,765 1,179

243
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (USA) NA

ICBC JSC
JsC 961
1CBC
1CBC
3,093
1CBC
1CBC
1CBC
ICBC USA
2019

23.01

Bank ICBC (Joint Stock Company)

206

ICBC Turkey Bank Anonim Sirketi

ICBC Austria Bank GmbH
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2019
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Financial Services LLC
ICBCFS
ICBCFS 50.00
2019 ICBCFS 23,983
91 13.32
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Canada) ICBC
I1CBC 208.00
80 I1CBC
2019
ICBC 1,509 270
21.06
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Mexico S.A. ICBC
I1CBC 1,597
I1CBC
2019 I1CBC 260
56 17.67
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Brasil) S.A. I1CBC
I1CBC 202
I1CBC
2019

1CBC 552 54
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ICBC Peru Bank I1CBC
ICBC 120
I1CBC
2019 1CBC
526 106 5.09
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Argentina) S.A.
1CBC
1CBC 1,345
80 ICBC
2019 1CBC 3,622 490
217
ICBC Credit Suisse Asset Management Co., Ltd. ICBC
1CBC 200
80
CSRC QDI
RQFII
1CBC
1CBC 1CBC
2019
1CBC 143 500
1.29

11,042 9,341 1,536
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ICBC Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. ICBC
1CBC 180
2019 1CBC 270,981
36,206 3,436
ICBC-AXA Assurance Co., Ltd. ICBC
1CBC 12,505 60
1CBC
CBIRC
2019 ICBC 160,762 14,825
1,258
ICBC Financial Asset Investment Co., Ltd. I1CBC
1CBC 120
2019
1CBC
ICBC Capital Management Co., Ltd.
2019 1CBC 129,567
14,027 563
ICBC Wealth Management Co., Ltd. ICBC
1CBC 160
CBIRC
2019
1CBC 16,397 16,330

330
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Standard Bank Group Limited
20.06
2019
2,275,589 209,484
30,696
25 26
2019 445,106 4,190 6,710
16,013
12.1 41.9 14.4 5.9
5.7 20.0 8.2
56.6 26.0 9.2

1CBC
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2019
1,963,393 32,146,145 51(a)
O)
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) )
16,066,266 95.86 14,733,891 95.56
454,866 2.71 450,930 2.92
240,187 1.43 235,084 1.52
97,864 0.58 108,821 0.70
113,965 0.68 90,383 0.59
28,358 0.17 35,880 0.23
16,761,319 100.00 15,419,905 100.00
2019
1,332,375 16,066,266 95.86
3,936 454,866
2.71  0.21 5,103 240,187
1.43  0.09
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) () ) ()
9,955,821 59.4 200,722 2.02 9,418,894 61.0 194,696 2.07
421,874 2.5 623 0.15 364,437 2.4 268 0.07
6,383,624 38.1 38,842 0.61 5,636,574 36.6 40,120 0.71
16,761,319 100.0 240,187 1.43 15,419,905 100.0 235,084 1.52
6,026 200,722
2.02  0.05 1,278 38,842

0.61 0.10
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( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) () ) ()
2,131,892 24.9 17,466 0.82 1,894,425  23.8 15,016 0.79
e L5154 169 T3.0T6 512 1385463 174 79790 576
1,187,749 13.9 11,664 0.8 1,048,548  13.2 6,279 0.60
934,414  10.9 1,900 0.20 919,768  11.5 2,113 0.23
910,504  10.6 4,122 0.45 770,221 9.7 1,718 0.22
e SB095 TS5 10,036 171 592,031 7.4 9,823 166
................................ 406,582 AT A2 10458808t 8L 52,588 | (10.78,
................................ 252,104 .29 .53 2 2% 2B Rs
208,560 2.4 3,214 1.54 170,315 2.1 1,461 0.86
e A8 207,305 439 185,313 2.3 3,066 214
88,448 1.0 7,163 8.10 95,530 1.2 4,951 5.18
................................ T e T
8,559,942  100.0 192,003 2.24 7,973,527  100.0 186,416 2.34
2019
237,467
12.5
140,283
18.2
139,201 13.3
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( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) () ) ()
774,578 4.6 20,725 2.68 723,302 4.7 20,036 2.77
3,124,793  18.6 26,024 0.83 2,823,603  18.4 24,195 0.86
2,341,370  14.0 23,629 1.00 2,072,857  13.4 30,480 1.47
2,739,585  16.3 49,037 1.79 2,524,307  16.4 54,489 2.16
2,445,215  14.7 35,638 1.46 2,202,221  14.3 36,401 1.65
2,901,010  17.8 40,164 1.34 2,735,901  17.7 35,572 1.30
798,691 4.8 35,044 4.50 759,140 4.9 25,186 3.32
1,546,077 9.2 9,026 0.58 1,578,574  10.2 8,725 0.55
16,761,319  100.0 240,187 1.43 15,419,905  100.0 235,084 1.52
( )
FVOCI
2019 1 1 158,084 81,406 173,241 412,731 108 0 248 446
................................ T
(6.868)  12.775  (5.907) - ) 5 - -
(959)  (28.755)  29.714 - - ) 5 -
47.364  28.014  86.944  162.322 34 ) (248) (214)

- (1) (97,562) (97,653) - - - -

- ~ 3,302 3,302 - - - -
P P D— s
2019 12 31 215,316 78,494 184,688 478,498 227 - 5 232

23
2019 478,730
478,498 Fvocl)
232
199.32 2019 23.56 2.86
0.18
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( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
D) )
7,884,774 47.1 7,056,026 45.8
1,427,911 8.5 1,256,196 8.1
2,078,921 12.4 2,157,264 14.0
5,369,713 32.0 4,950,419 32.1
16,761,319 100.0 15,419,905 100.0
( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
(@) (@)
83,084 0.50 91,153 0.59
89,625 0.53 83,846 0.54
66,848 0.40 63,010 0.41
28,659 0.17 31,923 0.21
268,216 1.60 269,932 1.75

1,716 268,216
6,353 185,132
108 7,319
192 1,335
10
3.1 12.6 10 394,406
2.4 2019 10
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( )
A 98,100 0.6
B 59,861 0.5
C 48,651 0.3
D 44,365 0.3
E 36,129 0.2
F 22,496 0.1
G 21,997 0.1
H 21,493 0.1
1 20,836 0.1
J 20,478 0.1

394,406 2.4

IT
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ICBC Wealth Management Co., Ltd.
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2019
Global Market Risk Management(GMRM)
VaR
GMRM
VaR 51(c)(i) VaR
2019
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
372,187 53,453 327,917 47,729
(176,923) (25,410) (157,647) (22,946)
195,264 28,043 170,270 24,783

51(c) (i)
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2019
( )
100 100

(6,951) (29,652) 6,951 32,313

(979) (6,416) 979 6,420

(3,630) (43) 3,630 43

1,553 (1,144) (1,553) 1,147

(10,007) (37,255) 10,007 39,923

51(d)
2019 380,694
145,156
612,898

2,130,209
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( )
2019 12 31 (1,593,786) 1,448,630 220,030 1,910,179
2018 12 31 (133,897) (391,953) 1,058,350 1,684,757
51(d)
2019
IT
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2019 43.0 85.9
71.6

2019
0.84 127.54
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Doooooo
2019 0.71
121.89
2019
( )
2019 12 31

(13,148,663) 372,311 (701,406) (715,546) 3,498,846 10,069,296 3,317,165 2,692,003

2018 1231 (12,057,413) 432,760 (674,702)(1,884,799) 4,412,116 8,793,935 3,322,986 2,344,883

51 b

IT
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2019
2019
2019 14,638 “4.9 ) 313,361
1.08 13.05
7.0 776,002 6.0 606,926
10.8 169,076 7.0 207,776
25.79 10.7 178,957 6.4
78,428

( )

2019 2018 () ()

606,926 572,518 34,408 6.0

169,076 152,603 16,473 10.8

776,002 725,121 50,881 7.0

207,776 194,203 13,573 7.0

178,957 161,594 17,363 10.7

389,269 369,324 19,945 5.4

2,520 3,089 (569) (18.4)

391,789 372,413 19,376 5.2

78,428 73,690 4,738 6.4

313,361 298,723 14,638 4.9

312,224 297,676 14,548 4.9

1,137 1,047 90 8.6
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2019 34,408 (6.0 ) 606,926
78.2 90,060 9.5 ) 1,038,154
55,652 (14.8 ) 431,228
2.08 2.24
( )
2019 2018
) )
15,897,368 707,400 4.45 14,600,596 640,031 4.38
6,141,181 221,184 3.60 5,483,420 200,157 3.65
@ 2,979,028 46,185 1.55 3,155,407 49,246 1.56
@ 2,029,662 63,385 3.12 1,628,820 58,660 3.60
27,047,239 1,038,154 3.84 24,868,243 948,094 3.81
2,802,458 2,211,163
(461,121) (387,490)
29,388,576 26,691,916
20,847,046 331,066 1.59 19,317,269 280,212 1.45
® 2,658,948 63,296 2.38 2,668,229 64,991 2.44
1,035,442 36,866 3.56 845,347 30,373 3.59
24,541,436 431,228 1.76 22,830,845 375,576 1.65
2,085,315 1,729,863
26,626,751 24,560,708
606,926 572,518
2.08 2.16
2.24 2.30
C )
C )
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( )
2019 2018
C )
)
57,149 10,220 67,369
23,769 (2,742) 21,027
(2,745) (316) (3,061)
12,543 (7,818) 4,725
90,716 (656) 90,060
23,810 27,044 50,854
(94) (1,601) (1,695)
6,747 (254) 6,493
30,463 25,189 55,652
60,253 (25,845) 34,408
67,369 (10.5 ) 707,400
( )
2019 2018
(@D) (D)
3,271,880 129,265 3.95 3,334,008 135,948 4.08
12,625,488 578,135 4.58 11,266,588 504,083 4.47
15,897,368 707,400 4.45 14,600,596 640,031 4.38
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( )
2019 2018
(D) )
8,570,732 383,600 4.48 8,019,984 356,176 4.44
372,127 12,415 3.34 312,438 14,493 4.64
5,534,278 254,216 4.59 4,891,776 214,317 4.38
1,420,231 57,169 4.03 1,376,398 55,045 4.00
15,897,368 707,400 4.45 14,600,596 640,031 4.38
21,027 (10.5 ) 221,184
3,061 6.2 ) 46,185
4,725 (8.1 ) 63,385
50,854 (18.1 ) 331,066

14
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( )
2019 2018
(D) )
4,506,960 106,580 2.36 4,286,839 98,625 2.30
6,417,558 49,299 0.77 5,983,490 42,012 0.70
10,924,518 155,879 1.43 10,270,329 140,637 1.37
5,175,228 139,533 2.70 4,488,128 108,872 2.43
3,866,882 15,399 0.40 3,719,278 14,105 0.38
9,042,110 154,932 1.71 8,207,406 122,977 1.50
880,418 20,255 2.30 839,534 16,598 1.98
20,847,046 331,066 1.59 19,317,269 280,212 1.45
1,695 (2.6 ) 63,296
6,493 (21.4 ) 36,866
1,100 Tier
cD
35
2019 16,473 (10.8 ) 169,076
21.8 7.1 155,600

84.6 13,476
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OoOoOoOoOodno
( )
2019 2018 () ()
47,054 43,719 3,335 7.6
37,321 31,785 5,536 17.4
27,337 27,596 (259) 0.9)
23,860 24,002 142) (0.6)
14,024 14,582 (558) (3.8)
10,836 8,861 1,975 22.3
7,004 7,045 (41) (0.6)
1,590 1,959 (369) (18.8)
2,615 2,798 (183) (6.5)
171,641 162,347 9,294 5.7
16,041 17,046 (1,005) (5.9)
155,600 145,301 10,299 7.1
2019
10,299 7.1 ) 155,600
3,335
5,536
1,975
( )
2019 2018 ) ()
8,447 2,846 5,601 196.8
(3,682) 1,345 (5.,027) (373.8)
8,711 3,111 5,600 180.0
13,476 7,302 6,174 84.6
6,174 (84.6 ) 13,476
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( )

2019 2018 () )

126,950 121,074 5,876 4.9

27,713 27,088 625 2.3

7,677 7,781 (104) (1.3)

2,315 2,339 (24) (1.0)

43,121 35,921 7,200 20.0

207,776 194,203 13,573 7.0

13,573 (7.0 ) 207,776
2019 17,363 (10.7 ) 178,957
14,761 (10.0 ) 162,108
23 14
4,738 6.4 ) 78,428
20.02
15

(MOVA)
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( )
2019 2018
D) )
776,002 100.0 725,121 100.0
388,408 50.1 353,859 48.8
286,569 36.9 273,490 37.7
96,422 12.4 92,484 12.8
4,603 0.6 5,288 0.7
391,789 100.0 372,413 100.0
159,368 40.7 151,714 40.7
152,919 39.0 144,284 38.7
78,191 20.0 75,828 20.4
1,311 0.3 587 0.2
50
( )
2019 2018
(@) )
776,002 100.0 725,121 100.0
100,925 13.0 86,107 11.9
128,672 16.6 126,151 17.4
100,667 13.0 94,375 13.0
143,891 18.5 136,799 18.7
94,915 12.2 88,192 12.2
115,747 14.9 108,518 15.0
29,216 3.8 27,958 3.9
61,969 8.0 57,021 7.9
391,789 100.0 372,413 100.0
40,088 10.2 38,506 10.3
82,336 21.0 77,056 20.7
61,250 15.6 52,131 14.0
70,099 17.9 75,483 20.3
42,270 10.8 36,027 9.7
58,635 15.0 54,409 14.6
2,743 0.7 5,562 1.5
34,368 8.8 33,239 -9
50
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2019
2019 2,409,896 (8.7 ) 30,109,436
( ) 1,341,414 8.7 )
16,761,319 892,425 (13.2 ) 7,647,117
54,660 (1.6 ) 3,317,916
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) ()
16,761,319 - 15,419,905 -
43,731 - 38,958 _
478,498 - 412,731 -
@ 16,326,552 54.2 15,046,132 54.3
7,647,117 25.4 6,754,692 24.4
3,317,916 11.0 3,372,576 12.2
1,042,368 3.5 962,449 3.5
845,186 2.8 734,049 2.6
930,297 3.1 829,642 3.0
30,109,436 100.0 27,699,540 100.0

23
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2019

2019
1,341,414 (8.7 ) 16,761,319
2018 1,332,347 9.8 ) 14,923,768

( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) )
9,955,821 59.4 9,418,894 61.0
421,874 2.5 364,437 2.4
6,383,624 38.1 5,636,574 36.6
16,761,319 100.0 15,419,905 100.0
( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) )
2,458,321 24.7 2,504,493 26.6
7,497,500 75.3 6,914,401 73.4
9,955,821 100.0 9,418,894 100.0

536,927 (5.7 )

( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) )
5,166,279 80.9 4,589,961 81.5
193,516 3.0 204,162 3.6
345,896 5.4 215,983 3.8
677,933 10.7 626,468 11.1

6,383,624 100.0 5,636,574 100.0
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OoOoOoOoOodno
747,050 (13.3 ) 576,318
(12.6 ) 129,913 (60.1 )
e
51,465 8.2 )
2019 2019
892,425 (13.2 ) 7,647,117
813,774 (13.5 ) 6,862,850

( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) ()
6,862,850 89.7 6,049,076 89.6
135,882 1.8 57,909 9
@ 558,366 7.3 563,346 3
90,019 1.2 84,361 2
7,647,117 100.0 6,754,692 100.0

C )

( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) ()
4,767,297 69.5 4,040,956 66.9
21,979 0.3 32,746 0.5
652,522 9.5 774,732 12.8
1,421,052 20.7 1,200,642 19.8
6,862,850 100.0 6,049,076 100.0

726,341 (18.0 ) 10,767

(32.9 ) 122,210 (15.8 ) 220,410

(18.4 )
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OOooOoOoOoo

( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) )
@ 10 0.0 54 .0
335,735 4.9 255,716 2
12 1,007,366 14.7 660,914 10.9
3,267,720 47.6 3,319,674 54.9
2,252,019 32.8 1,812,718 30.0
6,862,850 100.0 6,049,076 100.0

)

( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) )
6,221,395 90.7 5.547,079 91.7
439,219 6.4 356,034 5.9
202,236 2.9 145,963 2.4
6,862,850 100.0 6,049,076 100.0

674,316 12.2 ) 83,185

(23.4 ) 56,273 (38.6 )
( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) )
962,078 12.6 805,347 11.9
1,476,872 19.3 1,430,163 21.2
5,208,167 68.1 4,519,182 66.9
7,647,117 100.0 6,754,692 100.0

2019 1,387,779 @
652,522 735,257

47.0 53.0
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Ogoooood
10
( )
(€))
2019 19,620 3.49 2029 -
2012 11,400 4.04 2022 25 -
2010 11,050 3.51 2020 27 -
2019 10,903 3.47 2029 20 -
2011 10,505 4.62 2021 22
2010 @ 9,700 3.65 2020 26 -
2017 9,500 4.20 2020 17 -
@ 9,450 2020 25 -
2010 @) 0.59%
2015 9,230 4.25 2022 13 -
2015 9,040 4.21 2022 13 -
)
)
) PBC
2019 2,062,776 3.1 ) 27,417,433
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
D) )
22,977,655 83.8 21,408,934 84.4
2,266,573 8.3 1,814,495 7.2
263,273 1.0 514,801 2.0
742,875 2.7 617,842 2.4
1,167,057 4.2 998,585 4.0
27,417,433 100.0 25,354,657 100.0
2019 1,568,721
(7.3 ) 22,977,655 547,121
4.8 ) 1,041,326 (11.0 )
864,117 8.2 ) 724,330 (7.0 )
1,449,862 (7.2 ) 21,509,155

118,859 (8.8 ) 1,468,500
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( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) ()
5,295,704 23.0 5,076,005 23.7
6,732,558 29.3 6,405,136 29.9
12,028,262 52.3 11,481,141 53.6
6,149,654 26.8 5,505,236 25.7
4,328,090 18.8 3,931,182 18.4
10,477,744 45.6 9,436,418 44.1
Q) 234,852 1.0 268,914 1.3
236,797 1.1 222,461 1.0
22,977,655 100.0 21,408,934 100.0

)

( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) ()
45,507 0.2 56,304 0.3
4,474,455 19.5 4,032,866 18.8
2,988,476 13.0 2,726,705 12.7
6,212,525 27.0 5,922,781 27.7
3,324,189 14.5 3,064,753 14.3
3,801,033 16.5 3,591,835 16.8
1,184,289 5.2 1,105,344 5.2
947,181 4.1 908,346 4.2
22,977,655 100.0 21,408,934 100.0

251,528 (48.9 ) 263,273
2019 347,120 (4.8 ) 2,692,003
346,185 (14.9 ) 2,676,186
45

46
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2019 2018 2017
) >=25.0 43.0 43.8 41.7
>225.0 85.9 83.0 86.2

) 71.6 71.0 711
O <=10.0 3.1 3.8 4.9
10 () 12.6 12.9 14.2
) 1.5 1.7 2.7

26.1 25.3 23.2

36.0 38.8 71.1

15.6 25.2 10.6

loT
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2019
536,927 G.7 )
4.8 ) 12,028,262
2019
(52.0 ) 471,521
423,000
4.52

1,065,000

9,955,821

2019

2019

2019

28,000
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8,098,000

288

22,442
83,000
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547,121

ICBC

161,407
153,000
0.43

(25.2 ) 111,576
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12 22

ICBC

2019 13.5 9,443,000
2,399 1,426,000 9.5
7,973
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2019

M&A

2019

2019

747,050
650

EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)
oOoOooodn

50,895 2,988,556
1,205,334

M&A
1CBC
ICBC
E-Intelligence
ICBC e-Security
Reputation e Credit
1,802 1,517,350
No.
2019 14.6
1,041,326 (11.0 ) 10,477,744
(13.3 ) 6,383,624 43.29
0.72 14.01
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ICBC e

AXA Day Huaxia Day
5,892

1,326

Financial Product

Quan Xin Equity

(Mega) Private Bank in China

JD

ICBC Lucky Money
Expo CD

766

Best Mega Retail Bank in China

No.

EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)

ooOoooOoo
Fu Man Yi
cD cD

2019

Best Data Analysis

Tian Li Bao

Wealth Enjoy

1CBC

Best Private Bank in China Best
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OooooOodd
2019 9,504 (11.8 ) 90,224
1,611 1.6 ) 5547 2019
12,085 (8.3 )
158,156 2,774 a7.1 ) 8954
ICBC
ICBC I Go

ICBC e Life 3.0

2019 80.93 1,072
913 159
51,465 (8.2 ) 677,933 2019 6.93
3.71 3.22
Tian Li Bao Xin De Li Xin Wen Li Xin Tian

Yi Bo Gu Tong Li Quan Xin Equity
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ICBC Wealth Management

2019

IMF

Best Insurance Custodian, China
2019

2019
6,317

ooooooo
2,642,057

CDR

CDR GDR

ETF
Best Mega Custodian Bank in China
16.5
1,978 10.76
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China Foreign Exchange Trading System

2019

CD
CD 33 35
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LPR

12

50

National Interbank Funding Center
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oOoOooodn
2019 140,680 18
10 131,239
4,157 1,747
3,537 M&A
1CBC
ICBC
ICBC
2019

Star of Precious Metals in China
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1CBC
win-win
1PO
I GO Bay Area
3.82 ICBC
41
ICBC Mall e
500
- ICBC
50
Rotation Global Select Global Safe Profit

UCITS
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ICBC

ICBC e Life

1CBC

14
B2C B2B

GDR

Global
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oOoOooodn
ETF
e
2019
2019 48 428
20 143 1,445
21 129
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
197,279 182,777 2,105 2,017 107 104
108,867 98,766 1,139 1,025 90 91
80,926 76,127 21 134 79 81
51,836 56,948 449 553 151 149
- - - - 1 1
(37,213) (34,100)
401,695 380,518 3,714 3,729 428 426
W 3,988 3,786 376 386
405,683 384,304 4,090 4,115 428 426
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2019
21,379 5.6
9.4
4,090
3,785
1CBC
1CBC
1CBC

1CBC

405,683

2.9

109/474

EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)
oOoOooodn

25 0.6
7.3 200,833
134,749
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1CBC
ICBC Wealth Management Co., Ltd.
IT
350 Tian Li Bao Xin De Li Quan
Xin Equity Xin Wen Li Bo Gu Tong Li
ICBC 1CBC

1CBC

3-(1)
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2019 2018 724,133 694,521
2019 2018 731,745
875,967 2019
2018 35,924 112,874

3-(1)
2019 12 31 2018 12 31 1,509,523

1,450,413

3-(1)

3-(1)

PBC CBIRC
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27
2019 16,605 215
16,177 428 36
451 15,529 28
132

2019 12 31
)
29 0.2
2,516 15.1
2,003 12.1
2,699 16.2
3,484 21.0
3,683 22.2
1,631 9.8
560 3.4
16,605 100.0
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€Y
(2019 12 31 )
(€D €Y
357,596,257,089 (2)
(€D
Q) 269,612,212,539 86,794,044 550 40,000,000 1,150,000,000
(2019 12 31 )
1.00 356,406,257,089
100 1,190,000,000
@
@
50%
50%
©)
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*

CBIRC

®
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(©)

10

Q)

10
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)
R* = W*/S* x
R*
W* S*
20
Central Parity Rate
R = W/S
R
W S
20
©
tier 1
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(10)

€Y)

Tier

@
100

®

*
)
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20
2.94%
(D
)
()

CDC

1.56%

2010

&)

2)
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www .chinabond.com.cn

2015 11 18 20

11 18 20

20
4_50%
@

9



(

)

(i)

(i)
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10

2015 11 23
11 23

360



() Tier

5.125

(ii) Tier
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Tier 5.125

Tier

(a) CBIRC
)

CBIRC
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20

20

360
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20

3.44

Q V/P



)

©)
)
CBIRC

)
CBIRC

(D

)

()

CBIRC
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2015 11 18
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(i)
(i)
(iv)
™

®
()

R W /S

20

20
20
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)

®

Tier

Tier

(D
(i)
(iii)
(iv)
)
(vi)

(10)

CSRC
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ooooooo
€Y
Tier
@
100
©)
)
)
www . chinabond.com.cn
CcbC
2019 19
20
24 20

20

20
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1.24%

(H
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(i)

(&)

2010
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)
2019 24
24

360
)
)
()

®)
)
) Tier Tier 5.125
Tier 5.125
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(

)

)

(i)Tier

20

20

360

(a) CBIRC
()

CBIRC

20
5.43
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(
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PO

P1
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P1 = PO x N/(N + n)
PL=P0 x (N+ K)Y/(N+n), k=nx A/M
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CBIRC 2019

24

(M)

(i) CBIRC
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)

®

Tier

(1)
(i)
(iii)
(iv)
™)
(vi)

10)

2018
2020

SSE

CSRC

HKEX

CBIRC

HKEXnews
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2014 29.4
2019 29
2019 12 10 CBIRC
2019 10 CBIRC
120
CBIRC 2019 12 10
SSE HKEX

2019

@

133/474
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HKEXnews
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®

) )
2015 12 31 2,912,043,269 269,612,212,539 2,912,043,269 269,612,212,539 | (1)
2016 12 31 0 269,612,212,539 0 269,612,212,539
2017 12 31 0 269,612,212,539 0 269,612,212,539
2018 12 31 0 269,612,212,539 0 269,612,212,539
2019 12 31 0 269,612,212,539 0 269,612,212,539
@

) )
2015 12 31 0 86,794,044,550 0 86,794,044,550
2016 12 31 0 86,794,044,550 0 86,794,044,550
2017 12 31 0 86,794,044,550 0 86,794,044,550
2018 12 31 0 86,794,044,550 0 86,794,044,550
2019 12 31 0 86,794,044,550 0 86,794,044,550
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) ( )
2015 11 18 450,000,000 757,000,000 0 ol
2015 12 31 0 757,000,000 0 0
2016 12 31 0 757,000,000 0 0
2017 12 31 0 757,000,000 0 0
2018 12 31 0 757,000,000 0 0
2019 9 19 700,000,000 1,457,000,000 0 ol
2019 12 10 -267,000,000 1,190,000,000 0 ol @
2019 12 31 0 1,190,000,000 0 0
@
@
*
2019 12 31 527,411
120,525 406,886 2020 29

601,971

135/474



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)

ooooodo
®)
Q)
(2019 12 31 )
)
123,717,852,951 (1) 34.71%
110,984,806,678 (1) 31.14%
0
HKSCC Nominees Limited/ 199 1,342,677,816 (1) 0.38%
S 86,153,149,041 (2) 24 .17%
SSF(3)(4) 1 12,331,645,186 (1) 3.46%
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PT. ICBC 98.61 98.61 98.61 |DR3,706 uUSsD361
ICBC
ICBC 100 100 100 RUB10,810 RUB10,810
ICBC 100 100 100 RMB18,000 RMB11,000 PRC
ICBC
89.33 89.33 89.33 MOP589 MOP12,064 PRC
ICBC
ICBC 60 60 60 RMB200 RMB120 PRC
ICBC 100 100 100 RMB100 RMB100 PRC
*
80 80 80 CAD208 CAD218.66
100 100 100 MYRS833 MYR833
97.86 97.86 97.98 THB20,132 THB23,711
ICBC
100 100 100 USD50 USD50.25
LLC
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(%) (%)
2019 519
12 12
31 a2
ICBC-AXA 60 60 60 RMB12,505 RMB7,980 PRC
.
80 80 80  USD369 USD306
USA NA
80 80 80 ARSL345 ARS3,505
SA.
ICBC
ICBC 100 100 100  USD120 USD120
100 100 100  Real202 Real202
SA.
100 100 100  NzD234 NZD234
ICBC
100 100 100 MXN1,597 MXN1,597
SA.
ICBC 92.84 9284 9284  TRY860 USD425
ICBC
ICBC PLC 60 60 60 USD1,083 UsD839
ICBC
ICBC 100 100 100 RMB12,000 RMB12,000 PRC
*  ICBC
ICBC GmbH 100 100 100  EUR100 EUR100
ICBC 100 — 100 RMB16,000 RMB16,000 PRC
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26
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
30,603 27,099
1,887 2,025
32,490 29,124
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
22,345 19,385
10,493 10,087
32,838 29,472
(348) (348)
32,490 29,124
a
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
27,770 26,011
4,720 3,113
32,490 29,124
i
(%) (%)
2019 2018 2019
12 31 12 31 12 31
20.06 20.08 20.06 ZAR162
2019 12 31 27,105 2018 12 31

27,677
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2019 2018
1,127,659 1,013,117
1,023,850 918,299
103,809 94,818
12,652 13,362
88,041 81,215
20.06% 20.08%
17,661 16,308
10,457 10,051
28,118 26,359
2,025 52 (125) (91) — (168) 194 1,887 —
26,359 — — 262 (519)  (1551) 1,208 28118 (348)
1,088 2,512 (703) (10) — @) (52) 2833 —
27,447 2,512 (703) 2611 (519)  (1553) 1,156 30,951 (348)
29,472 2,564 (828) 2,520 (519) (1721) 1350 32,838 (348)
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27
2018 1 1 142,517 29,572 10,375 72,437 127,762 382,663
5,450 15,574 680 6,509 42,148 70,361
4,009 (9,553) — 114 5,340 —
(921) (471) (101) (4,200) (4,179) (9,871)
2018 12 31 151,145 35,122 10,954 74,860 171,072 443,153
IFRS 16 — — (10,251) (10,251)
2019 1 1 151,145 35,122 10,954 74,860 160,821 432,902
2,430 14,997 1,453 6,155 14,837 39,872
8,962 (9,918) — 116 840 —
(1,179) (449) (479) (4,233) (11,557) (17,896)
2019 12 31 161,359 39,752 11,928 76,898 164,941 454,878
2018 1 1 55,646 4 8,318 56,475 14,439 134,919
5,671 — 868 6,868 6,908 20,315
_ _ _ _ 3,088 3,088
(616) — (30) (3,983) (944) (5,573)
2018 12 31 60,701 41 9,156 59,360 23,491 152,749
IFRS 16 — — (588) (588)
2019 1 1 60,701 41 9,156 59,360 22,903 152,161
5,798 — 874 6,618 6,368 19,658
_ _ _ _ 3,384 3,384
(795) A3) (47) (4,187) (1,854) (6,886)
2019 12 31 65,704 38 9,983 61,791 30,801 168,317
2018 12 31 90,444 35,081 1,798 15,500 147,581 290,404

2019 12 31 95,655 39,714 1,945 15,107 134,140 286,561
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
50
PRC 21,280 18,148
231 869
530 745
22,041 19,762
10 50
PRC 70,906 68,247
458 124
1,023 257
72,387 68,628
10
PRC 1,193 2,027
34 27
1,227 2,054
95,655 90,444
2019 12 31 12,316 2018 12 31 10,539
2019 12 31
134,140 2018 12 31 147,581
2019 12 31

76,007 2018 12 31 90,887
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FVTPL
FvoCl

FVTPL
FvocCl

FVTPL
FVOCI
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
252,387 62,888 210,624 52,438
(3,437) (851) 705 147
(22,954) (5,781) (14,248) (3,819)
25,162 6,290 26,033 6,508
(209) (10) 11,788 3,101
250,949 62,536 234,902 58,375
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
(1,270) (535) (944) (401)
2,544 636 572 143
5,560 1,357 3,592 900
1,652 415 2,272 575
8,486 1,873 5,492 1,217
2019 2019
11 12 31
52,438 10,450 — 62,888
147 (998) — (851)
(3,819) — (1,962) (5,781)
6,508 (218) — 6,290
3,101 (3,173) (62) (10)
58,375 6,061 (1,900) 62,536
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2019 2019
11 12 31
(401) (134) — (535)
FVTPL 143 493 — 636
FVOCI 900 — 457 1,357
575 (160) — 415
1,217 199 457 1,873
2017 IFRS 9 2018 2018
12 31 11 12 31
37,475 7,254 44,729 7,709 — 52,438
FVTPL
(2,368) 577 (1,791) 1,938 — 147
FVOCI
4,433 4,433 — (8,252) (3,819)
9,748 (9,748) _
6,910 — 6,910 (402) — 6,508
(3,373) 7,702 4,329 (1,217) (11) 3,101
48,392 10,218 58,610 8,028 (8,263) 58,375
2017 IFRS 9 2018 2018
12 31 11 12 31
(502) 6 (496) %5 — (401)
FVTPL
_ _ — 143 — 143
FVOCI
(38) (38) — 938 900
(38) 38 —
973 — 973 (398) — 575

433 6 439 (160) 938 1,217
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31

239,209 182,391

136,788 122,318

@) 33,658

16,842 17,464

10,917 10,884

9,517 9,299

7,715 10,555

2,233 2,624

28,514 28,989

485,393 384,524

(4,994) (4,120)

480,399 380,404

|

2019 1 1 16,827 13,986 71 30,884
6,478 3,289 1,567 11,334
(842) (741) (10) (1,593)
2019 12 31 22,463 16,534 1,628 40,625
2019 1 1 — 480 — 480
5,775 692 104 6,571
(55) (29) — (84)
2019 12 31 5,720 1,143 104 6,967
2019 1 1 — 108 — 108
24 70 — %4
— (5) — (5
2019 12 31 24 173 — 197
2019 1 1 16,827 13,398 71 30,296
2019 12 31 16,719 15,218 1,524 33,461
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@

@

2018

31

)
2
@

2019 12 31

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
19,580 11,480
60,454 67,266
13,064 2,285
9,144 6,369
102,242 87,400
2018 12 31
FVTPL
2019 12 31
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
1,640,846 1,202,671
132,600 123,317
2,874 2,258
1,776,320 1,328,246
153,903 128,015
329,375 346,186
6,975 12,048
490,253 486,249
2,266,573 1,814,495
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31

24,252 18,709
24,252 18,709
107,917 331,691
121,940 148,663
229,857 480,354
8,980 15,375
184 363
263,273 514,801
DIFC ICBC ICBC ICBC

2019 12 31 2018 12 31

6,732,558 6,405,136
4,328,090 3,931,182
11,060,648 10,336,318
5,295,704 5,076,005
6,149,654 5,505,236
11,445,358 10,581,241
234,852 268,914
236,797 222,461

22,977,655 21,408,934
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
Tier 2 @)
336,063 269,864
8,082 9,122
6,059 3,473
350,204 282,459
2
251,849 225,075
138,876 108,904
1,946 1,404
392,671 335,383
742,875 617,842
2019 12 31 1 117,233 2018 12 31 92,045
@) Tier 2
PBOC CBIRC 2010 2011 2012 2017 2019
Tier 2 PBOC Tier 2
( ) ( ) ( )
« ) ()
2010 1CBC 02 2010-09-10 100 16,200 16,200 4.10% 2010-09-14 2025-09-14 2010-11-03 i)
2011 1CBCOL 2011-06-29 100 38,000 38,000 5.56% 2011-06-30 2031-06-30 2011-08-30 (i)
2011 1CBCO2 2011-12-29 100 50,000 50,000 5.50% 2011-12-30 2026-12-30 2012-01-17 (iii)
2012 1cBCOL 2012-06-11 100 20,000 20,000 4.99% 2012-06-13 2027-06-13 2012-07-13 (iv)
2017 1cBCOL 2017-11-06 100 44,000 44,000 4.45% 2017-11-08 2027-11-08 2017-11-10 v)
2017 1CBC 02 2017-11-20 100 44,000 44,000 4.45% 2017-11-22 2027-11-22 2017-11-23 (vi)
2019 1CBCOL 2019-03-21 100 45,000 45,000 4.26% 2019-03-25 2029-03-25 2019-03-26 (vii)
2019 1CBC 02 2019-03-21 100 10,000 10,000 4.51% 2019-03-25 2034-03-25 2019-03-26 (viii)
2019 1CBCO3 2019-04-24 100 45,000 45,000 4.40% 2019-04-26 2029-04-26 2019-04-28 (ix)
2019 1CBCO4 2019-04-24 100 10,000 10,000 4.69% 2019-04-26 2034-04-26 2019-04-28 x)
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i 2020 9 14

ii 2026 6 30

iii 2021 12 30

iv 2022 6 13

\Y; 2022 11 8

Vi 2022 11 22

vii 2024 3 25

viii 2029 3 25

iX 2024 4 26

X 2029 4 26
2015 Tier 2

( ) ( )
() ()

f ) 2015-9-15 99.189 2,000 13,926 4.875% 2015-9-21  2025-9-21  2015-9-22 (xi)

ler

i 2015 9 15 2,000 4.875% Tier 2

2015 9 22 99.189%
2025 9 21
Tier 2

2018
2010 11 30 ICBC 500 5.125%
99.737% 2020 11 30
2018 3 23 ICBC 5,000 3.5% Tier 2

2028 9 23
2019 9 12 ICBC 500 2.875% Tier 2
99.226% 2029 9 12
Tier 2 ICBC
ICBC ICBC Tier 2
2018
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2019 12 31
(i) 2020 2024
2019 2022 2024
3,048 2020

2,693

(ii) 2021 2024
16,688
@iy 2019 2020
(iv) 2020 2027
2019
(v) 2020 2024
2019

13,809

(vi) DIFC 2020 2024
2019
6,953
(vii) 2020 2024
2019
26,455

(viii) 2020 2023

2019
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14,459
43,925
2019 2021 2024
898
51,108
2020 24,698
28,301
2020 2024

35,437

DIFC 2022 2024

49,711
2020 2024
28,010
2022 1,847



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)

OooooOodd
(i) ICBC 2020 2023 17,919
2019  ICBC
2022 5,600 2020
247
(ii) ICBC 2020 2027 77,830
2011 4.875% 750 2019
12 31 153 4,152
2021 12 7 97.708%
ICBCIL 2020 2027
64,830 2019 ICBCIL
2022 2024 14,586
ICBCIL
ICBC
1400 2025 842
ICBC 2021 2024 8,006
2019 ICBC 2022
2024 5,250
(i)  1CBC 2020 2026 7,531
2019 ICBC 2020 2022 4,243
(iv)  ICBC 2020 2022 14,266
2019 ICBC 2022
4,869
(v) ICBC 2020 2024 3,097
2019 ICBC
2022 2024
935
(Vi)  ICBC 2020 233
iy 2019 ICBC 2022 2024

18,000
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36
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
225,055 167,015
0 29,524
28,534 34,715
(ii) 24,036 25,308
13,409 10,937
1,044 1,260
530 686
202,993 169,898
525,125 409,819
0]
2019 12 31
1 7,402
1 6,005
2 3 4,705
3 6,213
5 8,048
2019 12 31 32,373
2019 12 31 29,524
(i) 2019 12 31 2018 12 31
37
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
H 1 86,795 86,795 86,795 86,795
A 1 269,612 269,612 269,612 260,612
356,407 356,407 356,407 356,407

H A H
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38
1
a
( ) ) )

2014-12-10 6.00% 15 / 40 600 4,558

2015 2015-11-18 450% 100 / 450 45,000 45,000

2019 2019-09-19 420% 100 / 700 70,000 70,000

1,190 119,558

89

119,469
b
i

7
1
Tier 2 Tier 2
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e.
Tierl Tierl 5.125
Tierl 5.125 H
H
@ CBIRC
)
2
H H
0.4793 H
f.
CBIRC
;
g.
2
a
5
5
1
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b.
C.
d.
Tier 2 Tier 2
e
Tierl Tierl 5.125
Tierl 5.125 A
A
Q) CBIRC
(2
2
A A
2015 3.44 2019

5.43 A
f.

5 CBIRC
g.

2471474



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)
oOoOooodn

C
2019 1 1 2019 12 31
147 2,940 17,991 (147) (2,940)  (17,991) — — —
40 600 4,558 — — — 40 600 4,558
120 12,000 12,000 (120) (12,0000  (12,000) — — —
2015 450 45,000 45,000 — — — 450 45,000 45,000
2019 —_ — — 700 70,000 70,000 700 70,000 70,000
757 N/A 79,549 433 N/A 40,009 1,190 N/A 119,558
(2019 12 31
2 2019 12 10
2
a
( ) () ()
2016-7-21 4.25% 1,000 / 1 1,000 6,691
2019-07-26 4.45% 100 / 800 80,000 80,000
801 86,691
28
86,663
ICBC
b
0]
2016 7 21  ICBC Tier 1
10 6,676 5
4.25% 5 5
3.135%
2017 1 21 ICBC
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oooooog
HKMA HKMA ICBC
non-viable ICBC HKMA
(1)
2 ICBC
©)]
ICBC 2021 7 21
(i)
2019 7 26
80.0 100 5 4.45% 5
5
5
Tier 1
Tier 1
Tier 1 Tier 1 5.125%
CBIRC Tier 1 5.125%
non-viable

Tier 1
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C
2019 1 1 2019 12 31
( ( ) ) ( ) ( ) « ) ( ) ( ) « )
1,000 6,691 — — — 1 1,000 6,691
— — 800 80,000 80,000 800 80,000 80,000
N/A 6,691 800 N/A 80,000 801 NA 86,691
2019 12 31
3
2019 1 1 2019 12 31
2,330,001 2,676,186
(1 2,243,950 2,470,054
@) 86,051 206,132
14,882 15,817
€] 14,882 15,817
@ _ _
39
a
b
[
50% 10
25
2020 3 27 29,786 2018 28,421
PRC PRC GAAP 10
29,733 2018 28,318
53 2018 103
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2012 7 1 MOF
2019 12 31
15
d
FVOCI
e
f
g

295,962
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PRC GAAP

15

2018 271,201
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h
PRC GAAP IFRS
IFRS
2018 1 1 356,407 79375 156204 229,146 259,374 (6,661) (1,205) (3,965) 71 632964 959,979 2,028,725
_ _ _ — — — — — _ — 282,044 282,044
_ _ — — — 26,587 911 52 (125) 27,425 — 27,425
— _ — — — 26,587 911 52 (125) 27,425 282,044 309,469
— 2017
17 _ _ _ _ — _ — — — — (85,823) (85,823)
— 17 — — — — — — — — — — (4,506) (4,506)
i — — — 28,421 — — — — — 28,421 (28,421) —
ii — — — — 11,827 — — — — 11,827 (11,827) —
2018 12 31
2019 1 1 356,407 79375 156204 257,567 271,201 19,926 (294 (3913) (54 700637 1111446 2,247,865
— _ _ — — —_ — — _ — 296,338 296,338
_ _ — — — 4,023 218 (326) (35) 3,880 - 3,880
_ _ — — — 4,023 218 (326) (35) 3,880 296,338 300,218
— 149,967 — — — — — — — — — 149,967
— (29,886) (2,901) — — — — — — (2,901) — (32,787)
— 2018
17 _ _ _ — — — — — — — (89,315) (89,315)
—_ 17 — — — — — — — — — — (4,525) (4,525)
i — — — 29,786 — — — — — 29,786 (29,786) —
ii — — — — 24,761 — — — — 24,761 (24,761) —
2019 12 31 356,407 199,456 153303 287,353 295962 23,949 (76) (4,239) (89) 756,163 1,259,397 2,571,423
i 53 2018 103
i 2 2018 9

252/474
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2019 2018
FVOCI (53) 2,086
15 (481)
(38) 1,605
11 )
(%) (%)
FVOCI 9,687 32,971
773 337
(2,434) (8,709)
8,026 24,599
FVOCI (64) (1,238)
(696) (42)
62 (11)
(634) (53)
(530) 488
4,271 3,325
(329) (903)
10,708 27,809
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
27,225 27,225 23,191 23,191
422,712 422,712 324,773 324,773
44,556 44,556 39,966 39,966
117,487 117,487 80,202 80,202
611,980 611,980 468,132 468,132
2019 12 31
FVTPL FVOCI
27,225 — —
405,680 — 17,032
26,226 — 18,330
68,233 20,844 28,410
527,364 20,844 63,772
2018 12 31
FVTPL FVOCI
23191 — —
306,981 — 17,792
28,197 — 11,769
60,284 5,917 14,001
418,653 5,917 43,562
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(b)

12 31

2019 12 31

1,308,500

2019

(© 2019 12 31

2019 1 1
404,793

2019
1,387
2019 1 1
3,000

2019
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2019
2,642,057 1,332,184 2018 12 31 2,575,857
49,142 2018 73,105
2019 12 31
2018 1 1 2018 12 31
708,588
1,610 2018
2019 12 31
2018 1 1 2018 12 31
66
0.72 2018 0.19
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31

19 66,035 70,047

19 322,892 238,286

224,374 224,886

230,140 290,067

606,972 686,237

1,450,413 1,509,523

2019 12 31 2018 12 31

30,375 29,766 33,161 45,780
286,527 — 273,685 —

316,902 29,766 306,846 45,780

256/474



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)

Ooooodo
2019 12 31
384,156 2018 12 31
256,346 2019 12 31
52,016 2018 12 31 37,239
2019 12 31

2018 12 31
44
2006

H 10

45
a

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
31,915 33,042
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2018 12

16

31

IAS 17

IFRS 16
2019 1 1
36(i)

2018 12 31
6,546
12,806
2,331
21,683
2019 1 1
IFRS 16
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
21,018 16,068
87,494 62,722
94,249 88,258
202,761 167,048
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
311,300 263,038
— 69,634 104,146
— 414,245 405,155
40,932 42,918
156,685 162,801
_ 1 187,651 151,927
— 1 625,146 1,061,666
1,157,478 1,037,861
2,963,071 3,229,512
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
0) 1,306,831 1,402,715
(i) CBRC
d
2019 12 31 / 4,233
2018 12 31 4,154
e
2019 12 31 89,644 2018 12
31 85,845
MOF
f
2019 12 31 1,000 2018 12 31

100
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46

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
1,916,638 920,829
1,916,362 920,476

47

2019 12 31
227,938 2018 12 31 490,913
48

49

0) MOF

MOF 2019 12
31 MOF 31.14% 2018 12 31 34.60 2019
MOF 10% MOF A 12,331,645,186
MOF

2019 12 31 2018 12 31

PRC 1,215,664 1,097,055

2019 2018

PRC 38,808 37,795

2019 12 31 MOF 90,309
2018 12 31 90,309 24

MOF 49(g) PRC
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Q)

2019

2019

12 31
34.71

12 31
1 30

2.85

5.15%

828,209
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34.71 2018 12 31

2003 12 16
56.23 2018 12 31 38.77

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
57,436 39,563
22,022 27,007

1,998 11,499

2019 2018

1,949 1,211

717 1,207

240 192

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
530,740 523,519
101,724 135,694

3,124 211

4,972 6,335

221,015 123,288

5,902 6,988

1,003 933

7172 13,974

2019 2018

18,548 19,866

234 538

44 26

1,562 1,517

10 12
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
31,174 27,638
402,276 428,902
30,150 49,532
1,810 2,059
167,454 420,539
3,293 985
7,872 4,479
113,755 151,512

2019 2018
151 155
884 1,802
520 1,033
1,807 2,643
3,089 2,432

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
8,548 —
4,995 135
2,680 3,399
1,279 1,558
12,397 15,887

0 166

2,102 433

2019 2018

128 _

368 53

97 120

254 323

0 1
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d
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
33 71
2019 2018
0 1
e
12
2019 2018
2,169 6,002
104 262
2,273 6,264
2018 2018
2019 12 31 PRC
2019
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2,423 2,513
2019 12

31 3.24
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f
2019 12 31 A 101.36
2018 12 31 441 2019 12 31 20.28 2018 12
31
g PRC
h
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
% %
1,803,840 23.59% 1,660,137 24.58%
106,719 10.24% 135,829 14.11%
27,826 0.17% 30,620 0.20%
6,251 9.15% 7,893 11.06%
233,412 10.30% 139,175 7.67%
8,004 9.40% 7,421 10.09%
3,034 0.01% 12,669 0.06%
7,172 0.24% 13,974 0.43%
2019 2018 2018
% %
60,893 5.87% 60,816 6.41%

2,066 0.48% 2,046 0.54%
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2019 12 31
284,211 91,336 231,379 — 606,926
8,114 130,988 (139,102) — —
88,963 65,219 1,418 — 155,600
[ 7,120 (974) 2,727 4,603 13,476
388,408 286,569 96,422 4,603 776,002
(76,305) (109,170) (16,484) (5.817) (207,776)
(152,735) (24,480) (1,747) 5 (178,957)
159,368 152,919 78,191 (1,209) 389,269
— — — 2,520 2,520
159,368 152,919 78,191 1,311 391,789
(78,428)
313,361
8,315 7,265 2,946 543 19,069
1,026 803 446 146 2421
23,847 20,693 8,539 1,660 54,739

2019 12 31

10,247,872 6,496,604 13,176,154 188,806 30,109,436
— — — 32,490 32,490
107,967 93,771 37,943 46,880 286,561
i 44,350 13,974 7,577 17,329 83,230
12,854,095 10,763,847 3,540,594 258,807 27,417,433
1,832,133 1,130,938 — — 2,963,071

0]
(i)
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2018 12 31
273,082 86,143 213,293 — 572,518
(3,458) 122,772 (119,314) — _
81,684 62,969 648 — 145,301
2,551 1,606 (2,143) 5,283 7,302
353,859 273,490 92,484 5,283 725,121
(70,797) (98,280) (17,449) (7,677) (194,203)
(131,348) (30,926) 793 (113) (161,594)
151,714 144,284 75,828 (2,502) 369,324
_ _ _ 3,089 3,089
151,714 144,284 75,828 587 372,413
(73,690)
298,723
5,621 5,011 2,237 538 13,407
996 747 432 164 2,339
30,471 26,969 12,083 3,032 72,555
9,706,611 5711,799 12,095,016 186,114 27,699,540
— — — 29,124 29,124
107,201 95,256 42,370 45577 290,404
20,760 6,982 4,241 15,863 47,846
12,292,100 9,664,481 3,179,501 218575 25,354,657
2,222,156 1,007,356 — — 3229512
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2019 12 31

252,757 63,970 63,493 24,537 64,071 85,531 16,336 36,231 — 606,926
(194,621) 37,138 14,710 102,725 18,049 13,846 9,356 (1,203) — —
33,437 31,455 23,040 20,452 14,705 18,978 4,019 11,173 (1,659) 155,600

9448  (3,891) (576)  (3823)  (1,910)  (2,608) (495) 15768 1563 13476
101,021 128672 100,667 143891 94,915 115747 29216 61,969 (96) 776,002
(20548)  (30,764) (23596) (33,743) (30,099) (35985) (12,323) (20,829) 111 (207,776)
(40,400) (15572) (15821) (40,049) (22,546) (21,127) (14,150)  (9,292) —  (78957)

40073 82336 61250 70099 42270 58,635 2743 31,848 15 389,269

_ _ _ _ _ — — 2,520 — 2,520

40073 82336 61250 70,099 42270 58,635 2743 34,368 15 391,789

(78,428)

313,361

1,851 2719 2,108 3,110 3,002 3,404 1,312 1,563 — 19,069

808 234 215 235 279 300 87 254 — 2,421

3,784 3,808 3,002 5,103 3,374 4,309 1,255 29,924 — 54,739
2018 12 31

10,687,512 6,380,888 4,126,087 4,256,707 2,973,119 3,841,497 1,140,631 3,971,298 (7,330,839) 30,046,900

_ _ _ _ — — — 3249 — 32,490
11,964 32168 12015 20252 18306 23009 9413 159434 — 286561
13250 8114 5975 7352 8488 12370 2003 25588 — 83,230
62,536

30,109,436

8135659 6,604,114 4,164,747 7,051,203 2996409 3675924 1207,528 724,638 (7,330,853) 27,319,369
98,064

T27417,433

1,266,960 767,677 464,593 655424 252,299 464,788 122273 725581 (1,756,524) 2,963,071
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0]

0]

Oooooooo
2018 12 31
228918 61,134 55342 30503 59,236 80,818 18202 38275 — 572518
(141316) 27,338 11,824 83075 11,846 6,811 5554  (5132) — —
3907 38284 27,704 23785 17,258 20,869 4,644 8,850 — 145301
(5,114) (605) (495) (654) (148) 20 (442) 15028  (288) 7,302
86,395 126,151 94,375 136799 88192 108518 27,958 57,021  (288) 725121
(18802) (29196) (21,976) (3L779) (28482) (33104) (11960) (19,192) 288 (194,203)
(29087) (19,899) (20,268) (29537) (23683) (21,005 (10436)  (7.679) —  (161594)
38506 77,056 52131 75483 36027 54,409 5562 30,150 — 369,324
_ _ _ _ _ — — 3,089 — 3,089
38506 77,06 52131 75483 36027 54,409 5562 33,239 — 372413
(73,690)
298,723
1,825 1,786 1,231 2,006 2,352 2,690 1,113 404 — 13,407
809 233 198 196 280 335 86 202 — 2,339
2,655 3,133 1,767 3,838 2,410 2,801 975 54,976 — 72,555
2018 12 31
0,803,222 5,860,977 3,700,969 4,085516 2,758,294 3530531 1,120,364 3,695,699 (6,914,407) 27,641,165
— _ — — — _ — 29124 — 29,124
12,038 31,408 11,332 18605 18359 22,807 9650 166,205 — 290,404
11,606 5,839 3,458 3,926 6750 10,449 1,581 4,237 — 47,846
58,375
27,699,540
7,532,137 6,166,615 3,719458 6,639,630 2733284 3378285 1,134,000 879,687 (6,914,407) 25,268,698
85,959
25,354,657
1,140,804 652201 372549 544264 231,154 412271 82,387 720,824  (926942) 3,229,512
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oOoOooodn
6
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
7,319 7,211
2,983 3,112
2019 12 31
10,377,695 2018 12 31
9,783,331 3,583,296 2018 12
31 3,208,571
2019 12 31
6,383,624 2018 12 31 5,636,574
5,565,771 2018 12 31 4,913,432
599 2018

1,774
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31

3,251,881 3,302,529

1,042,368 962,449

68,311 71,335

845,186 734,049

16,326,552 15,046,132

FVTPL 837,972 750,957
FVOCI 1,421,609 1,400,244
5,208,167 4,519,182

181,028 166,363

29,183,074 26,953,240

2,963,071 3,229,512

32,146,145 30,182,752
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
774,578 4.62% 723,302 4.69%
3,124,793 18.64% 2,823,603 18.32%
2,341,370 13.97% 2,072,857 13.44%
2,739,585 16.34% 2,524,307 16.37%
2,445,215 14.60% 2,202,221 14.28%
2,991,010 17.84% 2,735,901 17.74%
798,691 A4.77% 759,140 4.92%
1,546,077 9.22% 1,578,574 10.24%

16,761,319 100.00% 15,419,905 100.00%
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

2,304,923 2,070,542

1,655,775 1,569,387

1,252,193 1,145,342

1,021,366 1,004,744

926,499 786,803

908,254 850,038

537,326 626,059

300,159 295,271

284,949 265,149

211,241 234,976

231,260 196,046

321,876 374,537

9,955,821 9,418,894

5,512,175 4,805,944

871,449 830,630

6,383,624 5,636,574

421,874 364,437

16,761,319 15,419,905
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31

5,369,713 4,950,419
2,078,921 2,157,264
7,884,774 7,056,026
1,427,911 1,256,196
16,761,319 15,419,905
2019 12 31
1 90 90 1 1 3 3
27,232 21,684 17,831 5,474 72,221
17,046 25,698 21,799 9,876 74,419
35,613 36,689 25,003 11,186 108,491
3,193 5,554 2,215 2,123 13,085
83,084 89,625 66,848 28,659 268,216
2018 12 31
1 90 90 1 1 3 3
31,229 30,227 10,507 3,206 75,169
18,536 21,206 23,684 12,502 75,928
39,324 30,074 24,095 12,608 106,101
2,064 2,339 4,724 3,607 12,734

91,153 83,846 63,010 31,923 269,932
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2019 12 31
FVTPL Fvoc

60,509 421,919 4,306,848 4,789,276

41,444 198,839 412,239 652,522

179,106 306,242 340,218 825,566

77,198 474,271 44,017 595,486

358,257 1,401,271 5,103,322 6,862,850

2018 12 31
FVTPL FVOCI

42,29 413,941 3,617,465 4,073,702

49,291 223,877 501,564 774,732

126,420 302,685 264,645 693,750

25,742 436,824 44,326 506,892

243,749 1,377,327 4,428,000 6,049,076

2019 12 31
AAA AA A A
1613759 3,133,011 6,645 13211 22650 4,789,276
633,828 213 2,617 15,551 313 652,522
281,128 365,377 18,672 84,343 76,046 825,566
104,386 342,866 25,892 63,480 58,862 595,486
2633101 3,841,467 53826 176585 157,871 6,862,850
2018 12 31
AAA AA A A

1,479,735 2,557,514 5,217 15,840 15,396 4,073,702
758,698 2,289 965 11,894 886 774,732
232,352 312,628 17,605 72,531 58,634 693,750
53,501 351,062 9,153 56,597 36,579 506,892

2524286 3,223,493 32940 156862 111495 6,049,076
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Ooooooog
(@iin)
2019 12 31
1 2 3 1 2 3
3,317,916 — — 3317916 — _ _ _
1,024,865 18,748 —  1,043613 (1,219) (26) — (1,245)
685,623 — — 685,623 (94) — — (94)
15,682,629 452,439 239564 16374632  (215,316) (78494)  (184,688)  (478,498)
0,342,748 426,540 200722 9970010 (162,181 (70451)  (149,328)  (381,960)
6,335,675 25,899 38,842 6,400,416 (53,134) (8,043) (35,360) (96,537)
4,206 — — 4,206 o) — — @
5,206,604 5,118 166  5211,888 (2,255) (1,339) (127 (3,721)
153,710 1,485 546 155,741 (524) (333) (272) (1,129)
26,071,347 477,790 240276 26789413  (219,408) (80,192)  (185087)  (484,687)
3
2019 12 31
1 2 3 1 2 3
FVOCI
423,370 — 623 423,993 (227) — (5) (232)
6,325 — — 6,325 (21) — — (21)
417,045 — 623 417,668 (206) — (5) (211)
1,417,535 4,074 — 1,421,609 (1,778) (80) (198) (2,056)
1,840,905 4,074 623 1,845,602 (2,005) (80) (203) (2,288)
2,913,139 49,051 881 2,963,071 (25,266) (3072 (196) (28,534)
2018 12 31
1 2 3 1 2 3
3,372,576 — — 3372576 — _ _ _
954,413 9,051 — 963,464 (993) (22 — (1,015)
559,295 — — 559,295 (40) — — (40)
14,310,149 552,086 234,777 15097,012  (158,084) (81,406)  (173241)  (412,731)
8,714,321 527,291 194,637 9436249  (109,399) (74,298)  (136,499)  (320,196)
5,585,639 24,795 40120 5,650,554 (48,670) (7,108) (36,722) (92,500)
10,189 — 20 10,209 (15) — (20) (35)
4,516,711 4793 161 4,521,665 (1,504) (854) (125) (2,483)
103,110 750 329 104,189 (530) (226) (202) (958)
23,816,254 566,680 235267 24618201  (161,151) (82508)  (173568)  (417,227)
3
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Ooooooog
2018 12 31
1 2 3 1 2 3
FVOCI
360,234 1 248 360,483 (198) ) (248) (446)
6,255 — — 6,255 (13) — — (13)
353,979 1 248 354,228 (185) ©) (248) (433)
1,398,443 1,801 — 1,400,244 (1,622) (92) (196) (1,910)
1,758,677 1,802 248 1,760,727 (1,820) (92) (444) (2,356)
3,175,508 53,160 754 3,229,512 (28,811) (5,342) (562) (34,715)
b
®
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ooooOoog
2019 12 31
1 1 3 1 5
3 1 5 (***)
615,890 1,018 3,850 20,743 — —_ 2,676,415 3,317,916
* 181,267 846,498 310,639 493,006 55,302 842 —_ 1,887,554
498 5,045 6,878 28,784 20,962 6,144 — 68,311
31,249 985,299 712,711 2,791,186 3,559,038 8,190,112 56,957 16,326,552
—FVTPL 10,661 10,955 43,762 421,926 161,035 180,555 133,184 962,078
—FVOCI — 43,068 87,534 242,037 759,038 289,932 55,263 1,476,872
— — 66,799 139,014 708,768 2,466,714 1,824,696 2,176 5,208,167
— — — — — — 32,490 32,490
— — — — — — 286,561 286,561
268,114 78,408 41,887 21,220 27,945 31,242 74,119 542,935

1,107,679 2,037,090 1,346,275 4,727,670 7,050,034 10,523,523 3,317,165 30,109,436

— — 141 — 876 — — 1,017
FVTPL
60,486 760 2,054 21,629 14,812 2,501 — 102,242
769 5,440 6,547 42,466 22,830 7,128 — 85,180
*x 1,623,797 354,801 215,289 250,474 46,856 38,629 — 2,529,846
— 78,222 158,141 110,912 8,153 —_ — 355,428
12,461,763 1,063,032 1,581,922 4,725,038 3,121,105 24,795 — 22,977,655
— 14,399 24,999 77,835 276,082 349,560 — 742,875
109,527 148,125 58,588 214,862 60,474 31,614 — 623,190
14,256,342 1,664,779 2,047,681 5,443,216 3,551,188 454,227 — 27,417,433
(13,148,663) 372,311 (701,406) (715,546) 3,498,846 10,069,296 3,317,165 2,692,003
*
*%
* Kk 1
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2018 12 31
1 1 3 1 5
3 1 5 (***)
564,172 —_ — 7,303 — —_ 2,801,101 3,372,576
* 153,907 897,537 257,859 316,762 69,856 577 —_ 1,696,498
61 13,448 15,369 24,278 11,645 6,534 — 71,335
21,943 914,097 621,648 2,600,254 3,567,565 7,249,737 70,888 15,046,132
—FVTPL 6,164 44,236 44,671 109,843 405,552 131,963 62,918 805,347
—FVOCI — 52,098 57,803 244,232 775,046 272,032 28,952 1,430,163
— 7 39,686 130,695 415,725 2,473,116 1,459,953 — 4,519,182
— — — — — — 29,124 29,124
— — — — — — 290,404 290,404
257,916 49,564 19,372 15,912 18,176 38,240 39,599 438,779

1,004,170 2,010,666 1,147,417 3,734,309 7,320,956 9,159,036 3,322,986 27,699,540

— — — 71 410 — — 481
FVTPL
67,859 478 382 5,570 11,334 1777 — 87,400
415 14,081 15,570 28,094 9,778 5,635 — 73,573
*x 1,129,334 510,830 302,505 310,489 31,569 44,569 — 2,329,296
— 60,071 126,157 140,227 14,450 449 — 341,354
11,578,642 919,716 1,337,250 4,978,718 2,582,550 12,058 — 21,408,934
— 19,689 7,021 65,335 238,450 287,347 — 617,842
285,333 53,041 33,234 90,604 20,299 13,266 — 495,777
13,061,583 1,577,906 1,822,119 5,619,108 2,908,840 365,101 — 25,354,657
(12,057,413) 432,760 (674,702)  (1,884,799) 4,412,116 8,793,935 3,322,986 2,344,883
*
*%
* Kk 1
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Q)
2019 12 31
1 3 1
5
1 5 *kk
615,890 1,018 7,463 20,743 — — 2676415 3,321,529
* 181,303 849,397 314,046 502,881 59,472 1,691 — 1,908,790
*x 34,735 1,060,503 911,870 3,516,705 6,309,480 12,914,107 239,473 24,986,873
—FVTPL 10,371 10,634 44,638 399,486 181,783 202,154 131,736 980,802
—FVOCI — 43,294 89,714 266,634 843,800 349,679 50,326 1,643,447
— — 67,422 145,481 810,717 2,941,781 2,146,968 3,097 6,115,466
369,736 21,787 12,345 5,769 5,887 60 684 416,268
1,212,035 2,054,055 1525557 5522935 10,342,203 15,614,659 3,101,731 39,373,175
*
* %
*k*k 1
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2019 12 31
1 1 3 1
5
3 1 5
_ — 141 — 876 — _ 1,017
FVTPL
60,547 762 2,062 23,413 15,116 2,501 — 104,401
* 1,624,350 356,090 217,433 255,480 52,646 52,003 — 2558002
— 78,593 159,434 111,849 10,886 — — 360,762
12463090 1066170 1686585 5012827 3,704,857 25,960 — 23,959,489
— 15,025 29,741 98,866 362,680 567,317 — 1,073,629
360,741 7,017 3,290 7,539 31,018 18,327 _ 428,832
14,508,728 1524557  2,098686 5500974 4,178,079 666,108 28,486,132
— 28 (208) 85 (923) 240 — (779)
— 49,846 619,031 400059 2,696,186 1,616,510 34,653 _ 5416285
_ (52452)  (605109)  (401,263) (2,717,224) (1,612,491) (34,825) _ (5423364
(2,606) 13,922 (1,204) (21,038) 4,019 172 _ (7,079)
*
2018 12 31
1 1 3 1
5
3 1 5 *kk
564,172 — 3781 7,303 — —  2801,101 3376357
* 154,798 902,607 318,728 342,153 101,025 710 — 1,820,021
*x 22,507 988,087 801611 3,301,244 6,077,004 11,176,249 238,194 22,605,796
—FVTRL 5,844 44,867 46,378 118,910 417,216 152,175 63,225 848,615
B =Vio'e! 196 52,536 59,844 270,134 873,992 321,176 23757 1,601,635
— 106 40,020 136,471 504,023 2,904,342 1,681,478 — 5266440
297,855 19,034 12,285 5,497 6,639 688 1,016 343,014
1045478 2048051 1,379,098 4549264 10,380,218 13332476 3,127,293 35,861,878
*
* %
* k% 1
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2018 12 31
1 1 3 1
5
3 1 5
_ _ — 71 410 — _ 481
FVTPL
69,065 484 389 5,674 13,173 1,848 — 90,633
* 1,129,795 514,886 310,656 321,458 36,610 61,249 — 2374654
— 60,697 127,262 144,261 14,952 569 — 347,741
11,595,139 937,070 1,379,365 5075713 2,685,178 13,414 — 21685879
— 20,209 10,896 86,316 317,424 490,724 — 925,569
270,385 11,949 1,719 2,418 15,164 6,453 _ 308,088
13,064,384 1545295 1,830,287 5635911 3,082,911 574,257 25733045
— (1,675) 54 65 3 1,270 — (283)
— 23964 1825500 1206634 2,562,995 182,370 38,339 _ 5839802
_ (18,965) (1,786,499) (1,188,652) (2,547,242)  (161,666) (37,690) —  (5,740,714)
4,999 39,001 17,982 15,753 20,704 649 _ 99,088
*
(ii1)
2019 12 31
1 3 1
1 5
3 1 5

1,309,180 114,410 197,065 469,933 747,810 124,673 2,963,071

2018 12 31
1 3 1
3 1 5
1,167,456 143,694 236,602 614,062 873,022 194,676 3,229,512
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51(d)
VaR
VaR
® VaR
VaR
250 VaR 99%
1
VaR
2019
2019 12 31
35 47 71 24
88 84 112 54
15 40 77 6
VaR o1 108 140 64
2018
2018 12 31
32 28 42 15
66 64 115 43
7 23 39 7
VaR 88 74 113 52
VaR

VaR VaR
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VaR
) VaR VaR 1
1
) VaR
99%
©) VaR
(i)
2019 2018 2019 2018
-1% (146) 44 (379) (332)
-1% 260 366 (1,492) (1,298)
1 1
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2019 12 31
3,035,646 141,588 10,890 129,792 3,317,916
* 1,214,612 562,308 37,690 72,944 1,887,554
30,693 19,773 7,341 10,504 68,311
14,809,532 869,350 351,007 296,663 16,326,552
—FVTPRL 909,353 32,450 6,076 14,199 962,078
—FVvOCI 1,041,158 320,611 36,698 78,405 1,476,872
— 5,030,922 102,767 13,345 61,133 5,208,167
2,981 930 152 28,427 32,490
186,232 97,883 751 1,695 286,561
235,342 103,146 5,550 198,897 542,935
26,496,471 2,250,806 469,500 892,659 30,109,436
— 141 — 876 1,017

FVTPL

20,845 14,433 22 66,942 102,242
45,060 23,546 6,157 10,417 85,180
*x 1,713,312 658,857 27,766 129,911 2,529,846
28,202 231,440 16,247 79,539 355,428
21,509,155 837,901 369,830 260,769 22,977,655
370,064 320,025 11,719 41,067 742,875
490,017 110,278 19,481 3414 623,190
24,176,655 2,196,621 451,222 592,935 27,417,433
2,319,816 54,185 18,278 299,724 2,692,003

2,249,604 499,355 78,134 135,978 2,963,071

* %
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2018 12 31
3,157,631 121,780 8,121 85,044 3,372,576
* 990,549 621,782 26,561 57,606 1,696,498
29,939 28,169 4,817 8,410 71,335
13,537,076 882,110 341,564 285382 15,046,132
—FVTPRL 763,190 29,984 2,641 9,532 805,347
—Fvocl 1,112,791 253,590 4,011 59,771 1,430,163
— 4,354,632 89,283 24,594 50,673 4,519,182
827 1,687 — 26,610 29,124
139,113 149,249 754 1,288 290,404
186,738 110,120 6,360 135,561 438,779
24,272,486 2,287,754 419,423 719877 27,699,540
2 _ _ 479 481
FVTPL
11,698 11,374 — 64,328 87,400
32,412 31,708 1,752 7,701 73,573
*x 1,475,121 677,109 27,341 149,725 2,329,296
27,086 242,586 13,115 58,567 341,354
20,059,293 823,474 313,342 212,825 21,408,934
273,881 301,010 4,125 38,826 617,842
376,027 91,201 10,143 18,406 495,777
22,255,520 2,178,462 369,818 550,857 25,354,657
2,016,966 109,292 49,605 169,020 2,344,883

2,476,089 551,927 65,563 135,933 3,229,512

* %
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2019 12 31
100 100
(6,951) (29,652) 6,951 32,313
(979) (6,416) 979 6,420
(3,630) (43) 3,630 43
1,553 (1,144) (1,553) 1,147
(10,007) (37,255) 10,007 39,923
2018 12 31
100 100
(3,281) (30,513) 3,281 33,003
(1,645) (5,679) 1,645 5,683
936 — (936) _
(59 (690) 59 691

(4,049) (36,882) 4,049 39,467
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2019 12 31
3 1
3 5
1 5
2,970,858 — — — 347,058 3,317,916
* 1,317,721 491,964 52,363 842 24,664 1,887,554
— — — — 68,311 68,311
10,849,253 4,966,835 320,940 135,154 54,370 16,326,552
—FVTPL 124,802 128,720 45,262 102,776 560,518 962,078
—FVOCI 232,121 233,683 677,791 278,014 55,263 1,476,872
— 289,260 700,577 2,405542 1,812,788 — 5,208,167
— — — — 32,490 32,490
— — — — 286,561 286,561
3,395 76 — — 539,464 542,935

15,787,410 6,521,855 3,501,808 2,329,574 1,968,699 30,109,436

141 — 876 — — 1,017
FVPTL
834 19,762 12,068 — 69,578 102,242
— — — — 85,180 85,180
*x 2,212,773 236,160 38,775 38,624 3514 2,529,846
245,817 102,708 6,903 — — 355,428
14,687,406 4,670,307 3,084,830 24,008 511,104 22,977,655
231,676 39,201 122,446 349,552 — 742,875
2,549 5,087 15,970 7,211 592,373 623,190

17,381,196 5,073,225 3,281,868 419,395 1,261,749 27,417,433
(1,593,786) 1,448,630 220,030 1,910,179 N/A N/A

* %

292/474



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)

oOoOooodn
2018 12 31
3 1
3 5
1 5
3,041,055 — — — 331,521 3,372,576
* 1,259,592 313,451 66,142 573 56,740 1,696,498
— — — — 71,335 71,335
10,876,334 3,723,420 207,848 181,472 57,058 15,046,132
—FVTPL 115,666 109,835 382,531 127,288 70,027 805,347
—FVOCI 179,158 245,075 715,623 261,355 28,952 1,430,163
— 239,828 421,975 2,402,746 1,454,633 — 4,519,182
— — — — 29,124 29,124
— — — — 290,404 290,404
8,584 192 — — 430,003 438,779

15,720,217 4,813,948 3,774890 2,025,321 1,365,164 27,699,540

— 71 410 — — 481
FVPTL
— 4,443 9,323 — 73,634 87,400
— — — — 73,573 73,573
*x 1,943,520 306,350 20,996 44,133 14,297 2,329,296
207,061 132,971 873 449 — 341,354
13,519,006 4,709,018 2,577,977 11,468 591,465 21,408,934
176,592 52,694 105,509 283,047 — 617,842
7,935 354 1,452 1,467 484,569 495,777

15,854,114 5,205,901 2,716,540 340,564 1,237,538 25,354,657
(133,897) (391,953) 1,058,350 1,684,757 N/A N/A

* %
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2013 1 1
2014
2018
8.50 9.50
7.50 8.50
Tierl

4

10.50

CBIRC

CBRC
IRB

11.50

PRC GAAP

294/474

EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)

oooooog
ICAAP
Tierl Tier2
CBRC
IMA
Tierl Tierl

Tierl



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)
oOoOooodn

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
Tierl 2,472,774 2,247,021
356,407 356,407
149,067 151,968
292,149 261,636
304,876 278,980
1,367,180 1,205,924
4,178 3,752
(1,083) (11,646)
Tierl 15,500 14,988
9,038 8,820
2,933 1,927
(4,451) (3,739)

Tierl
7,980 7,980
Tierl 2,457,274 2,232,033
Tierl 200,249 80,110
Tierl 199,456 79,375
793 735
Tierl 2,657,523 2,312,143
Tier2 463,956 332,742
Tier2 272,680 202,761
189,569 127,990
1,707 1,991
Tier2 — —

Tier2

3,121,479 2,644,885
18,616,886 17,190,992
Tierl 13.20% 12.98%
Tierl 14.27% 13.45%
16.77% 15.39%
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@
2019 12 31
1 2 3
4,650 62,651 1,010 68,311
FVTPL — 159,657 — 159,657
FVTPL — 5,276 1,149 6,425
FvocCl 7,637 416,356 — 423,993
FVTPL
6,002 299,342 52,913 358,257
14,410 2,037 64,172 80,619
26,224 441,534 55,444 523,202
46,636 742,913 172,529 962,078
FvocCl
341,281 1,080,281 47 1,421,609
1,017 9,351 44,895 55,263
342,298 1,089,632 44,942 1,476,872
401,221 2,476,485 219,630 3,097,336
— 896,318 — 896,318
FVTPL
— 19,580 — 19,580
— 60,454 — 60,454
— 13,064 — 13,064
48 8,504 592 9,144
48 101,602 592 102,242
3,990 80,138 1,052 85,180
4,038 1,078,058 1,644 1,083,740
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2018 12 31
1 2 3
5,019 65,356 960 71,335
FVTPL — 174,794 — 174,794
FVTPL — 924 444 1,368
FVOCI 11,023 349,460 — 360,483
FVTPL
3,802 205,220 34,727 243,749
7,475 408 20,107 27,990
19,423 362,672 151,513 533,608
30,700 568,300 206,347 805,347
FVOCI
280,572 1,119,222 143 1,399,937
703 9,727 19,489 29,919
_ _ 307 307
281,275 1,128,949 19,939 1,430,163
328,017 2,287,783 227,690 2,843,490
— 851,647 — 851,647
FVTPL
_ 11,480 — 11,480
_ 67,266 — 67,266
_ 2,285 — 2,285
130 4,867 1,372 6,369
130 85,898 1,372 87,400
3,986 67,413 2,174 73,573
4,116 1,004,958 3,546 1,012,620

298/474



EDINETOOOO
O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)

OooooOodd
(b) 3
3
2019 3 2019
11 12 31
960 944 — 17 (519) (392) 1,010
FVTPL
444 19 — 686 — — 1,149
FVTPL
34,727 3,255 — 16,803 (1,235) (637) 52,913
20,107 20 — 44,899 (172) (682) 64,172
151,513 488 — 31,097  (127,580) (74) 55,444
FVOCI
143 — ) 47 (142) — 47
19,489 — (1,714) 27,121 ) — 44,895
307 — 33 — (340) _ _
227,690 4,726 (1,682) 120670 (129,989 (1,785) 219,630
FVTPL
(1,372) (160) — — 107 833 (592)
(2,174) (203) — (89) 244 1,170 (1,052)

(3,546) (363) — (89) 351 2,003 (1,644)
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2018 3 2018
11 12 31
1,100 (43) — 323 (328) (92) 960
FVTPL
410 a4 — — (10) — 444
FVTPL
7,834 67 — 31,422 (1,021) (3,575) 34,727
5,522 297 — 14,445 (157) — 20,107
170,240 (320) — 92,119  (107,271) (3255) 151,513
FVOCI
1,853 — — 143 (882) (971) 143
2,627 — 649 16,232 (19) — 19,489
_ _ (32) 339 - — 307
189,586 45 617 155023  (109,688) (7.893) 227,690
FVTPL
(1,349) (135) — (193) 299 6 (1,372)
(1,662) 100 — (1,143) 291 240 (2,174)
(3,011) (35) — (1,336) 590 246 (3,546)
3
2019
782 3,581 4,363
2018

2,015 (2,005) 10
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0] 1 2

(i) 2 3

)

2019 12 31
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(e
2019 12 31
1 2 3
5,208,167 5,293,114 92,991 4,979,955 220,168
5,208,167 5,293,114 92,991 4,979,955 220,168
Tier2
350,204 355,307 — 355,307 —
350,204 355,307 — 355,307 —
2018 12 31
1 2 3
4,519,182 4,560,733 67,225 4,280,407 213,101
4,519,182 4,560,733 67,225 4,280,407 213,101
Tier2
282,459 285,834 — 285,834 —
282,459 285,834 — 285,834 —
0]

(ii) Tier2
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53
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
3,251,450 3,313,748
1,189,496 1,031,402
35,991 38,295
644,278 521,393
15,469,899 14,211,777
7,087,260 6,348,656
—FVTPL 804,076 740,645
—FVOCI 1,212,515 1,245,837
— 5,070,669 4,362,174
145,320 122,110
34,242 34,242
127,518 124,548
60,829 56,220
365,179 269,769
28,411,462 26,072,160
1,017 410
FVTPL 85,555 78,737
50,726 42,120
2,162,131 1,644,147
74,384 300,988
297,696 281,380
22,178,290 20,646,928
92,907 82,946
594,828 499,291
302,505 247,348
25,840,039 23,824,295
356,407 356,407
199,456 79,375
756,163 700,637
1,259,397 1,111,446
2,571,423 2,247,865
28,411,462 26,072,160
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2020 3 27 0.2628
2019 12 31 93,664 2019 12 31
2019
2019 COVID-19
2018 1 2020 3
CBIRC 30.0
Tierl
Tierl Tier2
2020 1 7 Tierl Tier2
Tierl 40.0 Tierl
Tier2 40.0
Tier2 Tierl Tier2
55
56

2020 3 27
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Yeas ended 31 December 2019
iEn RMB millions, unless othenwise stated)

EDINETOOOO
000000000000 n(Eess?)
Oooooooa

MNotes 2019 018
Interest mcome B 1038154 SR (a4
Interest expene B (431,228 (375,578
NET INTEREST INCOME B BOBST6 571.518
Fee and commistion incomie 7 171,641 12347
Few and commission espense 7 (16,0411 (17.045)
MET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME 7 155,600 145,301
Met trading ircame B BaaT 1.846
Mot {lasaigain on hinancial nvestments 9 (3.682) 1,345
Other aperating mcome, nat v} BT ERLR
GPFERATING INCOPME 776,002 125021
Oparatng sxpéniis 1 {207,776 {194, 20a)
Imparrment [oiies on aisets 14 [178,957) (161,594)
DPERATING PROFT TEG IS 69 324
Shate of prafits of associates and joint ventures 2,520 31,089
 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 351,769 W43
Imcome tax expente 15 (7R.428) (73,6090)
_ PROFIT FOR THE YEAR o 313,361 208723
Allribeit slrle 10
bauity ho'ders of the parent compary 321 297 616
Hon-contealling misrests 1.137 1,047
 Profit for the year 13,361 98723
EARNINGS PER SHARE
— Basic (AMB yuan) 18 086 082
— Diluted (RME yuan) 18 085 o.82

Details of the dividends declased and paid or proposed ane disclosed in Nate 17 1o the financial statements

The nates on pages 164 to 290 lorm part of these financial statements.

156 Icec @
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 Decernber 1015
{in A4S millicns, un'ess otherwse stated)

EDINETOOOO
000000000000 n(Eess?)
Oooooooa

Notes 0% 2018
Profit for the year 313,361 296,723
Other comprehenséoe mcome [after tax, net) an
items that will pot be redassified 1o profit o loss:
Changes m fair walue of eguity instruments designated as a1
fair value thiough oiher comprehensive income (368} 1,605
Grther comprehensive inoome reccgnised under equity method 11 L]
Oithers {53 (5
Itemns that may be reclassified subseguently to profit or los:
Changes in fair value of debt instrumenss measured st
fair value thicugh other comprehensive income 8,026 24,599
Credit bosses of debt instrsments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (B4) (1,330
Reserve from cash flow hedging instruments (634) (531
Orther comprehendive income recognised under equity mathod {53400 488
Forpign currency trarskaticn differences 411 3.325
Orthers (329) (503)
Sabtotal of other comprehersye income for the year 10,708 17809
Total comprehensive income for the year 324,065 326,532
Total comprehensive moome atfnbutable to:
Equity holders of the parent compary 332,853 324,981
Hon-controling mienests 1216 1.551
324,068 316,532
The nofes on pages 184 to 290 form part of these financial statements.
hanwsl Haport 2000 157
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

1 Decnenber 2019
{In AMIE millions, unles otherwise stated)

Haotes 31 Decamber 201% 31 December 1018

ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks 19 3317916 3.371.516
D from banks and other financial institutions 20 1.042 368 S62 44%
Derivative financial assets 21 68,311 71.335
Reverse rapunchase agresments 22 Ba5,1BS 134,045
Loans and advances 1o customers. 23 16,326,552 15046132
Financial imvestments 24 1EAT AT 6,754 552
= Finarcal mvvesiments measured at faer vadue through
prafit or loss 862,078 BOG 347
= Finarcal Evesiments measoned at far value through
ather comprehensive iIncome 1476872 1,420,163
= Finarcal eyesiments measured at amortised cost 5208167 4519182
Investments in assaciates and ppint ventues 6 32460 29,124
Froperty and equipment 27 286,561 290,404
Dwferred income tax assets 28 62,536 £8.375
Othar assots 28 480,359 350,404
TOTAL ASSETS 30,109,436 27,656,540

The notes on pages 164 to 290 foem part of these financial satements

158 icec @
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

31 December 2019

EDINETOOOO
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{In AME millicns, uniess otherwise stated)

HNotes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
LIABILITIES
Due 1o eentral hanks o7 481
Funancial lishilaies designoted o of fow value through prala o less k[ ] 102,242 B7.400
Dierivative financial liabilivies 21 BE5, 180 73,573
Due o banks snd ather hinancial instirons R 2,266,573 1,814,495
Repurchase sgreements a2 263,273 514,801
Certificates of deposin 13 355428 341,354
D 18 cusiomens 34 22977 655 21408 934
Ineame tax payable G615 B, 741
Deferred income tax labilives 8 1,873 1.247
Debt securities ssued 15 fa2.874 B17 642
Other liabilities 36 525,125 A00ETD
TOTAL LIABILITIES 27417433 25,354,657
EQuITY
Equity attributable to eguity holders of the parent company
Share capital a7 356,407 356,407
Dther eguity Insruments EL: | 206,132 86,051
LB 39 TS0 BEO.BFT?
Ratained profits 1,368,536 1,206, 566
267686 2.330.001
Nomcontrolling interests 15,817 14,882
TOTAL EQUITY 2,692,003 2,344,883
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 30,100,436 27,699,540
Chen Siging Gu Shu Thang Werwu
Chairman Wice Chairman General Manager of Finance
and Prasident and Accounting Department
The notes on pages 164 1o 290 feem part of these financial staterments.
hunwsl Hepore 200009 ]ltlc_:u
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

Year Ended 31 December 2019
{Bn RMIE millions, unles otherwise stated)
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0] Includes the appropriation made by overseas branches and subsidiaries in the amounts of RMBS3 milkon and AMETAS milkon,
T el

(5] Includes the appropriation made by overseds branches and subsichanes in the amounts of BMB2 mafficn and FEMBY, 154 millon,
resprcineedy.

The notes on pages 164 to 290 foem part of these financial statements.
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Consalidated Statement of Changes In Equity

Year Ended 31 December 2019
{In AW millicns, unkess otherwise stated)
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{ih  Imchades the appropeiation made by overseas branches and subsidisies 0 the amoonts of RMBI03 million and
RMBSDE million, respectvely.

{il}  Imclodes the reversal made by overseas branches in the amounts ol AMED million and appropriation made by subsdiaries in
the amounts of BMB2, 345 millicn, respestively.

Tha notes on pages 164 1o 290 fonm part of thse financial staterments.

hanwsl Haport 2000 161
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Year Ended 31 December 2013
{Bn RMIE millions, unles otherwise stated)

MNotes 2019 018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prafit belore taxation 351,789 2413
Adpustments for
Share of profits ol aiocistes and poent ventumes 12,500 3,089
Depreciation 26,219 20,315
Amoriisation 1" 2.315 2,333
Amrortisation of financial investments i1, 360 283
bmpairment lbsses on aidets 14 178057 161,594
Unrealised loss on (oregn exchange B574 20,003
nterest pxpense on debl securnies ssued 2B.116 23175
Acereted interest on impaired loans 12,3561 {2,659)
Het losatgaind on disposal of financial investrments 4,660 {1,116
Met traing {gainy loss on equily investmants B (2,316 151
Mt igainlf loss on changes a1 fair value (11,312} 6.920
Het gan on disposal and overage of property and equipment ard
othier assets (other than repossessed assets) (1,215) (1,787)
Bwndend ncome k] (978) {22

E1BSE3 598919

Net decreasedincrease) n operating a5t

Bue from central banks 135,320 297,030
Due from banks and other financial institutions. (139 B44) (B8.015)
Fmancial inyestmpnts maasred 3t Eair value through podit o los [41.058) (301, Ba8)
Reverse repurchase agreements (150, 145 158257
Lowes amd sdvances 1o cusiomens (1,416 845 11,258 665)
Other awsats (124, 746 150 444
(1,777,326 (542 T98)
et increatefdecreate} m oporating kabilitios

Financisl liatilties desgnated aa at fair valus through prodit or foss 12,103 (12,329
Due to central banks EEs ] 2
Due to banks and other financlal irssiiutions 447 BT 70 OEE
Repurchase agreements (251, 3490 (531,619
Cenificates of deposst 9.762 66.036
Due Lo cuslomars 1,533,642 1,780 568
Dther lalil tes 173,533 237,.2861)
1,926,103 1,136,393

Met cash fiosws from operating activdiees pefone tax . ?E!!E:l ?gi,g'in
Inccame tax pad (T2 83 (67 TR1)
Net cash Tlosws from eperating actnities 694,521 724,133

The notes an pages 164 to 290 form pan of these financial satements.
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Consalidated Cash Flow Statement

Year Ended 31 December 2019
{In AW millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

312/474

Notes 2019 1018
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment and other assets {34,15%) (60, 456)
Froceeds fram disposal of propeny and equiprment and
othes assets (other than repossessed assels) 9,587 2,855
Purchases of financial investrrents (2,466,838 RAT1.83m
Proceeds from sale and redemption of financial investments 1,613,475 1495633
Inviestments in associates and jaint wentures (2.532) (T
Froceeds from disposal of assooates and joint ventures 752 1.168
Dendends receved 3,835 LR
Het cash fioes from mvesting actwities (875,967} {731,745
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procesds from mauance of other equity inuruments 150,000 =
Capital inpection by non-controlling shareholderss 57 125
Proceeds from ssuance of debt securitien 140,674 1,045,746
Intorest paid on debt securties {24 985} 22,917
Repayment of debt secusitios {1.020,947) (568, 232y
Cash paymaent for redemption of other equity mstruments (32.787) -
Aruiitmon of nonscontrolling inierests (51 -
Dwodends pasd on ordinary shares {E9,315) (ES B23)
Drondends pasd an pf:‘menn.- shares 4, 525]) 4, 5065
Devidends pasd to non-contimlling thareholdee (33E) 32N
Cash paymen: for ather fimancng actrties d, 950 -
Wit caih fiown from finanong activties 112,874 (¥5.924)
MNET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {68,572} (43.536)
Cash and cash egisvalents at beginning of the year 1,508,523 1,520,330
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 9,462 12,729
| CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 42 1450413 1,509,523
MNET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES INCLUDE:
Iterest received 1,074,551 873,512
Irterest paid (353,465 (351,828)
The notes on pages 164 10 290 form pan of these financial statements.
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

Financial Statements for the yeas ended 31 December 201%
{Bn RMIE millioms, unless otherwise stated)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Industnad and Commescal Bank of China Limited {the “Bank ") which was previousty known as industnal and Commarcial
Bank of China [*ICBC), used 1o be a wholly-state-owned commental bank established on 1 Lanuary 1984 based on
the authorisation of the State Council and the People’s Bank of Chana {the “PROC ") of the People’s Republe of China
{tha *PRC®) On I8 October 2005, with the approval of the State Councl, ICBC wis restructurad and ncorporated as
# joint-siock lemited compary. The jont-stock limded company undertook all the assets and labilities of ICBC upon the
restructurmg, On X7 October 2006, the Bank was successfully listed on both Shanghai Stock Exchange and The Siock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,

The Bank obtaned ity finance permit Ko B000VH1 11000007 from the China Banking and Insurance Regulatony Commésion
{the “CBIRC™) ol the FRC, The Bank obtained ity business keense with unified socal credit code 911000001 000039627 from
the State Administration for Industry and Commerce of thie PRC. The legal regresentative & Chen Siging and the registensd
office is located a1 Mo, 55 Fuxingmennel Avenue, Xcheng District, Beiing, the FRC

The Bank’s stock codes of A Shares anc H Shares listed on the Shanghal Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange of Hong
Eaong Limited are 621398 and 1398, respectwely. The Bank's affshore preference share is Fsted on the Stock Exchangse of
Hong Kong Limited and the stodk code is 4604, The Bank's domestic prefesence shares are fsted on the Shanghai Stodc
Exchangs and the stock codes are 360011 and 360036,

The prncipsd activitves of the Bank and ity subsadiaries (oollectively referred to o the " Group®™) comprise conpasate and
persanal banking, Treasury operabomn, investmen? banking, aset management, trusd, fimancial lessing, insurance and other
financial services. Domestic establshments reler to the Head Office of the Bank, branches and subsidiaries establshed imide
Mainland China Owerseas establishments refer 1o branchis and subsidiaries established under local jurisdctions cutside
Mainland China,

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(1} Statement of compliance

The consclidated financial staternents have boen prepared in accordance with Intermatanal Financial Beporting Standards
("FRSs") ard migrpretations promulgated by the Intormational Accounting Standasds Board (the *1ASE") and the dischotung
requiremaents ol the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,

(2) Basis of preparation

The consoldated financal statements have been propared wunder the hastoncal cost convention, except for deswatie
financiad instruments, financial assets and financial labsites measured ot fair value through prefit or loss (*FYTIPLT) and
firancial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensse ncome (“FYOCE], as further explained i the respeciive
accounting policies below

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRSS requires management to make judgemeants, sstimates and
assurnglant that affect the applcation of policies and reported amounts of assets and Habilites, income and espenses
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Judgements madie by management i the appheation of (FRSs that have
sgnificant effect an the financal statements and major sources of estrmation uncerasnty are discussed in Hote 4
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Motes to the Financial Statements

Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

(3) Change in accounting policies

The IASE has msued the following amendments to FRSs (ncluding bntemational Accounting Standards ("1A%s"), and
[ntemational Financial Reporting Interpratations Committes (“IFRICS" ) that are affective in 20018 and relevant 1o the Group's

oparation

RS 16 Laases

WFRIC 23 Lincerfainty over income fay freatrments

Amendments to FRS 9 Frapcal insruments  “Prepayment  features  with  negatie
compensation and modificatrons of faancal Nablines™

Amendments to &5 28 Irvasirnent in asseciates and foint ventures “Long-term infenests in

auiocates and foinf veniumes ™
Annual Improvernents fo FRS Standards 2015-2017 Cpole
Armendments fo A5 19 Employes denefits “Flan Amendment, Curtaliment or Sentlament”

The perincipal ellects ol adopting these amended IFRSs are ab lolloess

IFRS 16, "Leases™
The Group has staly sdooted IFRS 16 Leased | *IFRS 167) fram 1 lanuary 2019

IFRS 16 introduced a single, on-balance sheel accounting model for lessees. As @ result, the Group, a5 8 bessee, has
recognised nght-of-use assets representing s nights 1o use the underhning assets and lease Babiibes representing its
obligation 1o make lease payments. Lessor aocounting remains semelar to previous accounting policies

The Group has appked IFRS 16 using the modified retrospectiee agproach, wnder which the cumulative effect of inrtial
apphcaton is recognised in retained eamings at 1 January 2019, Accordingdy. the comparative nformation presented for
2018 has not been restated — (e 1l 5 presented, as previowsly reparted, under 1AS 17 and refated interpretations. The
details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed below:

Definition of a lease

Previously, the Group detenmined at contracl npeplion whether an arrangermen! was o0 conlained a leawe under IFRIC 4
Determiming Whether an Arrangement contams a Lease (*IFRIC 4] The Group now asesses whether a confract b or
containg o leae based on the new definition of a lease. Under FRS 16, a contract i, o containg, a lease if the cantract
corveys a ight to contred thee use of an identified asset for a perod of time i echange for consideration,

On tramstion o IFRS 16, the Group elested to apply the practical expedient to grandiather the sssessment of which
tramsactions are leases. 1t applied FRS 16 only to contracts that were previcusly identifisd a3 leases. Contracts that wens
nat idertified a1 leases under 145 17 and FRIC 4 were not resssessed, Therefore, the definition of & lease under IFRS 16 has
been appied anly to contracts entered nio of changed on or after 1 January 2019,

For a contract that containy & lease component, the Group has elected not fo separate non-lease components and will
Instead accoum for the bease and ner-legse companents & a single lease component.

The Group acting as a lessee
The Group leases many asseds, includsng progenies, elecronic emuigments, transpentation, and ather office equipments.

A5 a lessee, the Group previously classified leases a5 operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease
transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of cwnership. Undar IFRS 16, the Group indudes 2! major leases in the
balance sheat, and recognies nght-ofamse assets and bease liabilities

However, the Group has elected not 1o recogrise nght-ol-use assets ard kease Habilines lor some beates of low-value asiets,
and leases wih less than 12 months of lease lerm. The Group tecagnises the lease payrmenis associafed with these leases &
an expense on a straght-line bats over the lense term,
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Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2015
[ AME milligns, unless otherwise fated)

Significant accounting policies

The Group necognives & nghi-of-uie st and 4 lesse Hability at the lsase eommeacement date. The right-of-Lws et w
initially measied a2 cost, and subsequently at cont leis any sccurmalated depreciastion and mpairment lostes, and adpitied
for certan remessiurements of the leaie lability, The Group apphes 185 36 mpairmant of Asers to determine whether the
tight-af-ute auet is imaasred and to accaunt fod any impabment ko idertilied The Graup presents the rght-al-uwe aset in
ather asets

The [easa labilty 5 imitially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted usng the Group’s mcremental barrowang rate. The lease hablity is subseguently increased by the interest
cost on the kease kability and decreased by bease payment made It s remeasured when there 5 2 change i future lease
payments atsing from a change in an index or rate, a change in the estsmate of the amount expecied to be payable undar
& rescuad walue guarantee, of 35 approprate, changes in the assessment of whether a purchase or extenson option s
reasonably certain fo be exercised or a tarmination cpbon is reasonably certain not to be exercsed. The Geoup presents the
lease kability in other kabilities.

Tha Group has appied judgement 1o determing the ease tefm lor some bease contracts i which it & a lesses that include
renewial options, The assessment of whether the Group & reasensbly certan to exenase sich options impacts the lease term,
which signilicantly affects the amount af ae lasilities and right-of-use asiets recognised.

Impacts on IFRS 16 transition

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 wing the moddied retiospective approach. Under this approach, comparativg
information is nod restated. Right-of-use sssets are measweed al an amound equal o thie las Lability, adinted by U
amowd ol any prepesd or accreed bease payments, At the date of ntial spplication, the Group nfsally recognised lease
liaksisties of RMEDE.BET million and right-cl-use sssely of RMB0.296 millon avd 1o impacts on the begirning balance of
retaired samings

When measunng lease Balslities for leases, the Group discounted lease payments usng s iremenial borrewang cate at
1 lamuary 2019, Each irstitution af the Group uses interest rate that & lessee would have to pay 1o barrow over & srnilar
tetrn, and with & smilar security, the funds neceisary 1o obtain an esset of & umilar value 1o the nghi-of -use 2238t in a somilar
econamic environment as incremental bosrowing rate.

Group Bank

Operatng leaie commitment o 31 Decermber 2018

a3 disclosed in the Group's conzoldated linancial staterments 21,683 13,087

— Recognition exemplion of love-valee assets and leases

wath less than 12 menths of lease term ot transation (S48 {Faa)

— Extenson oplions reasanably certain to be exercised 1.013 Ly
Leae payments under IFRS 16 {without discounting) 21,748 12807
Praent wvalue dacoumted usng the mciementa bomgwing rate at 1 lanuary 3019 19,475 11,74
Finance lease liabilities recognised as a3 11 Decernber 2018 1.392 .
Lease liabilities recognised a5 at 1 lanuary 2019 25,867 1741
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Motes to the Financial Statements
Finarcal Statements for 1he year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

IFRIC 23, “Uncertainty over income tax treatments”

This intespestation provices guidance on how 1o apphy LAS 12, Income taxed when there i uncerainty over whether & tax
treatmen will be accopted by the tax autharity

Under the interpratation, the key 1t is whether it s probable that the tax authonty will accept the entity's tax treatmeant

- it is probable, then the entsty should measure curment and delerted tax conustently with the tax treatment in s tax
redurm,

. It it is net probable, then the entity should rellect the effect of uncertainty in its accounting Tor income tax by wung
the “eapected vakue™ approach or the “the most likely amownt” approach — whicheser better predicts the resobution
aof the uncertainty and in that case the tax amounts i the finanoal sataments will not be the same as the amounts in
thie tax rejurm

The adoptien has no matensl impact on the finanoal pesition and the financial result of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial instruments “Prepayment features with negative compensation
and modifications of financial liabilities™
The LASE has changed FRS 9% requirements in two ameas of finanoal Irstruments accounting

L Financial assets containing prapayment features anth negative compensation can now be meassed a1 amorhsed cost
ar at Lair walue throwugh ather comprohensive income (FYWOCT A they mesat the other refmvant ieguirements of IFRS S

- For the companies thal have modified or exchanged fixed rate financial kabibtes that do not result in derecognition,
thiy were required to recaleulate the amorned cost of the modified Bnancial liability by discourting the modified
contractual cash flows uvsing the ongenal EIR; and recognese any adjustment n praht or bods

The adoptien has no matens! impact on the financal posioen and the finanoial result of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 28, Investment in assoclates and joint ventures "Long-term inferests fn
associates and joint ventures”

The 1858 has clarified that IFRS 9 apphes to long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the entity's net imsestment 0
an associate o joint veniure. In applying IFRS 9, the entity does not take account of any adjustmanis 1o the carrying ameunt
of long-term inerests that arise fram applying LAS 28

The adoption has no matensl impact on the finanoal poaition and the financial reault of the Group

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

The 2015-2017 cycle of annual improvements contain amencments to four standards including FRS 3 Business
combiatons, IFRS 11 Joint arangements, 1AS 12 income faxes and LAS 23 Bomowing costs

The adoption has no matensl impact on the finanoal pesition and the Bnancal result of the Group.

Amendments to IAS5 158, Employee Benefits “Plan Amendment, Certailment or Settlement™

The amendrments to &S 19 clarly 1hat

. on amendmenl, curtailment o settlement ol a defined berelil plan, 4 company should wse updated aciusiial
asurnplions Lo determing its cunent servce cosl and nel mierest lor e penod, and

- the effect of the asiet ceiing cost is diregarded when calculating the gain of loss on any settlerment of the plan and is
dealt with segarately in ather comprehensive income,

The adoption has no matensl impact on the financal position and the financial result of the Group.

The Group does not adopt any 1ssued but not yet effective international fmancal reparung standards, interpretateons and
amendments.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(1) Subsidiaries

Sulmidiaries are entities (ncluding struciured entities) controlled by the Group, The Group controls an entity i it b esposed,
or has rights, to, vanable refurns from its mvolvemant with the entity and has ihe ability 1o alfect these returs through is
power over the entity, The Group ressesses whether it has contrel if there are changes to one o mose ol the elements of
control. This includes circumstances in which grotectve rights heid (e.q. those retulting lrom a lending relationship) become
substantwe and lead to the Group having poser over an enbity.

A struciured enlity i an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar nghts are not the domanant factor in decding
who controls the entity, such ai when any voting rights relate te admanistrative tasis only and the relevant activitios ane
direcied by means of contractual arrangements

An imvestment in 8 subsidiary 8 consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that contel
cammences urtd the date that contral ceases Intra-group balances, fransactions and any unreaksed profit of loss anising
from intra-growp transactions are ehimenated ie full in preparng the consolidated finandal statements.

In the Bank's statement of financial position, its imvestments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impaement losses
{500 bote 302111

(2) Non-controlling interests

MNon<controlling intesests represent the equity i a subdidiary not atinibutable directly of indirectly to a pasent

Nor-controlling interests are presended in the comolidated slatement of financial position within equity, ssparately from
sty attribadeble 1o the equity shereboiders of the Bank. Non-centrolling inberests in the restts of the Groug ae presented
on the fete of the comolidated statemaent of prodit of loas and the comolidated statement of proedit or loss and ot
comprehensng income &5 an allocation of the totsl profm or Loy end total comprehenive income lor the year between non-
controling interests and the sguty shereholders of e Banic

Changes in the Group®s interests in a subudiasy that do not result in a loss ol control are acceunted for as equity
trandactions, wherety adjustments are made to the amaunts of contrellng and non-controng interests wathin consoid ated
equity to nellect the change in relative interests, but no adjustrments are made 1o goodwill and no gain of loss i recognied.

(3) Associates and Joint ventures

An assooate i§ an enity in which the Group or Bank has significant mfluence.

A joint venture i5 an arangement wheredy the Group or Bank and other parties confradiually agree 1o share control of the
arrangement, and have rights o the nat assets of the amangemant.

The Group's inyestments in assodates or joint ventured ane accounted for under the eguity method of accounting, Under
thie equity mathod, an imvestment in an associate of joint venture is carried in the condolidated staterrent of financial
position at ¢os1 plus post-acquesition changes in the Group's shate of the net assets of the sssociate or pint verture, less any
impairment lesses. The consolidated statement of profit o ks reflects the share of the results of operations of the asocate
or point venfure. Where there has been a change recognised directly n the eguity of the associatee o |oint wenfure, The Group
refognises its share of any changes snd discloses this, when applicable, in the comolidated staterment of changes in equity.
Under the equity method, unrealised prafits and losses resubling from tramactions betwen the Group and the associales or
joint venuies are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s intededts in thir associobes or joinl veniure,

Il & irvestinent i an associate becames an invistment in a joint vesilure o0 vice versa, retatned intedest b nob remsaasared.
Instead, the investreent continues 1o be accounted lor under the egquity method.

In the Bank's staternent of financial posbon, iwestmends in asscosabes and point ventures are stated at cost less impasrment
losses isee Hote 30210},
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Motes to the Financial Statements

Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

(4) Foreign currency translation

Tha corsolidated fnancal statements are presented m RMA, baing the functional and presentaton currency of the Bank's
operations in Mamland China, Each entity in the Group detarmines its own functional currency and the financial statemants
of each entity are presented using that functional curmency.

Faregn currency tramsactions are nitially recosced i the functional avency wiing the exchange rates niling an the dates
of the tranactans. Monetary awets and labilities denomnated in forelgn currencees are retraralated nfo the functional
currency Al the applicable exchange rates rling at the end of the reporting pencd . Exchange dferences ansing on the
setflement ol maaetary iems o on tramslatng maneiary ems ot penod end rales ae recegnined in prodit or lass, with the
excephicn that they ane 1aken directly to other comprehensse income when the monetary dtems are deugnated as part of
the hedge of the Bank's net investment of a farsign eatity, ard the aggregate eawchange differences are nol recognaed in
profit o low until the draposal of such net mveement. Tax changes and crsdits attritalie 10 sxchange differences on those
rronétary dems an alwa recarded in ather comprahenave mcome

MNon-monstary iems that ame measured at historcal cost in a foreign currency ae translated using the exchange rates as at
the dates of the initial ransactions. Non-monetary items measured at far value n a foreign curency are translated using
the exchange rates as at the date when the fasr value & determined. Any goodwill arising on the acguisition of a foregn
operation and any fair value adpustments 1o the camying amounts of assats and liabdtees ansing on the acguisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and franslated at the rates nuling at the end of the reposting penod
The axchange differences are recognised in profit or loss o in othes comprehensive income, dependeng on the natume of
nan-manetay items.

&5 at the end of the reporting peenod, the asets and labdiies of formgn cperations are translated info the presencatan
currency ol the Bank &1 the eachange rates ruling at the end of the reporting pencd. All itemd within equity except for
retained profits are Translated at the exchange rates muling at the dates of the intial transactions, Income and expenses in
the statement of profid of kods are tranalated at the weighted averagn exchange tated Tos the yess, The schaage difforences
aring on e above tramslation are laken 1o other comprohensyve ome, On disposal of & foreign operation, the
curmrilativg ameunt recogniied i athid comprehendhe ncame mlating ta thal particular formgn operatid & mcoghived in
profit o loss,

Cash flows arising from transactons in foreign currencies and cash flows of overseas subsideanies are transiated using the
weghied average exchange rates for the yesr. The effect ol exchange rate movements on cash s presented separately in the
staterment of cash flows 25 a recenclling ivem.

(5) Financial instruments

& financial iIngtrorment i any contfact that gues rse 1o a financial asset ol one entity and a financial Babdity or equity
instrement of another entity

(i} Initial recognition of finandial instruments

At indtial recogndtion, financial sssets are classfied into three categomes financial assets measured ot amortised cost,
financial aseets meawred st FVOLH and finanoal assets measwred st FVTPL

Ar mitiad recogniticn, financial labilities are classified into two categones: financial liakelities measused at FYTPL and other
financial liabdities.

Financial assets and financial liabiiities ave measwned initially at fair valus, For financial assets and finarcal Gabities measured
at FVTPL, any rolated dirsctly attributable transaction costs are charged 1o profin or loss; for other categories of fimancial
assaty and financial labilities, any mlated directly attnibutable transaction costs are induded in their inftial costs,

Measurement of fair value

Fair walum is the price that would be received 1o sell an astet or paid to iransfer a lahility in an cideily fransaction batveenn
market participants at the measutement date
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When measuring far value, the Group shall take into account the characteristics of the azet or lisbifity f market participarts
would take thoie characteristcs mio account when pricing the aiset o liabdty at the measwement date linduding
the condition and location of the aiset; and restrctions, i any, on the sale or use of the aset, etc), and we valuation
technigques that are appropeate in the creumstances and for which sulficent dala and other Information are available to
measwe fair velue, The adopted valustion technsgues mainly include mariet approach, income approsch and cost approach,

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement of financdial assets
Classification of financial assets

The classificasion af financial assots generally based on the business moded in which a finanoal sset s managed and ity
contractual cash flow charactenstics. On initial recognition, a fnancial asset is cassified a8 measuned 81 amortised cost, at
FVOCH, ot ol FYTPL,

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent 1o thedr initial recognition unless the Grous dhanges s business model for
managing financlal assets i which case all affected financial sssets are reclassifiad on the fist day of the first reporting
petiod Toflewing the change o the business model,

A financal asset is measured o1 amortised cost if it meets both of the follovang conditions and 15 not designated a5 at PYTRL
- it s held within a busine . model whose objective is 10 hold asseti to collect contractual cash Hows, and

- its contractual lerms ghe rise on specified dates 10 cash flowes that ane solely payments of principal and interest en the
prnogal amount outstanding.

A dobt mvestment 1= measured at FYOCT i it meets both of the following conditions and 1= not desigrated as at FYTPL

- it = he'd withn a business mode! whote obyective i achieved by both collecting contractual cash fleasd and selling
fnancial aszets; and

= itscontractual terms gie nse on specifed dates 1o cash floves that are solely paymenis of prinopal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding,
On itial recogniticn of an equity investiment that is not held for trading, the Group may irevocably slect 1o prasant

stequent changes in the investmant’s fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is made on an investmants
by-irvesimant basis

All tmanoal assets not classified as measwed at amormsed oost or FYOC) as desonbed abave are measured at FVTPL. On
initial recognition, the Group may iresacably dedignate a finandial asset that otheratss meets the requirements to be
measwed Al amortsed cost or at FVOCT as at FVTPL if doing so ebminates or significantly reduces an accousting mismatch
that would othensise adise

The bisiness model refers to how the Group manages its financial assets in order 1o gensrate cash flows, That is the
Group's busmness model determines whether cash flows wall result from collecting contractual cash flows, seling financal
assets o both. The Group determines the business model for managing the financal assets according to the facts and baseo
on the specific business objectve for manageg the financal assets determined by the Group's bey management parsannel.

In ssesing whethar the contractual cash lfows are solely payments of principal and nterest, the Group comiders the
contractual terms of the instrument, For the purposes of the asessment, ‘princpal’ is defined as the far value of the
financial mset on jrutipl recognition. 'Intevest” i defined a5 cansideration far the time value of money and for the crodd ridk
aspaciated with the prncipal amount outiandang during a particular poriod ol time and for other bask lending risks and
cots, a5 well a5 & profit margin. The Group alio assesses whether the firancial assel contain: a contractusl term that could
change the timing or amaount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets measured at FVTPL

These financal adsets are subsequently messured &1 fai value. Net gains and losses, including any ntlenest or dividend
Income, are recagnised in profit of loss unless the financial assets are part of a hedgng relatranship.
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Financial assets measured at amartised cost

These aises are subsequently measured al amortised cost usng the effective intesest method. A gaim or loss an a financisl
&isel that (L meatured at amortised cost and = not part of a hedging relationship ihall be iecopnised in prolit of loas when
the financial assel & derecognaed, through the amertisation process ot i onder 10 recognise smpaitment gains or loses

Debt instruments measured at FYOC!

Thirke msets wmw subsequently measured 8t fair value. Interest income calculated wsing the effective interest mathod,
urgrairmrit and forsgn exchange gaimand keses are recogoned m profil or loss, Other net gams and losses & iecognsed
I othwei wdwrmw income. On desecognetion, gains and lowses acgurmudated in oflw comprehenise mcome s
reclasulied 1o profit or lows

Equity instruments measured at FYOC!

Thess asiets are subdequently measured at lair walve, Dvwederds ane recognised 8 income in pr:ﬂll of loss Other net
gains and kasses ane recognoed 0 other comprehensive income. On denccognition, gains ang loses accumulated in ather
comprehensive income are reclassilied 1o retained sarnings.

(iff) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial skl ties are classfied as measured at FYTPL and other financial labilities,

Financial liabilitles measured at FYTPL
A financial Kabdity is classified as measured at PYTRL if it & classfied as held-for-trading (including denvative financial Rability)
or it B cesignated a5 such on inital recogniton

Financial Habilitier measured st FYTPL are subdequently measured &t fair value and net gains and losses (inchuding any
[merest pxpense) ane recognzed in profit or loss, unless the financial llabditbes are pant of a bedging relationshin.

Far the financial labilities designated as at FYTPL, the gains and losses arose are aocounted for in accordance with the
follownng requeements: (il the amecunt of changes in the fair value of the financial Eability arising from changes in the
Group's own credit risk should be included in other comprehensive income; (i} other changes in fair value of the financial
liabsltwes are recognesad i current profit of loss. I the treatmeant of the impact of changes in the financial liabilities’ owm
credhit rsk will create or enlarge the accounting msmatch in profit or ks = accordance with (i, the Group shall recognise
the entire gain o loss of the financial liabiliies (including the amawnt ot the impact of chanpes in s own eredit risk] i protit
and loss. When these llablites are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognsed in ather comprehensve
income is redlassified trom equity to retained eamings

Other financial liabilities

Other linancia habbines are subsequently measured at amoiised cost usng the effecive mteres: method,

{6} Impairment of the financial assets
The Garoun recogniues loss abewances for ECL an

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost.

- Detit instruments rmeasuhed at FYOCL and

- Loan commitments and financial guaraniee contrads.
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Financial assets measured at fair value, including debt myvestments or equity secuntes meaiuwed at FVTPL, equity securties
designated a3 at FVDCI and derivairse financial asaets, are not subject 1o the ECL asseisment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are & probabilin-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit bosses are measured a5 the pretent value of all cash
sheetially i.e. the difference betwoon the cash fiows dun 1o the enlity in accordance with the contract and the cash flova
that the Group ecpocts to recehe)

The Group's method of measuing expected credn losses of financial irstruments reflects the following elements: (i) unbiased
weighted averape probability determined by the results of evaluating a range of pousible outcomes; (&) time value of money,
(i} reasonable and evdence-based inlormation about past events, current conditions, and future economic forecasts that
are avalable al no additional cost or ellort at the end of the reporting period._

The mmazimum pefod considered when estimating ECLs 6 the maximum contractusl perlod (inthuding extension options) over
which the Graup & exposed to credst nisk

Lifeteme ECLs are the ECLL that resull from all pq:.ﬁ:ﬂﬂ defaiilt events aver the eapecied Iife of a financal insErument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that resull from delauht everts that are possible within the 12 months after the end
of the reporting period (or & shorer period i the expected life of the nstrument i less than 12 months)

The Group cassifes financial Instruments Into thiee stages and makes provisions for eapected credit losses accordingly,
depending on whether credit rsk on that financiad instrument has moreased significantly. snce initial recognition.

The three mk stages are dofined as follows:

Stage 1: A financlal instrument of which the credit ritk has not significantly inerease cinee initial recognition. The amaunt
equial 10 12-month expected credit losses 4 recognised & loss alowance,

Stage 10 A hnancal instrument wath a signifcant increase in credin nsk since initial recogaition but 15 not considered 1o be
credit-impawed. The amount equal to Metime expected credit losses is recognised as loss allowance. Refer to Note 51fal
credit risk for the description of how the Group determines when a significant incraase bin credit risk has ooourred

Stage 3 4 financial initrument i conssdeted 19 be credd-mmipained a3 at the ond of the repodting petiod, The ameunt egual
fo |ifetime expected cradit lowses (s necognised as lom allowance. Refer to Note 51(a) credit risk for the definittion of credit-

irmparied financial sty

Presentation of allowance for ECL

ECLs ate iemeaiuied at the end of sach reparting pm¢|:| ta reflect changes in the hinancial instrument's credd fik sinoe
initiad recognition, Any change in the ECL amount i recogrised as an impairment gam of koss n proft or loss, The Group
recagnaes an impairment gain or lods for finareal mithuments measured a1 ameartised éost with a cormesponding adjustment
fo their carrpng amount through a less allowance account; for debt instrumenis that are measured ot FYDC), the loss
allerssance i recogneed in other comprehenive income. The Group recognines bois allowances lor loan commitments and
firancial guaranies contracts through other lisbilities {afowance lor impairment losses on credit commitments)

Write-off

The booic value of a financal assel is seitten off (either partialy o in full) 1o the extent that there i no oalislic prospect
of recovery. A wite-oll constitvies & demecogrtion event. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets of sources of incormna that could generate sulficent cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
thee werite-olf, Howeer, financlal assets that se veritten ol could still be subsect 1o enoroement sctivitles in order 1o comply
with the Group's prodedures fon recovery ol amounts dus

Subsequent recovenies of an sssel thal wis prewowsly wiitten of [ ate recoanned as a reversal ol impairment in prafit of loss
n the period in whh the recovery ecours
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(7} Modification of loan contracts

I pome cages (such as renegotiating loans), the Group may renegotiate or othenwise modify the fimancial assets contracts
The Group would assess whether or ot the new contractual terms ara substantially different 1o the criginal terms. i the terms
are substantally ditferent, the Group derecognises the original financial asset and recognises a “new’ asset undar the revieed
fevrma, I tha renegotiation or modification does nat result in derecognition, but lead to changes in contractual cash fiows, the
Group assesses whather a significant increase i credit risk has ccourred, based on comparing the risk of a default accumng
under the ravised terms s at the erd of the reporting periad with that as at the date of intial racognition under orginal torme

{8) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets

Financia asset is derecognised when one of the folowing conditions 5 met:
- the Group's contractual rights to the cash floves from the financial asset expore;

- the financal asset has been transferred and the Group transters substantially adl of the risks and rewarnds of cwnership
af the financial asset, or

= fthe financial asset has been trapsferted, afthough the Group neither translers nor retairs substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownenship of the financial asset, it does not setain comtrol over the tramferred soet.

Whene (e Group has tramferred its rights to receive cash floves from an ssset or has retained its rights 1o recesse cash
fNensys from the asset butl assumed the obsgation o pay those cash flows to the eventual recpients and mesmwhile meet the
conditions ol the transfer of financial assets. and has neither transfemed nee retained subsiantially all the rsks and rewands
of the assel nor iransferred contral of the asset, the asset & recognised 1o the extent of the Group's continueng invebeement
i the asset.

Continwng involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
ariginal carrying amount of the asset ard the madimum amount of consideration that the Growp could be required to repay.

Securitisation

As part of its operational acthvities, the Group secunitises financial assets, generally theough the sale of these assets 1o
structured entites which msue securibes to mvestors. Further details on peerequinites for derecognition of financia assets
are st owt above. When a securitisation of fnancial assets doss not qualfy Tor derecognition, the mieant finandal assets
are rot derecognised, and the consideration paid by thind parties are recorded as a finanoal Eability; when the securtisation
of financial assets partially qualfies for demcognition, the Group continue to recognise the transferred assets to the extent
of itz continuing involvemant, denecognise the remaining, The carrying amount of the transforred assets is apportionod
betwesn the derecognised portion and the retained portion based on their respectvee telative fair values, and the ditference
betwean the carrying amoaunt of the devacognined portion and the total consideration paid for the derecognised portion &
recoeded in profit or loss.

Sales of assets on condition of repurchase

The derecognition of financial assets sold on condition of repurchase s determined by the economic substance of the
transaction it & financial asset i sold under an agreement to repurchase the same or substantially the same assst at a
fized price or a1 the sale peice plus a reasonable retwmn, the Group will not derecognise the asset. if a fimancial assat & sold
ftogether with an option to repurchase the financal asset at s fair vales at the tirme of repurchase (in case of transferor sells
such financial asset), the Group will derecognise the financial asset
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Financial lfabilities

The Growp derecagnives a nancal llability (ar part of ith only when (1 contractosl calgaton (or part af 1) R extinguiched

(9) Convertible instruments

Corvertible instruments msued by the Group that can be converted 1o equity thares, where the number of shares 10 be
izsued and the value of consideration 1o be received at that tme do not vary, are sccounted for & compound financial
nstrurments confanang both liabilty and equity components.

The initial camying ameunt ol a compaund financial instrument i1 allecated te s equity and lisbilty componenis. The
FmoLn recognised in the equity is the difference between the far value of the instrument as a whaole and the sepasately
determined fair value af the Kability cemponent (ncluding the value of any embedded derivatives othes than the equity
component). Trandaction costs that relate to the sue of a compaund financial instrument e allocated to the Hability and
equity compomants i propotion to the alocation of proceads.

Subsequant ta mitial recognition, the liatsbty component it measured at amortiied cost uiing the elfective ntorest mathod,
unless it o designated upon recognition at FYTPL The equity companent is not re-measured

If the cenvestible instrument i comeerted, the liabilty component, 1ogether with the equity component, & transfesred to
equity. ¥ the corvertible instrument is redeemed, the consideration paid for the redemption, sre allocated to the Hlability
and equity components The method uied to allocate the conuderstion and transacton cosy & the same b that wsed
for issuance. After allocating the consideraten and transaction costs, the differsnce bebween the allocated and carying
amounts i charged 1o profit and lods if 4 relates 1o the Rability component or directly recognited m equity if 1t refates to the
Bty cosmTiponnt

(10) Preference shares and perpetual bands

At indial recognition, the Group clasabes the preference shares, perpetual bonds issued o their components & hnancial
sasets, financial babilities of equity instruments based on their contractual terms and their econemic substance alter
considenng the definbion al financial assets, inanaal habdises and equity matrements.

Fraference shaves and parpetoal bonds issued containing both equiy and Rability components are accounted for waing the
accounting poloy for convertibde instruments eomaining an equity component. Preference shares and perpetual bonds issued
nat containing an equity companent are accounded for wing the accountng poficy for ather convertible instruments not
contalning an eguity component.

Prafarence shares and perpetual bonds sued that should be classified a5 eguity Imtruments are recognised in equity based
o the actual amount recomed, Any distribution of dvdonds o interssts dunng the instrumonts” duration = treated s prodis
appropriation. When the preference shares and perpetual bonds are redeomed according to the contractual tenms, the
redemption price it charged to equity.

{11) Derivatives and hedge accounting
Derivatives

Dipsnratead financial ingrumsnts ane wnetually rscogried i faif value on the date on which a dervative contract & entdned
o and are subsequently mesured at (e value. Decatsees are camsed o avoets when the e value i postive and a
liahaletires, whinh 1he St valos B nagative
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If the: main contract inchaded n the hybrid contract is an asset within the scope of a nevw financal instrument standard, the
embedded desivaterve = na |nngnf splet from the mamn contract of the financial asset, but the h'yh'lcl {inancial imstrument as
a whole is related 1o the classfication of the financial mset provaion. IF the main contract ncluded in the hytrid contract o
nat an &iset vathin the wope ol the new financal instrument i.1u.rl:|.d|':l, whien their sconomic chavacterstics and risks ane not
closely related 1o those of the hybrid contract, these separate instruments with the same termn as the ermbedded dervatve
would meet the definition of & derivative, and the hybrd instrument is not carried at PYTPL, certain dervatrees embedded
in other financial instruments should be split fram the hybeid contract and reated a3 separate denvatives. These embedded
dematives ane measured at fair value wiih the &mngﬁ. in Falr walue rh:ngni'sd in prodit or kaas.

Any gairs of |oases arising fram changes in fair value on dervatives that do not qualify for hedge sccounting are taken
directly te peofit or lacs.

For less comples derivative products, the fair values are peincipally determined by valuation models which are commonly used
by macket partiopants. Inpuls to vaduaticn models are determined from cbservable market data wherever possible, including
foreign exchamge ot and forsard rates and interest rate yield ounves. For mone complax desivatiee products, the faie values
are mainly detevmingd by quoted prices from dealers.

Hedge accounting

A the incepticn of a hedging relationship, the Group formally designates the hedge Irstruments and the hbedged items,
and documents the hedging relationship to whach the Group wahes to apply hedge accounting ane the risk management
objective and strategy foe undertaking the hedge. The documentation indludes identification of the hedging instrument, the
hedged itern or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument’s
effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged
risk. Such hedges are expecied to meet the hedge effectiveness in achieving affsetting changes in far value o cash flows
and are assessad on an ongoung basis to anslse the sources of hedge ineffectveness which ane expected 1o affect the hedging
relationship in remaning hedging period. If a hedging refationship ceases 1o meet the hedge effectveness regquarement
relating to the hedge ratio, but the risk management objective Tor that designated hedgng relationship remains the same,
the Group would rebalance the hedging relationship

Certain dérratiee transactions, while previding effective economic hedges under the Group's rak mansgement pasitsons,
da nat qualify far hedge accounting and ére therelore treated a3 dedivatives held lor trading with Tair value gans o lodses
recogrised in profit or loss. Hedges which meet the strict critersa lor bedge accounting are accounted for n accardance with
the Group's sccownting policy as el out belos.

Fair value hedges

Fair value hedges ate hedges of the Group's exposure to changes in the lair value of & recognised asset or llabdity o an
unrecagnised firm commitrment, of an identified portson of such 8n asset, liability or untecognised firm commitment, that
Is attribulable to 4 particular risk and could affect the prafit o boss or other compeehensive Income. Among them, the
circumslances alfecting other compiehensive income e mited 1o the hedging for the mk exposure from fair value change
of nor-irading eguity investment désignated as ab FVOCL For lair walue hedges, the carmpng amount of the hedged iem o
adjusted for gains and losies aftnbutable 1o the rink besng hedged, the desivalne is remeasured at fair value and the gains
and losses from both ane taken 1o prodin or bes o othiy comprhensie income

For hedged iterms recorded at amonised oost, the diference betveeen the carmying value of the hedged item and the face
value 5 amortised over the remalning tesm of the enginal hedge using the effective intedest rate method.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value
of the firm commitment atinbutable to the hedged risk is recognised a3 an asset or liability with a cormesponding gan o foss
recognised in profit ar loss. The changes in the fair value of the hedging mstrument are afse recognised in profit or less

The Group dacentinues falr valee hedge accounting when the hedging relationship ceased 1o meet the guathong criterls after
taking inte scceunt any rebalarcing of the hedgng relationship, indudng the hedging imtrument hay eapired or has besen
sold, terminated ar exsrcised. |f the hedged nems ane detecognned, the unamartised fair valie o recorded n profit or loss.
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Cash flow hedges

Carh flowy heddges are hedges of the Group's scposure to vanabdity in eash Aovwa that 1 sttribidable to a particulsr rk
aivocialed wath & recogniced avier or habildty, a highly probable lorecast transaction or a component al any swich item, and
could affect profit or loss For desgnated and qualitying cash llew hedges, the effective portion of the gain ar les on the
hidging instrument i initally recognised directly In ather comgeehenive income. The nellectve pertion af the gain o ous
an the hedgmg initrument i recogniued immadiately in profit o o

When the hedged cash fhow atlects peofit or loss, the gasn of less on the hedging instrument recogrsed dsectly in other
comprehensiee income & recycled in the corresponding income or expense e of the statement of profit or loss. When
the hedging relationship ceases 1o meet the qualihong cnteria atter taking inte account any rebalancng of the hedging
relationship, including the hedgng instrument has sxpired of has been sald, termenatied or evercised, amy cumulative gasn or
loss ewisting i ather comprehenswve income at that tsme remains i other comprehensive income until the hedged forecast
transaction u'timaiely occurs. When a forecast transaction s no longer expecled to oogur, the cumulatve gain or loss that
was reporied in other comprehensive income 15 immediately translerred to profit or loss.

Net investment hedges

Met imvestment hedge 5 a hedge of the currency risk of a net investment in a foreign indiution speration
Hodges of ret imdestmenti in 1nl-q'| oparatont ane sccounied tar similaily 1o cash Rowr

hedges. Any gasn or koss on the hedging instrement relating to the effective portion af the hedge is recognised directly in
ather comprehentive income; the gaen or kods relating to the ineffective portion s recognised in pralit of foss immediately.
Gains and losses accumulsted in other comprehenshie income ane included In prafit o low when the forelgn operatien &
disposed of & part of the gain o loss an the deposal

(12) Trade date accounting

All pegular way purchases and salet of linancal assets are recognised at the trade date, which is the date that the Group
cammils 1o purchase o sell the assets. A regular way purchase or sale 13 the purchase or sale of financial assets that requires
deferery of assets within the time frame genesally establshed by requlation or convention in the madetplace.

(13} Presentation of financial instruments

Financlal assets and financlal llabilities ae generally presented separately in the statement of financlal postion and are not
offust, Howewer, a financial asset and a financial liability are cifses and the net amount i presented in the staternent of
firancial position when both the folloving corditions aoe satished,

= the Growp currently has a legally enflorceable nght 1o set ofl the recogrised amounts; and

= thw Group intends either to setthe on a net basis, or to malive the financial aset and settle the financial lability
smullaneounly,

(14) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions (including securities barrowing and
lending)

Aszels sald under agreements to repurchase ot a spacified future date (“repos”] are not derecognised from the statement
of fmancsal position. The comresponding cash recerved, induding aconued interest, is recognised on the statement of financial
posiion as 4 “repurchase agresment °, reflecting ils economs: substance a5 a loan 1o the Group. The diierence batween the
sale and repurchase prces is treated a5 an interest expense and is accrued over the life of the agreement wing the effective
interest rate mathod.

Conversely, asets purchased under agreements 1o resell ot a specified futuie date (“reverse repos®) are not recognied on
the staternent of financial position, The comespanding cash pald, including accrued interest, i recognined on e Statement
al finarcial position a3 & “reverse repurchate agreement”. The dilference betwen the purchase and resale prices |3 treated
a5 an interest income and is accrued ower the ke of the agreement wsing the effective interest rate method.
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According 1o the policy of dasification of finanaal axsets refer 10 Note 3/5)), the reverse repurchase agreements held by
the Groug were danded mio different classdication according 1o 1he entity's busness micdiel {or managing the fimancial
instruments and the contractual cash flow charactermtics of the susets: financial assets measuned at amortised cost and
financial assets measured a1 FVTPL.

Securities bormewing and lending transaction are usually collsteralived by securities of cah. The transder al the secunites
to counterparties i only reflected on the vatement of firancial pedition il the raks and rewards of ownership are alsa
transferred Cash advanced or recerved as collateral i recorded as a0 asset o lability

Securiies borrowed are not recognsed on the statement of finanoal posdion, unless they are then sold 1o third parties,
in which rasa the obligation to retum the securities is récoeded as a financal lishility held for trading and measured at fair
value waih any gains or losses mcluded in profit or loss

{15} Precious metals

Precious metak compise gold, silver and other precious metals. Frecous metals that ane not related 1o the Group’s precious
rmetals trading activities ase initially measwred at acguisitien cost and subsequently measured at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Precious metals acquired by the Group Tor trading purposes are nitially measwed at fair value and
subsequent changes in fair value are recorded in the statemant of profit or loss

The Group records the precaus metals received ai an st A hability to relurn the armount of precious metals depouited
I% alte recognined. The precious melal deposted n the Group are messured a1 faer value bath on inial recognibon and in
subsequent measurerment

(16) Property and equipment

Property and equipment, other than construction in progress aro staded ab costs less accumulated dopreciation and
any impairment foss. The cost al an itern of property and equepment comprises its purchase price, tad and any directly
attributable costs of binging the assot 1o its present working condition and location Ter its intonded wie. Expenditure
incurred alter Aems of property and ogugETent have boen put into operation, such as repairs and maimenance, & nurrrmlh-
charged to profit o lots in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition critedia ane satithied, the
expamnddure fora magar inspecion i caplla|'lpnd in the CarTying amount of the ase! at a replacement.

Construction n progress comprses the direct costs of conitiuction during the penad of construction and i not depreciated.
Construction in progress i redassified to the apoiopriats category of property and egugment when completed and ready
for use.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in orcumstances
Indicate that the canying valses may not ba reooverable

Depreciation is caltulated on the straight-ling basts to write off the cot of each itern of propedny and equipment, less any
eutimated residual value, over the estimated useful lite. The estimated uselul life, estimated residual value and the annual
depreciation rate of each item of property and equipment (excluding srcrah and vesselsh ane a3 followes,

Estimated  Estimated residual Annial

useful life value rate  depreciation rate

Propeies and buildings 5~501 yarary 0%-3% 1. 94%~20%
Dffice equipment and motor vehicle

leaciuding acrcratt and veswei) =7 yoans - 14.29%-50%

Leasehald improvements Dwer the shorter of the econsmic usehul

Ives and remaning lease terms

Equipment undar operating leases where the Group 15 the lessor contams aircraft. aircraft engines and vessets The estimated
useful Ives and deprecation methods are determined according 1o the raal conditions af ndividual aecraft and vessels. The
residual values are assessad by an independent valuer based on histonical data. The estimated useful lves rangs from 15 10
25 yaars,

hanwsl Hopore 20000 177

326/474



hotes to the Financial Statements

Financial Statemends for the year ended 31 December 2015
[ BMIE millions, unless otherwise fated)

For an itern of impaired fised assets, the depreciation n calculated based on the campng value bess the cumulative
irmparment loss.

Where parts ol an tem of propedty and equipment hive defferent useful bves, the cout of that item B afocated on &
reatanable basis ameng the parts and esch part is depreciated separately.

Residual vabues, useful lves and deprecistion methods are revewed, and adjusted if appropriate, st least at cach financial
year erd

An item of properly and equipmant or any significant part inftially recognised is dedecognised upon dispasal or when no
future economic benofits are expected from its use or dispasal. Any gain or ks ariang from derecogniton of the aswet
{ealeulated s the difference between the not daposal proceeds and the camying amaount of the awet) i included in the
staterment of profit or lods in the year the asset & derecognised,

(17) Land use rights

Land wse nghts are recogrined ot cost, being the fair value at the e of mpection from the central government of the PRC
{the “ Government® ) ar the comideraticn paid. The nghts ame amartized iming the straight-line basi over the periods of the
lwases. When the prepaid land iease payments cannct be allocated relisbly batvweeen the land and buildings elements, the
entwe lwase paymenti ane included in the casts of properties and b1.|il|:|'rrg'| a1 finance leaiés m property and egqueoment.

(18) Repossessed assets

Ropossessed assets aw initially mecognised &1 fair value, and ane subsequently measured at the lower of the camrying walue
and net recoverable amount. B the recoverable amount s lower than the cammying value of the repossesied assms, the assey
arg variften dowen o the retoverable amount

(19) Business combination and goodwill

Busnass combinations ae accounded for wsing the acquaition mathod. The conmderation framferred 13 measwed at
acquinition date fair value which & the sum ol the acquistion date fair valuod of amats transforred by the Group, labilities
avsurned by the Group to the formes owners of the acquires and the equity intesests nsued by the Group in sxchange for
control of the acquires. Acquisition coiti incwred s axponued

Whien the Group acquines a business, i sisesses the financial aswets and labilities sssomed for appropriate classification and
deslgnation in accordance with the contraciual tesrmd, sconomic crcuritances and pertineni concitions as at the acquittson
date This includes the separation ol embedded derivatives i host contracts by the acouilnes

It the business combination s achieved in stages, the acquisition date faw value of the aoquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the aoquires s remeasured 1o fair value as at the acquisiion date through profit or loss

Ay contingent comideration to be iramferred by the acquirer ik recognised at fair value at the acquisiton date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which s deemed 10 be an asset o Bability. is recognised either in
profit or lows o as change to other comprehensve income, If the contmngent considerateen i3 clasidiod as equity, it shall not
be remaeaduned until it & fnally setled withn equity,

Goodwill & initially measured at cost. belng the excess of the aggregale of the conuderation ansderred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and army fasr value af the Group's preoudly held equity irterests in the acquiree over
the et idertifiable asets aoqued and labilities assumed. f the sum of this corsidesatian and ather Bems is lower than the
far value of the net assets of the swbsdiay acquired, the difference j3, afer reassessment, recognised in profit or (o5 as
gain an bargain purchase

After Initial recogniton, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Goodwill s tested for
impairment annually cr more frequently i events or changes in crcumstances indicate that the canying vahee may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impalrment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
festing, goodwill acquired in @ business combination is, from the acquisition date, allecated to each of the Group's cash-
genarating units ("CGU"), or groups of CGUs, that are expecied to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets of liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of wnits,
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Impairment i determined by assessng the recoverable amount of the CGU (group of CGUS) to which the goodwall relates
Where the recovesable amount of the CGU (group of TG is less than the caryng amount, an mpainment ko &
recognized. An impairment lois recognived for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Whene goadvell farms part af a CGU (group af CGUS) and part of the operation within that unt i@ disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation dispased ol s included in the casrying amount of the aperation when detesmensng the gain or
less on deipesal af the operation. Geodwill dispoted of in this eircurstanee i meaured baced on the relative values of the
opetaticn disposed of and the portion of the CGU retained.

(20) Pravisians

Pronsions. are recognsed when the Group has a present abligation (legal o constructive) as a result of & past event, and i
I3 prabable that an cutflow of resources embodying econorss benelits will be requeed {o setile the abligation and & reluble
estirnate can be made of the amouwit of the obligaton,

A piovinion shall be initiafly measured ai the best estimate of the espenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money b material, the best estimate shall be detesmined by discounting the
related future cash outflows. YWhen determining the best estimate, the Grodp considens Tactors pertaming 1o a contingency
such as risks, uncertainties and time of value of money. Where there 5 a continuous range of the expenditure requered, and
sach possible outcome in that range is as Bhely as any other, the best estimate shall ke the mid-paint of that range. ln other
cases, the best estimate shall be detesrrined according 1o the following crroumstances:

= ‘Wheve the contingency imvabves @ single dem, the best estimate shall be the most likely outcome.

- Whets the contingency invaives a large population of itams, the best estmate shall be determined by weighting all
poisinle outcomes by their associated probabilities.

The Growp shall revew the carmying amount of a provision at the end of reporting period. The carmpng amount shall be
adjusted to the curment best estimate.

{21} Asset impairment

Impairment losses on assels encept for deferred tax assets, financial assets and goodwill are detevmined based on the
Tallowirg

The Group asurises af the end of wach reporting peviod whether there i any indication that an asset may be impaired. 1f
any such indication exsts, of when impairment testing for an asset i requined, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable smount i the higher of its fsir value Fess costs to sell and ity value in use and
Is determined on an individusl basis, unless the ssset does not generate cash nflows that are largely ‘ndependent of those
from other assets or grous of assets, in which case the recoverable smount is determined for the CGU 1o which the et
belongs. Where the carrying amount af an assel exceeds 1 recoversble amourt, the asset i considered to be empained
and i wiitten down o it recoversble amount, In assessing value i we of an asset, the estmated future cash flows are
disceunted to ther present values Uiing a pre-tax descount rate that refllects current market assenments of the time value of
money ard the risks spealic to the adiet,

An assessrrent o mads at the end of each reparting period as to whether there {s any indication that previouwly recognesed
impatrment [osses may no longer exist of may have decrsased. If such an indication eaists, the recoverable amaunt is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss B reversed only 1l these has been a change in the estimates used to
determing the asset’s recoverabibe amount snce the |ast imparmeant loss was recogrised. If that is the case. the carmyng
amount of the asset |s increased to its recoverable amaount That intreased amount cannof exceed the carmyng amount that
would have been determired, net of any depreciationfamarisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asser
in prioe years, Ary such reversal i recognised in profit ar loss. Aftar such a reversal, the depreciation/amaonisation change &
atfjusted in Tulure penods 1o allocate the asset’s revsed camying amaunt, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over
113 remaining wseful life.
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(22) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents refer to short-term highly liguid assets, which are readily convertible inte known amounts of cach
and subject to an insignifizant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cath, unrestricted balances with
central banics, amounts dus from banks and other financial institutions and reverse repurchase agresments with original
matunity of bess than thres months.

(23) Employes benefits

Employes benefits refer to all forms of consideration and ether related expenditure given by the Group in exchange for
services rendered by employees. The benefits payable are recognised as liabénties during the period in which the employees
hawe rendered services to the Graup, If the effect of discounting the benefits payable which ace payable after one year from
the end of the reporting peried is Bgndicant, the Geoup will present them at their present value.

Short-term employee benefits

Employes wages or salaries, bonuses, social secunty contributions such as medical insurance, wark mjury Insurance,
maternity inswance and howsing fund, measured at the amount incurred or at the applicable bendhmarks and rates, ane
recognisad as a liabidiy as the employee provides services, with a corresponding charge to peofit or loss or induded in the
cost of assets where appropriate.

All eligble smipdoyees oulside Mamland China partiopate m locsl defined contributscn schemes. The Group contrioutes to
thewe defined contribution schemes baed on the reguirements of e kocal regulatony bodie,

Post-employment benefits-defined contribution plans

Pursiant fo the rebevant ks and reguilations of the PRC, the Group partinipated i a defined contribiton base pensian
insgance in the social imsurance tystem established and managed by gowernment crgansations The Group makes
contributions to basc permion insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks and rates stipulated by the government
Basic pension insurance contributions e recognised as part of the cost of the assets or charged 1o profit or loss a5 the
related sennces are rendered by the employess

In addman, employess in Manland China also panicipate in a defned contrdution retwement benefir plan established by the
Group fthe "Annulty Flan®). The Graup and its employess are reguired 1o coninbute & certaln percentage of the empioyess
presious year basks salanes 1o the Anmety Plan, The contribution & charged to profit or loss when (1 s scurred. The Group
pays a fized contribution into the Annuty Plan and has no obligation ta pay further centnbutions if the Annuity Flan does
not hold sutficient assets 1o pay all employee benefits.

Termination benefits

Termination benelits are payable as a resull of elther the Group's decrion 1o terminate an employes’s employment belore
the pormal retirement date or an employee’s decsion 1o sccept an offer ol beneliis in exchange fer the termnation of
employment. The Group recognae termination benelits in prefit ar loss a1 the earker of:

- When the Group can no longer withdraw an offer of those benefits;

- When the Group has a specific, formal restrcture plan imvolving payment of temmination benefits, and the plan has
sarted or infformed each alfected party about the influence of the plan, therstone sach party fermad reasonable
Fexpeciatons

Early retirement benefits
Acconding to the Bank’s policy on ealy retirement benefits, cerlain employees are entitled to take leave of absence and
in retum receive a cerfain level of stalf salaries and related benefits from the Bank. The salaries and benefit payments ane

mado from the date of sarly rotirernent o the nommal retremeont date, Differonces aning from changes iIn assumptions. and
estimates of the present value of the Eabiities amo recognised i profit or loss when they are incured
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(24) Fiduciary activitias

Whare the Group acts in a fiduciary capacity such ai custodian or agent, amets arizing thereon fogether with related
undertakings to retun such assets fo customars are excluded from the statement of financial potition

The ssiet cutady services af the Group refer 1o the buuness that the Group as trusies approved by regqulatony suthorities,
sgns custody agreement with chents and takes the regponubility of trustes = aceondance wath relevant liws and reguiations
The awets under custody are recorded as eff-halance sheel iterms 24 the Group metely fullils the respons by as trustiee and
charges tees i accordance with these agreements wathoul retairing any rigks or nevwards of the sssers under custady

The Group grants entrusted loans on behalf of frustors, which are recorded off-balance sheet. The Group, as a trustee,
grants such entrusted loans to borrewers under the direction of those trustors who tund these leans, The Group has been
contracted by those trustors to manage the adminsstration and colection of these loans on their behall. Those trustors
determine both the underwriting criterea for and the terms of 2l entrusted loans including their pusposes, amounds, intevest
rates, and repayment schedules. The Group charges a commission related to i1s activities in connection with antrusted loans
which are recognised ratably over the period in which the senvice s provided, The sk of loss is borne by those frustons

(25) Insurance contracts
Insurance contracts classification

The Group's insurance subsidiary executes the contract with the policyhoider. Where the Group wnderlakes insurance risk,
which means a risk, rather than a financial risk, transferred from the halder of a contract 1o the insurance provider and aver
teme, the combined cost of daims, adminbstration and acquisition of the contract may exceed the aggregate amount of
premiums received and imvestment income, the contradt is classified as an insurance contract; whera the Group undertakes
ihe risks other than insurance risk. The contract 5 classified as non-inswurance contract, and where the Group undertakes
bath insurance risk and other risks, forming a confract with mixed risks, the following stipulations are applied:

i} Whee the imarance sk and other risks can be distinguished from esch olber and separately measimed, te mmurance
risk is separated from other mks. The inswance mk i acoounted for ax an insurance contract and other mks are
sccounted lor according to the relovant accounting standards,

{ih  Whese the insurance rk and other risks cannot be distinguished from each other, or can be distingushed but cannot
be separazely measured, an umbrella contract applies and ssgnificant insurance iesk test shall be perfermed based on it
If the insurance risk is significant, the contract is accounted for a4 an insurance contract; othensise, it i sccounted fer
&5 & Ran-INSUran e contract

Insurance income recognition

Insurance premium income is recogrised when:

{if  The inswrance contract is issued, ard refated insurance risk is undertaken by the Group;
{ir  The elied ecanomic benefits are likely 1o How to the Group;

(i) FRelated mcorme can be refally measused,

Insurance contract liabilities

When measanng inwrance contract labilines, the Group elassilied inwrande coniracts whose insurance nisks are aof wmilar
natufe as @ meaturement wnit Insurance contract habilines ae measured based on a reasonably estimated amount of
payment that the Group i1 obliged to pay to fulfill relevant obigatons under the inturance cortracl. At the eénd of each
reporting pediod, hability adequacy 1851s are perfermed. I the irsurance contract kabdies re-calculated wath the msurance
attustial method excesd thesr carmng amounts on date of the liabihty adequacy test, an additional provision shal be made
for the respective nsurance contract kabdibes based an the difference. Oiherwse, no adustment 5 rmade to the respectve
Ingurance contract liabilities.
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(26} Revenue recognition

Revenue i recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
rewenus can be refiably measured. The following specific recognition critenia must also be met before revenue i moognised:

Interest incame

For afl finarcial instruments measured at amestsed cost and imerest-generating financial instrments classtied as financial
assets measeed at FYOCI, interest income &5 recorded at the eflective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected e of the financial instrisment, where appeopriate, (o the
book value of the financial asset, o the amorised cost of financial Babikty. The calculation takes into acoount all contractual
fenms of the financial instrument (for examgle, prepayment options) and includes any fees or mcremental costs that ane
directly atiributable to the nstrument and are an integral part of the effective intevest rmte, but not expected credit losses.

Interest income # calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the book value of financial assets and & included in

interest income, cwcopt for;

(it For purchased or ongmated credit-impaired finanoal assets, whose interest income & calculated, since iretial
recognition, by apolying the credit adjusied elfectrve interest rate 1o their amortised cost; and

(i} Firancial assets that ame not purchased or originated oredit-mpaired but have subsequently become credit-impaired,
whose interest income & calculated by applying the effectve interest rate to thewr amortised cost {Le. rat of the
rrpected credit loss provision), H, in a subsequent period, the fmancal assets improve thesr quaktes so that they ae
rio longer cradit-mpaired and the mprovement in credit quality is related cluactnaely 10 a cortain svent ocouming after
the application of the abowe-mentioned rules, then the interest incoma is caloulated by applying the effective interest
rate 1o thair book value

Fee and commission income

The Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides fo ds customers, The fee and
commission mcome recognised by the Group reflects the amount of consideration to whech the Group sspects 1o be entitled
in eechange for transferring promised services to customens, and inoeme 5 recognised when its performance obligation in
contracty is satisfied,

[} The Group fecognoes mcome over time by messuring the progress towards the complete satifacton of a
performance obligation, if ene of the folowing ortena s met

- The tustemer smultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

= The csstomer controls the service provided by the Group in the course of performance; or

= The Group does not provide service wath an slternative vie to the Greup, and the Group had an enforceable
righl to payment for performance completed to date.

(i} In other casas, the Group recognises revenue at a point in time at which & cusiomar obtains contral of the promised
SENCES.

Dividend incame

Dividend income & secognised when the Group's right to recelve payment is established.

Net trading income

Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from chamges in fair vabie for financial assets and financial
labdnies that are held for trading. This indudes gains and kosses from changes in fair value relating to the ineffective portson
af the hedgng arrangements.
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(27) Income tax

Income tax comprises currant ard deferred income tax. Income tax s recognised in profit or loss except that it relates to
Hems recognised directly in aguity, i which case it i recognized in eguity.

Current tax

Current tax assets and [iabdities for the current and prior pencds ae measured at the amount expected 1o be recovered from
or paid to the asation authorties. The tax rates and fax lows used 1o compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reparting period

Deferred income tax

Deferred incoeme tax 5 provided wsing the liability method on temporary differences at the end of the reporiing penod
batwesn the tax bases of assets and Babifities and their carniing amounts.

Defarred sncome tax Eabilites ame recognaed Tor all taxable temporary differences, excem:

{iy  Whese the defesred income tax kability anses from the inilal recognition of goodwll or of an asset or Hability 0 a
trarsaction that i nol & business combination and, st the time of the ramaction, affects nesther the accounting prafin
not tanable incorne of deductible expenses; ard

(it In respect of taxable temporary differences assecated with investments in subsidianes, associates and jaint ventures,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the termparary
differences will not be reversed in the fereseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for af deductible temporary diferences, camyforward of unused tax credits.
and umused tax losses, fo the extent that it is probable that tacable profit will be available agaimst which the deductible
temporary differences, ard the camydorward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be wilised, except:

{y  Whete the defeired inoomme tax asset relating to the deductible temporary deferances anises from the initial recognition
af an asset or lisbility in a transacten that 5 not a business combination and, at the time of the fransaction, affects
neither the accounting prolit nor tadable income or deductible expenses; and

{it  In respect of deductible tormporary differences assodiated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferned income tax assels are recognised ooy to the extent that it & peobable that the temporary
differences will be reversed in the foreseeable future and taxakle profit will be available against which the temporary
differanes can be utilsed,

Delerred income tax asiets and defered income lax labilities ate measured at the tax rated that e expected to apaly ta
the petiod when the asiet B resleed o the Hability i settled, based on tax rated (and tax lews) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of sach reporting pericd and reflact the conespanding tax effect

The carmpng amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting penod and reduced to the extent
that it is no lenger probable that sufficent tasable income will be available to allow all or paet of the deferred income tax
assat to be utilised. When it is virtially probable that swfficient taxabls income will be avaliable, the reduced amoun? can be
reverses accordingly.

Defarred incoms tax assets and deferned incoma tax Eabiities are offset it a legally enforceabla nght exists to set ofl current
tam afsets against cument tax liabilities and the deferred income tases relate o the same taable entity and the same tamation
autharity
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(28) Leases

& contract is lease o the lessor conmveys the nght to conbrol the use of an identified asset 1o lessee for a penod of fima in
exchanga for consideration,

Ap inception of & contract, the Group sswesses whether a contract i, or contains, i lease. & eontract is, or confaing, a lease i
this cantract canveys the ght 1o comrad the use of an idertifed asset Tor 4 perad al time in sochange for condideration

T assess whether 3 contract conveys the nght to controd the use of an igentified assat, the Group assesses whethar

- the contract imvalees the use of an dentifed assel. An identified asset may ba specified explicitly or implicitly specified
in @ conract and should be physically distingt, or capacity portion or other portion of an assel that 15 not physically
gistinct but it repeesents substantially all of the capacity of the asset and thereby provides the customer with the
nght to obtain substantially all of the economic beneits from the we of the asset. if the suppber has a substantie
subisttution right theoughout the period of use, then the asset is not dentified.

= e lessee has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic bemefits from use of the asset throwghout the pediod
of use;

- the lesses has the night to direct the use of the asset.

For a contract thal containg lease and non-lease components, the Group has elecied nat to separate non-lease components
from lease components and account for the eawe and non-liane components 43 a single fease component

(i) As alessee

The Group recognises a night-of-use assat and a lease liability at the lpase commencement date. The right-of-ise asset i
initially measurad at cost, which comprses the initial amount of the lease lability, any lease payments made af or bebore
the commancement date (lais any [easa incentives recesed], any initial direct fosts inoerad and an estimate of oosks o
dismantle and remoye the andarlying asset of to resiore the ste on which if s lncated or restore the wndedying asse o the
condition required by the terma and conditions of the lease

The rghz-of-use asset 5 depreciated usng the straight-ine method. I the lessse is reasonably certain to exercie a purchase
option by the end of the lease terr, the myht-of -use asset (s depreciated over the remaining wseful lives of the underlying
asset. Oihensse, the nght-of-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date to the earler of the end ef the useful
Iife of the nght-of-use asel or the end of the lease term. Impairmert fosses of nght-ol-use assets are accounted for in
accordance with the sccounting policy described in Nate 3 (21),

The |ease liability s initially measured at the presant value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date. Each imtitution of the Group uses interest rate that a lessee would have to pay to bormow over a similar term, and with
& smilar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the rnight-of-use asset in a similar economic
emwironment & incremental bormowing rate.

A congtant penodet rate 5 ised to caltulate the imetest on the lase lability i each pencd durng the ldaie term with
a comespording charge 1o profit or loss or included = the cost of assels where appropriate. Varable lease payments
Aot included n the measutement of the lexse liability & charged to profit of fods of included in the co of meets whens
approprisle o incwred

Under the lollewing drcumstances after the commencement date, the Group remeasures kease [abeilees based on the
present value of revsed lease payments:

= there is 2 change in the amounts expected fo be payable under a residuad value guarantes,

= there is a change in future lease payments resulting from o change in an index or & rate wsed 1o determine thowe
payments;

- thiere ts a change in the assessment of whether the Group will sxerne a purdhase, extension of terrranation optan, o
there is @ change in the exercise of the extenion or terminaticn eption.

\Whien the lease liability is remeaswned, a conesponding adjustment is made to the camying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or 15 recorded in prafit or loss # the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has boon reduced to zoeo
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The Group hay elected not to recogrise nght-of-use awsets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leazes of ovevalue assets. The Group recognises the lease payments aviocisted with these leases in
prafit or loss or as the cost of the assets where apprognate using the szrasght-ling method ower the lease term.

(Vi) As alessar

The Group determines. a1 lexse inception whather each leate is & finance lease or an operating leass. A lease i clasifiod s
4 finance lease # it transfers substantially all the ks and revwards incidental to ownershio of an underlying asset irrepective
of whethor the legal title to the st i eventually tramsferred. 4n operating lewse s & kease cther than & finance lease.

When the Group |s @ sub-lessor, it assesses the lease dassification of a sub-ledse with relerence to the right-of-use aset
arising from the head lease, not with relerence to the undedying asset. Il a head lease i3 a shor-term kease 1o which the
Group applies prectcal sxpedient described above, then [ classifes the sub-lease a5 an operating lease.

Under a finance lease, st the ocemmencement date, the Group recognises the linance kease recevalle and derecognises the
finance lease asset. The finance lease recefrable i initially measured al an amount equal to the nel ivestment in the lease,
The net mvestment in the kease i mesured at the sggregate of the unguaranieed resktual value ahd the presenl value of
the lease recaivable that are nol recerved at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate wnpbeit in the lease

The Group recogniies finante incoime aver 1he lease tevm, baded on & pattern ieflecting a constand pencdic rate of retumn
The derecognition and impament of the finance lease recevable are recognised in scoordance with the accounting policy in
Mote 3(5) and 6} Varable lease payrrenia not micluded in the measurernent of net investment in the lease &e !otng'mod
& incormie as they ane earmed

Leaie recenpls from operating leases (s recognised & income usng the straight-hne methad over the wase term. The imitial
direct costs [newmed in respect of the operating lease are initially capitalised and subsequently amortised in profit o loss over
the bease term on the same bask a3 the fease incorme. Variable lease payments nat included in lease receipts ane recogresed
a8 incoemie as they ars earmed.

(29) Related parties

A party s condidered 1o be related 1o the Geoup if!
(&)  the party 3 a person or a chose member of that persan’s family and that person
il has cantrad or joint contrel over the Group:
ml  has sgaificant influence ever the Graup, or
(Wl s a member ol the key management pesonnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(B} thi party =5 an entity where ary of the felowing condition: applies:
i the entity and the Group are membars of the xame graup;

ml  one entry 5 an asociate or joind venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsideary of the
other entity),

() the entity and the Graup are joint veniures of the same thind pany.
il one entity v a joind venture of & third entity and the other antily & an associate of the third antity:

[ the entity s 8 post-employment beneld plan foe the becefit ol employest at sither the Group or an entity
related 1o the Group:

(vl the entity is controlied of jointly controlied by a person dentified in (al;

beill a person (dentified in {alil has significant influence over the entity o I3 a member of the key management
persannel of the entity (oe of a parent of the entity); and

foisl  The entity, of any member of 2 Group of which It & a part., provides key management personnel serced 1o the
Group or 1o the Group's parent,
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(30} Financial guarantee controcts

The Group weues financial guarantes contracts, including lefters of oredit, betters of guarantes and acceptance, Thess
financial guarantes contracts provide for specified payments 1o be made to reimburse the holders {or the lodses they incur
when a guaranteed party defaults under the oniginal or modified terms of a debt mstrument, loan ar any ather cbigation

The Groamp imially measures all financial contracs af tar valie, in other liahilities, besng the premium mecoeved. The
ambint s recognived ratably over the pedod of the contract as lee and commission income. Subsequently, the Habilities are
measured al the highes af the amaunt of the loss allwance determned (0 accordance with fmgairment polices of financial
instiuments (refer (o Nate 3061} and the amaunt inikally recogrised less the cumulative amount of neame. Ary inereass in
this liatility relating to a tmanoal quasartes i taken to The statement ot prodit of boss

(31) Contingent liabilities

A centingent lability i a possible obbgation that arises Trom past events and whose existende will enly be confirmed by
the ooturrence or nen-occummence of one of more uncertain fulure events nad whally within the contrel af the Group. It
can alsa be & present obligation ansng fram past events that & nol recognised because i i not probabile that an outfiow
of economic resources will be required o the amouns of obligation cannat be measured rellably, Contingent liabiiitics ane
disclesed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outllow sccurs o that sutflow i
probable and can be rellably estmated, it will then be recognised a5 a provision

(32) Dividends

Dividerids are recognised ax & Babifity and decucted from equity when they se approved by the Bank's shamwhokiers in
gewieral meetings and dedared, interim dividends are deducted from equity when tey are approved amd declared, and no
longer at thw dacretion of the Bank. Dividend for the year that & approved after the end of the reporting period is disdosed
a5 an wvent alte the reporting pevied

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policees, management has used s judgements and made assumptions
of the effects of uncertain future events on the financial statements. The most sgnificant use of judgements and key
assmplions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reparting period that
hawe a sigrificant 1k of causing o material sdstment to the camang amounts o) assets and labilities wihin the rext
financial penod are doesonbed below,

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measurad at amontsed cost and FYOC) and wath
exposurs ariing from lean commitments and financial quarantes contracts, is a0 area that requires the we of complax
models and significant assumptiors aboul future economic conditions and credit behavior ithe Bcelihood of customers
defauliing ard the resulting kosses). Refer o Note 51(a) credit risk for the explanation of the inputi, assumptions and
estimabon technigues used in measuring ECL

Impailrment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis and when orcumstances indicate that the
caying vilue may be impaired. This requires an estimation of the recoverable amound of the CGU or groups of CGLk o
which the goodwill is alacated, Estimating the ecoverable amcunt requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the CGU or groups of CGUs and abo to choose a suitable discount rate in order to caloulate the
presant walue of those cash Tlows,
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[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

Incame tax

Determining income tay provisons requires the Group 1o estimate the future tax treatment of certain transactions, The
Group carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions in accordance with prevalling tax regulations and makes tax
provisons accordngly In addidion, deferred income tax assets are recognied to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be availlable against which the deductible temporary differences can be utiksed. This requires significant
estimation on the tax treatments of cerfan transactiont and ako signdicant assessment on the probability that adeguate
future tazabla profits will be availabls for the doferred income tae assets 10 be recovered

Fair value of financial instruments

i the market for a financial instrument & not active, the Group establishes faie walue by using @ valwation technique
Valuation technigues include wsing recen! aem's length market transactions between knowledgeable and willing parties,
if avadable, reference to the ourrent fair value of anaother instrument that i substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing madets. To the exient practicable, valuation technigue makes maximum wse of market inputs
However, where market inputs are not available, management needs to make estimates on such unchservable market
inputs

Determination of cantrol over investees

hanagement applies its jwdgement to determine whether the control indicators set out in Mote 301 indicate that the Group
controls secuntsation vehicles, imestrrent funds, wealth management products, asset management plans, trust plans or
asset-backed securities.

Securitisation vehicles

Centain secuntisation vehicles sponsored by the Group wnder its securitisatinn programme are mn - accodding 1o
predatermingd criteria thal are part of the initial design of the wehicles In addition, the Groip is edposed to variability of
retiems from the wehicles through its holding of debt wecunties in the vehides ard outside the day-to-day senvicing of the
recaivables {which is camed out by the Growp under a serdong contract]. Key decitions are wsually required only when
recaivables in the vehicles go into defaukt. Therefiore, i considesing whether it has contral, the Group conssders whather it
manages these key decisions that most significantly affect these vehicles® returms.

Investment funds, wealth management products, asset management plans, trust plans and
asset-backed securities

Thee Group acts a5 manager 10 4 nember of investment funds, wealth management poducts, asset management plans, trust
plans and assets-backed securities. Wheen assessing whether controls such a structured entity, the Group would determing
whether it exeroses the decsion-making rights as a prncipal or an agent and usually foouses on the assessment of the
aggregate economic interesis of the Growp in the entity (comprising ary carried interests and espected management feas)
and the decision-making authonty of the entity. The Group would also determine whether another entisy with decision-
making rights i acting as an agent for it

Far turther disdosure in respect of uncomsolidated immstment funds, wealth management products, ssset management
plans, trust plans and assets-backed securities in which the Group has an interes: or for which it is a sporsor, ses Note 41
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5. IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Growp hat not appled the following new and revied IFRSs and LASs that have been moued but are nat yet effective, in
these financial statemenis

RS 3 Amendmenty Clarifying what iz a busingss'
1A% 1 and IAF & Amendments Detindtion of Materal’
FRE S, 145 39 and Interest Rate Benchmank Reform’
FRS 7 -Amendments
s 7 Imsusance contracts’
145 T Amendiments Classification of Liabiites a3 Current ar Non-curent’

MRS 10 and 1AS 28 Amendments Sale ar confribution of azsets between an investor and its azsociate or faint ventune
1 Effective or annual penads beginring on of after 1 January J020, early adoption is permaned,

i Effective fior annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, early adophion s permtted only for companes that abo
apaly [FRS 9 and IFRS 15,

3 Appifying retrispecinely lor ennual periods beginning on or alter 1 lanisery 2022, eatly adoplion is permitted.
4 Effective ‘o annual pereds 5 10 be determoned, eady atoption o permted,
Furthier information about these changes that ane expected to affect the Group is as follows.

Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations “Clarifying what is a business”™

The 1458 has dsued amendments to IFRS 3 that seek to clandy the defintion of bisinets. The amendments indude an
election 1o uwe o concentration 1wt I a proparer chooses not 10 apply the concentration test, or the test i faded, then the
aipbwmont focuies on the euitence ol & subitantive protess. The affect of these changes iz that the new delinition of a
busmess is narrower, which could resull in fewer business combinations beng recognised, The amendments may require a
complex isetiment 16 decidi whisthir a trantacten 11 & butineds combination o an astel siquiutien

The amendments are expected 10 have no matenal impact on linanckal positien and financlal perfermance.

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and 1AS B, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, “Definition of Material”

The amendments clarify the defintion of matetial and hew i thauld be applied by meuding in the deinithon gudancs that
uritil noww ha Beatured shewhers in FRS Standards. in addition, the explanations accomparmying the definman have been
impravied and the ameadments arire that the definiben ol matenal & condaent acrodw all IFRS Standards

The amendments are expected 1o have no matenal impact on linanoal postien and finannal perfermance.

Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, 1AS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, and IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures, “Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform”

The 1ASE ssued the amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 35 and IFRS 7, which aims 1o addeess uncertainties related to the angoing
reform of irterbank offered rates ("IBOR)

The amandments provide targeted reliel for financial instruments qualitying for hedge accounting in the lead up to IBDR
teferm. They are mandatory and apply to o hedging melationships directly atfected by wncertaintes refated 1o IBOR roform,

The amendments are expected 10 have no matedal impact on financal pasition and financial perfarmance.
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IFRS 17, "“Insurance contracts”

IFRS 17 is issued to resobre the companson problems created by IFRS 4 by setting out a single pringple-based standard for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and dischosure of irsurance conftracts in the financial statemants of the issuens
of those contracts.

T Growp (4 currently assessing the impact of the andand on ms linancal postion and linanceal perlormance.

Amendments to 1AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, *Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Nan-current®

The A58 Bsved narrow-scope amendmends to 1AS 1 to clartly how to dassly debt and other Habilities a3 current of non-
current

The amerdrments mainly aim to darify:

that the dassification of labilities a5 currant or non-curent & based on the rights existing at the end of the reperting
period; and

that the meaning of "settlement™ & broad and includes *the transler te the counterparty af cah, dquity iMMiruments,
other assets or semmce”,

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on ifs financial position and financial pedformance.

Amendments to IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial 5tatements, and A5 28, Investment in
associates and joint ventures, "Sale or contribution of assets betwaen an investar and its
associate or joint venture”

The amendments miroduce new requirements on loss of contral over 2ssets i a transaction with an associate of pant
venfure, These requirements require the full gain 1o be recognised when the assets pansferred meet the definiven of a
“business” under IFRS 3, Business combination.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on its finandal posftion and finandial pedcemance.

6. NET INTEREST INCOME

2018 2018
Interest moome on.

Lowns and advanoes to customens 707,400 640,031
Corpatate loans and advances 437,209 407,779
Personal loans 157,982 217,860
Ducounted bills 12,209 14352

Fnancial mvestments 221,184 200,157

[ from banks and other financial insmutions 63,385 58,660

Dwe from central banks 46,185 49, 346

1.038.154 GaB O
Interest expanie on;

Due 1o customen {331,066) (280, 212)

[wie 1o banks and other financial institutions (63.286) (6, 8810

Debt secuntes issued (36866 (30,373

(431,228} (3755761
Mt interest income B06.926 ET'E.SIB
Tha above imeredt income and expenie are related to financial imstruments which are not measured at FyTPL
hanwsl Haport 2000 189
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7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
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Bank card business
Setthement, chearing business and cash management
Personal wealth management and private banking senaces §i)
Investmant Banking business

Corporate wealth management services {i)

Guarartee and commitment Busness

Assat custody business (i)
Trust and agency services (i)
Othees

Few and commission income
Fes and commistion sapense

Net Tee and COMMEssan (ncome

2019 018
A4T.054 43iMe
37.32%) 31.785
27337 27,596
13,660 24,003
14,024 14,582
10,636 B.BE1

7004 7045

1,560 1,959

2,615 .78

171,641 162347
(160410 (17.048)
155,600 145301

@ Indluded m personal wealth management and private banking senioes, corporate wealth management services, mst
ountody busneis and st and sgency wennces above i3 an amount of AMBE14, 855 million (2018 AMB T 5,E35 million]

wirth respect o trust and other fiduciary actvities

B. MNET TRADING INCOME

Dbt securities
Eruity investments
Derivatives and others

2019 2018
4013 4 087
1216 [151)
2118 (1.0
Ba4y 2,846

The abewe amaunts mainly include gains and lesses arising Trom the buying and selfng of, interest inceme and expente on,

andd changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities held for trading

9. MET (LOSS)/GAIN ON FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

2019 1018
Diwidend income from equity investments designated as at PVOCH, induding:
Derecognised dunng the year = 1
Held at the year end ar8 18
(Lossp'gain on financial instruments measured al PSTPL, net 16, 1444 52
Including:
Loss on financial instruments designated as at ATIL (19,5381 {1,824)
Gasn on disposal of financial instruments
measured at FYOCL net 1408 &35
Qthers 16 185
(3.682) 1.345
190 icec @
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2018 018
et pramium incoome 53,857 33,420
Operating cost of inpurance business {54, 754) (31,7321
Me1 gain on disposal of property and equpment, repossessed assets and others 1,264 1.936
Dthers B 344 (4733
o B XL
11. OPERATING EXPENSES
2019 2018
Staff costs:
Salaries and bonuses B0, 757 76,985
Sraff benefits 249,404 27,137
Fost-empioyment benafits — defined contribubon plans (i) 16, 76% 16,952
126.950 121,074
Fropesty and equepement expens s
Depreciation charge for
property and squapment assets 13,290 13,407
Lease expenses in respect of land and building: 8,190 1.543
Repairs and maintenance chasges 4,151 3,903
Lrility expenses 2,082 2,135
FFEIEEn 17.088
Amartisation 315 1,339
Cther adrministratioe ixponies (x) 9,308 13,794
Tanes and surcharges T.677 7,781
Cthers 13813 12,627
207,776 194,203

(b The defied contrlmtion plans masnly indude contributions 10 the state pension and the Bank’s Annuity Plan

(b The prncipal auditoe's remuneration of RMB222 million for the yoear (2018 RMB216 milion) is included in other

admmistrative sxpenies.
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12. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the directors’ and supervisors' emoluments belore tax, as disclosed pursuant 1o the Rules Goveming the Listing
af Securitied an the Stock Exchange of Hang Kang Limited ard Chapler 622 Section 383 of the Hang ¥ong Companies
Ceclinance, are i follows

You e 31 Deiamber X
Remunsration Delimed Tetal
paid  eenizibutien ermalumants
Hame Peuitan befors lax Py L] before tas
RME000 AMB000 AN D00 AMEDT
1] i) B =(12he3)
Chan Sigeg (i Chaamman of the Board of Duneciors,
Ennqutve Dot 88 B4 - 4
G S [ Vice Chairman of the Boaed ol Direciors:
Espqutwe Direcioe, Pressdent 59 128 - [ L]
Yarg Guoghong (k) Chasrrman of the Board of Supermon - - - -
Therg Fugng Hon-peecuiave Direcior - - - -
Ma Yingchun Hon-meuis Direcior - - - -
Lu Yangrher vl Hon-precuiae [recior - - - -
Feesg Wieidong iv) Hon-guusme Darecior - - - -
Cao Ligun v} Mon-eeecusve Direcior - = - -
Artiomy Francs Neoh Indegendent Non-seecutrve Duector - - ars 4%
Yang e Shun b Indegendent Man-eeecutive Dinector - B ath dd6
Sheda Cobien Bair Indegendent Non-eaecutive Diector - - L] 430
then's Indrgendent Non-reecutive Dwector - - 448 445
hcet Wiedlink Indegendent Non-sascutive Diector - - LFE] 423
Fred Tulss Hu firid Indegendent Man-geecutive Dwector - = 308 8
Thang Wi [vidd Sharehoider Rigewantatve Supenisor 1 128 - 1073
t Fing Empioyee Arperweiasd ve upeniur - - ] 50
Huang Li i) Emgioyoe Ripivietatve Sopenisor = - 4] 1
Qu Qang Eatemal Supermo: - - 750 Ho
Shaert Bingui o] Extemal Supervaor - - - -
1 Hudman [ Former Charrman of the Board of Directon,
Exstudive: Directiad w 7 - 119
e Hasa (i) Former Executive Duector, Vice Fresdent 21 128 - (k]
Tan Bong (i, Formes Eneculve Diteciod, Wice Presdent £l oL - 437
Cheng Fengchao (o) Former Hon-gaecutmve Dicioe - - - =
Y Donghal ind Ferinet Hon-enidutve Dnecioed - - - -
Dong St (v} Former Non-esecutve Do - - - -
Hheng Wengmisa il Fermet independent Mon-exscutive Ditector = = 125 125
Tl 15815 586 3az 6513

Mote: Since January 2015, the remunssation 1o the Chairman of the Board of Direcions, the President, the Chairman of the Board of
Supervisors and other executives of the Bank have follwed the PRC authores’ policies relating 1o the remuneraton reform

on eveculsees of central enterprises.

The total compensation packages for the Charman of the Board of Directors, Presiderv, Chaiman of the Board of
Supervisors, Execuive Directors, and Shareholder Representative Supervisors of the Bank have not been finalaed in
accordance with the regulatiors of the PRC rebevant authontes. The remuneration not yet sccrued i not expecied o have a
ugnifscant impact on the Group's 2019 financal statements. The 1otsl compensston packsges will be histher dacdased when

determined by the relevant authonties.

Fees of My, Hu Ping and Mr. Huang Ui wene ther sbowasnces obtained as Employee Representative Supservison of the Bank,

excluding their remunesation with the Bank in accordance with the employes remuneration syslem.

192
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A3 a1 the approval date of these financial statements, changes of directors and supervisars of the Bank are as follows:

{y At the Board of Direcied held an 29 Apell 2019, Mr. Chen Siging was nomiaated as Executnee Director and elected o
Chalrman of the Bowd of Directors of the Bank. At the Fest Extrootdinary General Meestng of 2019 held on 20 May
2019, Mr. Chen Siging was elected as Executive Directas and his term of Chairman of the Baard of Direclors of the
Bank andd Execuiive Director took effect frem the date of approval by the meeting,

{ir At the Second Exiracrdenary General Meeting of 2019 held on 22 November 2018, Mr. Gu Shu was re-elected a5
Executve Director of the Bank, and his new term of office took effect from the date of review and approval by the
meeting.

fiii) At the Fir Extraordingry Genoral Meeting of 2020 held on B Janusary 2020, Mr. Yang Guorhong was olected
shareholder supenisor and Chalrman of the Board of Supenivors of the Bank, and his term of office tock effect from
the date of review and approval by the minetng

() At the Anncal Mesting of 2013 held on 20 June 2019, Mr. Lu Yongzhen was elected as Noa-executive Director of the
Bank, and his term of office took effect from the date of review and appreval by the CBERC.

(wh At the Second Extracedinary General Meeting of 2019 held on 12 Novenber 2019, Mr. Feng Weidong and Mrs. Cao
Ligun were lected as Non-sxecutive Diractor of the Bank, and their terms of office took effact fram the date of revew
and approval by the CBIRC

(el &b the sharsholder” general mesting of 2018 held on 20 une 2019, Mr. Yang Siu Shun has been re-elecied &
Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank, and b niny term of othoe took effect from the date af review and

approval by the mesting.

{wil At the First Extraordinary General Meeting of 2018 held an 21 November 2018, Mr. Fred Zuliu Hu was elected as
Independent Mon-esecutive Director of the Bank. and his term of office took effect from the date of review and
approval by the CBIRC.

{wiil} At the shareholders” general meeting of 2018 held on 20 June 2019, Mr. Thang Wel ard M, Shen Bingai have been
ehocted a3 sharehokder supervisar and external superviscr of the Bank mespectively, their terms of cffice took offect
from the expiry date of their cument terms of office.

(i} On 21 June 2019, NMi Huang LU was elecied as the employee supervisor of the bank at the specal meetng of the
firm1 sessen of employes representative assembly of the Bank, and his new term o office teak eflect from the date of
ety and approval by the meeting.

(s} In Ranuary 2015, Mr ¥i Huiman ceased bo acl s Chairman of the Board of Direclors and Execulive Director of the
Bank due to thange of job assgnments.

(xl} At the First Extraordinary General Meeting of 2019 held on 20 May 2019, M, Hu Hao and Mr, Tan liong were elected
s Executwe Directer of the Bank. and ther terms of office tock effect frem the date of review and appreval by the

CBIRC.

(ki) In Febrsary 2020, Mr. Hu Hao ceased 1o act a3 Executne Dhrector and Vice President of the Bank due 1o change of job
assignments,

(miii} In September 2019, Mr, Tan Nong ceased to act as Executive Director and Vice Pressdent of the Bank due to change of
job assgnments

kvl In Apeil 2019, Mr. Cheng Fengehao ¢oased ta act ai Non-executive Directar of the Bank eiting hiz age.

{xvh  In March 2020, Mre ¥e Donghal ceased to act ad Non-eweodie Dieector of the Bank due 1o change of pb
ashgnments.

(ewil  In Febauany 2020, Mr, Dong Shi ceased to act as Mon-exequtive Deector of the Bank dus 1o change of job assignments.

{wvi) In Apnd 2018, Mr. Hong Yorgmiao ceased to act & Independent Nan-executive Director due to the expiration of the
term
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Mofe: Sirce lamuary 2015, the remunératicn 1o the Chairman of the Board of Directons, the President, the Chairman of the Board of
Supervisors and other exeutives of the Bank haye follewed the PRC authorities” policies relating to the rermuneraton refoem
on execulives of central enterprives.

The remuneration before tax payable to Direciars and Superesors for W08 set out in the lable above represents the todal
amount of annual remuneration for esch ol thess mdeodaaby, wwhich mcludes the smount decloeed m the 2018 Annual Report.

Fursuant 1o the PRC relevant regulstions, & porlion ol the discrationary banus pmyments for the Chairran ol the Board
of Disectos, the President, the Chalrman of the Board of Supesvaon, [ascutve Dicectors and other serkor managemsen]
members ate deferied bated o the uture performandce.

Fees of My Hud Ping and Mr. Huang Li were their aioswances obtained as Employee Repredentative Supervison of the Bank,
extluding their remuncration with the Bank i accordamce wath the employor remuneration sysiom.

Aa 3 the aporoval date of thete fnandal statements, changes of directon and supenion of the Bank are 2% foliows:

i

(i}

194

At the 2017 Annual General Meesting held on 26 June 2018, Mr. Chang Fengchao was m-slecind a0 Non-sxsoutive
Director of the Bank, and his renw term of office took effect from the date of review and approval by the mesting

&t the Firit Extraordinary Geaneral Meeting of 2018 held on 31 Mowember 2018, Mr. Zheng Fuging was reselectod o
Hon-suecutyve Director of the Bank, and his new terms of office ook effect from the date of review and approval by the
mewling.
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lily & the Fest Extracrdnary General Meeting of 2018 held on 21 November 2018, Br. Nout Welink 'was apponted i
Independent Non-executne Diector of the Bank, and his teren o office took elfect from 3 December 2018,

{wh Qi 21 Saptembse 2018, the Bank re-elected Mr, Hul Ping a5 Employes Superases of the Bank a1 the specal mesling of
thae first session of employes mpresentative assembly of the Bank, and his rew tiem of office took effect from the date
af revimw and approval by the Employees’ Congrass,

v} At the Fint Exdracrdinary Genedal Meeting of 2018 held on 31 Howember 2018, Mr. Qu Qang was re-slecied a5
Extornal Supsvinor of the Bank, and hin mew term of office took offect from 20 December 2018

wlp I Janiasny 2019, 8 ¥ Human ceased 1o st i Chairman of the Board of Diecton and Exscutive Directad of the Bank
due 1o change af job asgrments.

Wwill  In anuary 20018, Mr. Chan Wenhie retlgned froem the positions of Sapssdeor-and Chairman of the Board of Superdsom
of the Bank due 1o changs of joh assigmments

Wit} In July 2018, Mr. Thang Hongh ceaved 10 act as Eoroutoee Director of the Bank due to sxprration of the term af office,
and rewgned from the position of Vice President of the Bank due to tamily reasons

{ix)  In September 2008, Mr. Wang lingdong ceased to act as Exscutive Direclor and Vice Presicent of the Bank due to
chamge of job assigrirents.

) In Ccioder 2018, Mr. Fa Phouln ceased to act as Hon-executive Director of the Bank citing his age:

iy In October 2018, due to expirabon af the term of office, Mr. Or Ching Fai ceased 1o act as Independent Mom-eecutive
Director af the Bank.
The Non-sxecutive Directors of the Bank who were recormemended by Huijin recelved emoluments from Huign in respect of
fhesr services during the year

During the year, there was no arregement under which a Direclor of a Supermor waived or agrsed o wave any
remureration (FOVEC N,

During the year, no emolument was paid by the Group 1o any of the Directors or Superdisors as an inducement 1o pain or
upen pening the Greup of a3 & compersation for lzss of effice (2018: Nil)

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The feve kighest paid indiiduals of the Group are employees of the Bank's subsdiaties Their emoluments were determined
based on the prevalling market rates in the respective countriesregions where the subsidearies are operating. Nore of them
ate directors, suparvisors or key management personnel of the Bank whose emoluments are disciosed in notes 12 and £9(e)
1o the financal statements. Detalls of the emoluments in respect of the frve haghest paid individuals are as follows:

201§ 018
AMB 000 RME'DOD
Salaries and afowances 19,508 16,350
Discretionacy beflives B, 192 67,333
Defined contribution plans m 611
Coinpersation lor lemminaling contract 11,273 -
Others 4,933 -
103,067 e 1

hunwsl Hepore 200009 ]qt_l
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The number of these mdividuals whone emoluments Tell within the following bands s set out below

Humber of employees
2019 2018
1

RME12,000,001 Yuan to RME1 2,500,000 Yuan 1
FMB13,500,000 Yuan to RMB14,000,000 Yuan 1
RNB 14,500,001 Yuan to RMEB15,000,000 Yuan 1 -
RMGE15, 500,000 Yuan to RMET 6,000,000 Yuan - 1
RNB23, 500,000 Yuan to RMBZ 4,000,000 Yuan 1
RNB25, 500,001 Yuan 1o RMB2E 000,000 Yuan -
RMB26,500,001 Yuan to RMBZT,000,000 Yuan -
RKIB38, 500,001 Yuan to RME39,000,000 Yuan

1
1
5 5

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of these nan-director and non-supenmor indeaduals as an
inducemisnt fo poin or wpon joining the Groug (2618: Nil)

14. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON ASSETS

Mates 2019 018
Loans and advancas 10 customens FE] 162,108 147,347
thers 16,643 14.247
178.957 161,594
15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
{a) Income tax expense
2019 Fiib]
CUfent INCome tax expense:
Manland Chira 78666 76.088
Hong Seng and Macau 2.2044 2.510
Overseas 3.380 3.280
B4, 360 81,878
Deferred income tax expense (5,862) @, 183
78,428 73,690

196 icec @
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(b} Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit

PREC income tax has been provided 1 the statutory rate of 25% in accordance with the relevant tid laws in Mainkand China
during the year. Taxes an profits ssessable esewnere have been caloulated at the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the
countnesregions in which the Group operates. based on euisting legislaton, mismpretations and praciices in respect thereaf
& reconciliation of the income tax supense applicable 1o profit before taxation at the PRC statutory mcome tax rate to
Income tax expenge at the Group's effective income tax rate s at lollows:

2018 18

Profit before taxation 391,789 371413
Ta a1 the PAC statutory mcome ta rate a7,047 23,103
Ettects of different anplicable rates ef tax prevailing in ather countresreglans (1.684) (1.47h
Etlects of non-deductible sxpenses (1) 16,585 N
Etfecis of non-tazable incoeme (i) (34, 180) (28,969
Etlects of profits attnbutable 1o assooiates and joint ventures (B30 (TEN
Etfecis of athars 400 334

Freame Lax expense TE42E 73,680

il The non-geductible experses mainly represent non-deductible impairment provision, wite-offs and sthers

fiy  The non-tacable income mainly represents nisnest income aming from the PRC govenment bands and municipal
debts, which i exempled from income tax.

16. PROFIT ATTRIEUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY
The consobdated prahit attnbutable to equity holden of the parent company lor the year ended 31 Decermber 2019 includes

a prn'f:-'l ol AMB29E, 338 milien R01E: AMEZE2 044 millian) which had been dealt with in the hrancial staterments of the
Bank (Mote 399,

17. DIVIDENDS

2015 2018
Dividends en ordinary shares declaied and paid:
Funal ardinary shares deidends for 2018; RMEQ. 2505 per share
{2017 EMBD 2408 pir shadel 80,315 E5,B23
Didends on preference shores declared and pasd: Dradends 4,525 4,506
2018 2018
Dirvidends on ondinary shares proposed for approval
{nat recognised as at 31 December)
Fmal ardinary shares deidends for 2019; RMBO 2628 per share
(I018 RMBO. 2506 per thare) 83,664 E8.315
hoanwsl Heport 2000 '|L__|:-|
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18. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of basse and dikrted earmngs per thare of the Group 11 based on the followng:

EDINETOOOO
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019 018
Earnings
Prasfit for thee year ativibctable 1o equity holders of the parert campary 3224 197 676
Less: Frabit far the year attribut sble 1o ather aquety instfumesnts
heldess af the patert company 14, 525) |4, 504
Prafit for the year atiributable 1o ordinary equity holders of the parent cormpany 30T o 293170
Shases:
Waighted average number of ardirary shares i issue (in million shanes) 356,400 356407
Basar and dduted sarnings pef thare (RME yuan) 0.Es 082

Basic and diluted earnmings per shaie was calculaied as the profit for the year atinbutable to ordinasy equity holdess of the

parent company divced by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in Bsue

19. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

31 December 31 December

2019 1018

Cash an hand E6,035 70047
Ealancet with cantral banks

Kandstony reserves (i} 2,676,273 2,799 B85

Suiplae resenes (i) 322,892 138,786

Frucal deposits and others 150,976 262 903

Accried intareit Y 1668

137516 3.372.576

i} The Group is required 1o place mandatory reserve deposits and athed restrocled deposits with the PEOC and certain
central banks of overseas countries o regons whene it has operations. Mandatory reserve deposits with central banks
and other restricted deposits are not avallable for wse in the Group's daly operations. Mandatorny reserve deposis
masnly consisn of deposits placed with the PEOC and central banks of overseas countries or regions. As at 31
Decernber 2019, the mandatory deposit reserve ratios of the domestic branches of the Bank in respect of customer
pepoits denominated n AME and fovegn currencies were consistent with ihe reguitement of the PBCC. The amounits
of mandatory reserve deposits placed with the central banks of those countries ar regions outside Mainland China ane

determned by local jurisdictions,

(i} Surplus reserves with the PBOC indude funds for the purpose of cash settlement and other kinds of wresincted

ceposits.

198 icec @
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20. DUE FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

31 December 31 December

2019 018
D froem banks and other hinancial matiuians:

Ranks aparatng in Mainland China 73,868 307,588
Orthitr inancal instriutons operatng sh Mainland China 11,445 4 654
Ranks and other financial institutinns anerating outude Mainland China RB,A55 o141
Accrued interest jand 1624
475,886 3R5,047
Less: Allowance foe impastment lasses {561) (o)
A75,32% 3E4,646

Placemenis with banks and other financial imaitutions
Banks operating in Bainland China 94.15% 147805
Other fimancial instiutions operatng @ Mainlend China 218315 1893 1581
Banks and ather financal institutions aperating outsde Mamland Chna 49,018 230 640
Accrued interest 6,235 6,781
567,737 LY
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (BE4) (B14)
567,043 577,803
1,043,368 Q62 449

bovermerts of the alowance for empairment losses durimg the year are as follows:
Dua from Placements with
banks and ather banks and other

financinl institutions  finoncial institutions Total
At 1 January 2018 378 aT5 B33
Charge for the year 3 139 162
AL 31 December 2018 and 1 January 23019 401 6t 1.015
Charge les the year 160 r) 130
At 31 Decemnber 2019 581 GEd 1,145

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A dervatwe 5 & fimanoal instrument, the value of which changes in response 1o the change i a soeofied mierest rate,
financial matrument price, comemodiy price, foreign exchange rate, index of pnces o rates, credit rating or credit index, or
other smilar variables. The Group uses derative financial irstruments mcluding forwards, swaps and opbons.

The notional amount of a dervatrve represents the amount of an underlying asset upon which the value of the desvative &
based. It indicates the volume of business transacted by the Group but does not reflect the risk,

Fair value is the price that would be receved 1o sell an asset or pad 10 transler a kability i any ordetly transaction between
rrarksl panipans al measured dats.

hanwsl Haport 2000 ]Lj{-?
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In accordance with accounting policy of offsetting, the Group offsets derivative assets and dervatve lishilities which
meet the criteria for offsetiing, and presents net smount in the financial statemenis. As at 31 Decemnber 2018, deivatve
aisets and derivative liabilities which meet the criteria for offsetting were RMBI6,547 milion (31 December 2018:
RMB44 552 million) and RME40,614 milien (31 December 2018 AMBAS, 254 million) respectively, and the net demvate
ety and netl derivative habslities were RME2E6, 248 million {31 December 2018 AMEZS, 906 million} and ARMBZD,315 million
{31 December 2018 RMB26,608 million) respectively,

At the end of the reparting period, the Group had desdvatre finandial instroments as follaws:

11 December 2IAH 31 Decender s
Ketiand Fair valum LSS T Fanir v oy
amounis Anasty Limbslginn AL Haawty Lisbdinisn
Enchangs rate comits 584200 36,158 (3580 5.0 LFATH (42,153
Wbires] fa%e Al Lids3 16436 (17668 1556819 [[FFH [1a5E)
Commadity dervatesd nd athers L) 13817 [A071% 1.130.400 FLH] (14359
TEETTIS BEIN (65,1 BCY BAST313 11,335 73571

Cash flow hedges

The Group's cash Hlow hedges consist of interest rate swap contracts, currency swap conftracts and equity denvates that are
used to protect against exposures to vanab bty of future cash flows.

Among thir above dervative financial instruments, those designated a5 hedging instruments in cxsh fiow hedges are sot out below.

I Dacensar 1019
Hotional ameonts with remaining Be ol Fos valueg
O Ebien Chwf
Within mantd o yRar
Taw butweithis  but within Ovae
mantha o yEar fiwn yoars fiww juars Tatal Bssmin Lishdties
I terest taRe S CDAMIBCS - ] 0.1 1045 5,555 121 (28
Comnay weap onbacty S2. 600 35T 4008 = 1244 o (7500
ety desrestive 1 1 5 ] o 3 m
5T Ll 4778 1 145,163 1,200 {1,000
N Deconbar 1018
L with ining e of Foar values
vt Ehron Char
Witkin montra ar yaar
e butwithin  but within Dhwer
mantha ana yRar 1w yoars fron yuir Tertal Binatn Linbditien
Filerest dife i conbtics 1304 ] 15,216 1555 1478 | [E5]
Cumemncy seap coninacty 21,048 SEAT (R 1] e 2 ek @5
Erpity dernabive 51 - i - ] 18 3]
i1.557 SEA 6500 L6713 kel L L]
200 Icec @
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Detaily of the Group's bedged msk exposures in cash flow hedges and the comesponding effect on equites ane as follows:

31 Decenber 2018
Effectof betiging.
Instrumnests Aggumulated effec
Cartying amount of e st . . Mdn:
e o Incame doring eahes comprehensive  Line e in the statement
Atiety Lishiftie tha yeur Faamae of fmancial pasition
Sonds 23357 {7,033 14} n Fnanoa mvetiments
miaoured at FYOCY
Franda mwstrents
meuned 3 amortiad ey
Db securtisg rieisd
Lans 2514 - (] imn Loans anc adeances 1o
fuRtniery
Ot LXec ] (10548 839 14,565 Duw from banks ang
oller fruial mstbos)
(Ot s
Chue 1 b3 and
ather runclal imakybons
Ceriticates ol deposy/
[Due i cuvhomes
Cther habslites
nan (e W [4.431)
11 Dcmmibar 2018
Eftect of hadging
Instruments Merumulaied sifect
an akher uf hedging
hmmm:': i camprahanshm insiFUmEnss on
—_— — income during othes comprehermie  Line iSens in the stafement
Aapets  Lsbistes the jua Fame of fnancial pesitesn
Bondy 19,480 {5.568) [iH] 15 Frsncal investments
mezured a1 FYOLY
Franos mwsmenty
mniied at smodtned cond!
Dbz et isumd
Losare, 7,566 - 5 r L nant av abaantes 1
CuRIDmeTY
Ditery - (65, 125 L1} 3,856 Dhue 10 banks and
other Anandal muitoony
Cerieatin of deprad)
Cue i custimesy
Other kabdilie:
1ATE (70,568 [EH] 3,75

There wias no inefiectveness recogrised m profit or loss that arses from the cash flow hedges for the curment year (2018
Ml

hanwsl Haport 2000 201
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Fair value hedges

Fair value hedgas are wsed by the Group to profect against changes in the fair value of financial assets and fnancial iabities
due to movements in marcat interast rales, Intenest rate swaps are used as hadging instruments 1o hedge the interest risk of
financial assets and financial [abilities, respectanely,

The effectiveness of hedges bawd on changes i lair value ol the dervatives and the hedged items attrbutable 1o the
hedaged ritk recogaised in profit or lons during the year i presented an fallows

2019 2016

Gamnflosa) arming from fair value hedges, net
Hedging mitrumants [20aj [Fa 8]
Hedged e astributable 1o the hedged rmk 118 63
14 iaj

Amaong the above derivative financial mstruments, those designated as hedging instruments in fair value hedges e set out

bk
11 Decentar 1014
Matianal amounts with resaining Be el Famt valums
Qveithes  Orer B -
Within muntin o yEar
e but within bt within Crver
manthn G year e years Tiws years Total Biasmts Lisb@ties
ITFES] %8 BWRD CONYRCS: 67 1407 47,348 14,541 [ eS| ] 1,383
At 1408 47,345 14541 (o] (] 11383
11 Deconbar 2018
Hotional amounts. with reeaining Ko of Fawvalum
O thres Crwer
Witkir maniin b yRAF
e hut vathis but within Creer
mant ans yRar frww ymary Trun yoar Total Hurln Linbitien
Interes] fate TGP CONTCE 13 5,366 060 12.0m #3813 e ZER
= A71E sw6 We g & e e
202 Icec @
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Detaily of the Group's bedged mk exposures in fair value hedges are sot o beloarc

11 Decmmber 2013
Carrying smaunt ol Meeymulaied adjustmants 1o the fale valug

hadged (tams of hadigad imms Ling sema in the stademant
Atiely Linbiitiey At Liahiliimt of francial position
Sonds 43585 ({F] 3 1A Fnanoal msitrents
muacured at FVOCY
Franda mwsiments
meaiuned 3t anartied s
Dt st msred
Lars: LE ] - n - Loans ane ahances 1o
CUTTHTT
Dty LEL H 3.488) (L] = Reersa repuerhase agreementy
P i barky and other
Firancial imfifiutions

E1533 {REDR) 5 i

31 Dacmebar HI1E
Carrying smgunt of Aceumnudated adjustmants io the fir valus

hadged [tams of hedged itama Line itemm in the statemant
Aumats  Lishiigies [y Labilties of financlal position
Bonds T 13,509 [H] 1481 Francad et
meaiured af FYTRY
Fanoa. el
medewred ai FYOLY
Dt securinist dousd
Loars TAG - 185 Loans are ahances i
T ]
Oty 13405 {3,545 {7 I Revrse ivpurthae ageeemienty
Cortcaney of depoat/
Du o cumman

g {1445 e ] an
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Net investment hedges

The Group's consolidated statement of financial position & aftectec by exthange differences between the functional
currency ef the Bank and functional currencies of its branches and subs.diaries. The Group hedges such aichange sxpotures
orly m limited circumstances. Hedgng is undertaken using deposits taken in the same currencies as the functional currencies
of related branches and subsidiaries which are accounted for as hedges of certain net investmant in Toreign operations

Mg at 31 December 2019, an accurnulated net loss from the hedging instrument of RMBTA7 millon was recognsed in
“Other comprehentive income” on net imesimen: hedges (a5 al 31 December 2018 net accumulated low RMB3II3
mmillan). A at 31 Decermber 2019, there wat no inellectveneds in prolit or loss that arses fram the net investment hedies
(31 December 2018 Nil)

Counterparty credit risk-weighted assets of derivative financial instruments

The eredit risk-weighted assets in respect of the abowe dervatives. of the Grous ai at the end of the reparting date are a
follows:

31 December 31 December

2019 2015

Coumterparty credit dofault nsk-woighied assets 121,219 45 556
Inciuding: Non-notting settled crodt defat nzk-weinhtod assots 5,203 30,282
Neting seftled credit default rsk-woightod azscts 65,927 15,374

Credit value sdhustment risk-weighted ssets 3676 22,443
Central counferpartes credit rsk-weighted assets 3,068 31633
168,563 M,738

The eredit nsk-wesghted assets of deratre Tinancial instruments were cabiulated with reference to Regulation Goveming
Capital of Commercial Banks (Provisionall, The credit rsk-wesghted sssets of the Group's dervative financlad mstrurments
include counterparty eredit default nsk-weghted assels, creddt value adjustment risk-wesghted assets and central
counterpartios credi risk-weighted assets.

204 ICBC @
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Aeverse repurchase agreements comprise reverse repurchases of bills, securities and cash advarced as collateral on securies

barrevang.
11 December 31 December
2018 2018
Maured at amortsed cost
Reverse mepurchase agreements-bills:
Banks 309,248 161,467
309,245 161467
Reverse repurchase agreements-securities,
Banks 101,476 52.633
Orther fimancial institutions 274, TEN 344,953
376,237 397,626
T Aecrued interest 137, 202
Less: ABowance for empairment loises (ad) {am
BRS,529 550,255
Measured at FVTFL
Reverse repurchase agreement-securitie:
Banks 328 2470
Onher financial institutioms 120,039 142,502
120,357 144,072
Cash advanced as collateral on
securites botrewing 0,300 10822
' - 159,657 174,794
B45,186 T34.048

(i In accordance with master repuichase agreements and refared supplementary agreements, the Group offsets
reefse repurchate agreements and repurchase agresrnents which meet the critera for oifsening (nate 30134, and
presents net positive {or negative] amounts as reverse repurchase agreements (of repurchase agresments) in the
financial stalement A< a1 31 December 2019, reverse repurchase agreements and repurchase agreements which
meet the criteria for offsetting wese RMB317 212 mallon and AMB345,191 million respectively (31 December 2018
AMB4ET 516 million and RMBATE, 199 mellon respectvely), ard the nel reverse repuichase agreements and net
repurchase agreements were RMB119,860 million and AMBI47,E39 milicn respecively (31 December 2018

AMB145,648 million and AMEBTS4, 331 million respactively).

fib A part of the reverse repurchese agreements, the Group has recerved securitses that b allowed 1o el or repledge
in the absence of delault by their owness. As at 31 Decemmber 2019, the Group had received securties with a fair
value of spproximstsly RMB156,529 milon on tuch terms (31 December 2018 AMB227,372 milllon), Of thess,
secunties with & fair value of approssmately AMBE25,320 milvon have been repledged under repurchase agresmenis
(31 December 2018 EMB202,508 millionk. The Group has an obligation 1o retumn the securities to ity counterpartiea

If the collateral recened declines in valus, the Group may, in certain cfcurnstances, require additional callateral

hunwsl Hepore 200009
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23. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Miasured at amoised oot
Corporate loans and advances 0,943,082 9,411,281
— tm; 9.?3&.05‘9 9.2 53..2%'
— Finarnce |eass 1535013 157,985
Persanal loans B.3E3.624 5636574
Duscounted bills 4,306 10,209
BAcerued intenest 43,730 3R 048
16,374,632 15,097.012
Loss: Allowance for imparment lowses of loars and advances to customers
measured ol amortised cost (note 2Mal) (478 408 (412,731)
15,696,134 14,684 181
Measwred at FVOCE
Carporate loans and advances
— Loans 5,314 6.245
Dhscounted bills AT EER 354228
Accrued interest 11 )
413,983 360483
Measured at FYTPL
Corporate loans and advances
— Loans b4 1. 368
R "~ 16326552 15006132

A5 a1 31 December 2019, the Group’s allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances 1o customars measured at
FYOCE was AMBR32 million, see Note 23(bl (31 December 2018: RMBA4E million),

206 icec @
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Movernents of the allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances 10 customers are as follows

{a} Movements of allowance for impairment losses of loans and advances to customers
measured at amortised cost are as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 3 Total

Balance at 1 lanuary 2018 158,084 8,406 173,241 41T
Tramster:

— 1o stage 1 17,451 {14,987} 2.464) -

— lo stage 2 (6,8568) 12,775 (5.907) -

— 10 stage 3 959 (28, 755) 25,714 -
Charge 47,364 28,014 86,944 163,322
Wirite-offs and trarmfer out - {91} (97.562) (97,653)
Recoveries of loans and advances

prewicusly written off - - 3,302 3302
Dher movernents 244 132 12,5800 (2, 2043
Balance at 31 Decembes 2019 215316 7,494 1B4,6EE A4TE NGB

Stage 1 Stage Stage 3 Total

Balance at 1 lanuary 2018 107,961 111,867 155770 372,598
Teansier

— to stage 1 19,393 {17,876} (1417 -

— to stage 2 {4,901) 5,493 {592 -

— to stage 3 {2,868) (40,413 43,282 -
Charge 38,217 24,083 B5,074 147,374
Write-ofis and transter out (338} (2, 284) (106, 14E) {108, T8
Recoveries ol lnans and advances

previoasly written off - - .41 2141
Other mosvements 61 ] (.8 L]
Balance st 31 December 2018 158.084 Bt.406 173,241 412,
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hotes to the Financial Statements

Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2015
[ AME milligns, unless otherwise fated)

(b) Movements of the allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances to
customers measured at FVYOC) are as follows:
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance at 1 January 2019 168 i} 248 446
Transfer:
— to stage 1 - - - -
= 10 Va7 (1] 5 - -
— 10 viage 3 - {5} 5 "
Chargedrinerie) 34 m (248} i214]
Other mevemenis o - - ]
Balence i 31 December 2019 127 - 5 32
Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 3 Taotal
Balance at 1 January 2018 23 - 448 4n
Transfer:
— to stage 1 - - - -
— to stage 4 - - - -
— 1o stage 3 - - - -
Chargedreverse) 173 (2000 @
Other movemnents 2 - i
Balance at 31 December 3018 168 1] Fo ] ddg
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Motes to the Financial Statements
Finarcal Statements for 1he year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

24. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

I December 31 December

201§ 2018

Financial ireestments measuned ak FYTPL fal op2,07E BOS5, 247
Fimanoal ineestments meddared an Ao ] 1,476,872 1.430,163
Fimancial imeestments measuned ab amortiied oo [14] 5,208,167 4,519,182
TBA7 117 6,754,692

(a) Fnancial investments measured at FYTPL

I December 31 December

2019 2018
Finandial investments held for trading
Debt gecuritien (anabyied by type of issuere):
Governments and central banks 52.0%6 33141
Policy banks 5,157 1128
Banks and ather financal institutions 2B.57E 16.0E4
Corporate enlifiet &7 BEE 16,059
153,637 67312
Equity investments 10,121 G484
163,758 T1.786
Finangial investments designated as at FYTPL
Debt securities (anabpsed by type of issuers);
Governments and central banks B4593 9,155
Policy banks 49,167 38,077
Banks and other financial institutions 34,585 35,651
Corporale entities 4,152 5623
6497 92,504
Furds and ather investiments 463,035 453,230
539,531 E85.736
hunwsl Hepore 200009 r,?'['|i.j|
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hotes to the Financial Statements
Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2015
[ AME milligns, unless ctherwise sated)

I December 11 December

2019 2018
Financial investments measured at FYTPL {mandatory}
Dbt securities tanatysed by type of issuers)
Policy banks T.020 10,086
Banks and other financial institutions 115,843 £9.785
Corporate entities 56D 4,080
128123 B3831
Equity investments o458 22506
Funds ard other investments E0L 16T 40378
158 TER 146,815
962,078 BO5.347
Analysed inito;
Dbt securities:
Usted i Hong Kong 4,387 4.1
Listed outside Hong Kang 12,373 8135
Unhsted 341 497 231,343
358 257 243743
Equity investments:
Lested m Hong Kong 6,577 380G
Lested autside Hoang Kong 8481 31688
Unlisted 65,561 20,497
BQ.619 27.530
Fisnads ard othar Bwestments:
Lsted outside Hong Kgng aTd 1.104
Unlisted 522,730 £32 504
523,002 533,608
962,078 BO5,. 347
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Motes to the Financial Statements

Fnaroal Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
{In AME millicns, unless otherwise Hated)

(b} Financial investments measured at FVOCI

11 December 31 December

2018 2018
Debi securities lanabysed by type of isuersl
Governments and contral banks 421.919 413,941
Palicy banis 198,835 223877
Eanks and cther financial institunions 306,242 302,665
Corporate entities 474,271 436,824
Arcrued interest 20,338 11,610
1,421,608 1,398,937
“Equity investments (if 55,263 818
Other imeestments - W07
1,476,872 1,430,163
Analysed into;
Debit securities:
Listed in Hong Kang 163,525 123,358
Listed ounsicie Hong Kong 246,081 216,471
Unlistad 1,001,983 1,060, 108
1,421,600 1,309,037
Ecuity imvestments:
Listed cutsite Hong Kong B31 GER
Unlisted Sl 832 29231
55,263 29919
Daher imestmemnts:
Unlistod - 07
- 07
1,476,872 1,430,163

iy The Group desgrates part of nor-trading equity imestments &5 financial inestments measured st FYOCL As
alt 31 Decembes 2019, the fair value of weh equity mvestments was RMBSS,263 million {31 December 2018
RME22.919 milion) Durirg the year, dwvidend income recognised for such squity imeestmert was EMBITE milkon 2018
RIE22% milan) and thene was no dividend income Tor the ermination of such equty mvestments during the year (2018;
RriE1 million). The value of the Group disposal of weh equity Investments was RVB1 12 milkon (2018 RMB2S million)
and the cumulative gain of ransfesing inlo retained eamings from other comprehensive income after disposal was
RIE20 million during the year 2018 the cumulatie kous was RMBT milkonl
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[ AME milligns, unless otherwise fated)

Movemenis of the allowance for mparment losses on financial investments measured at FVOC! are a3 follaws:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance at 1 lanuary 2018 1,622 B2 166 1510
Transfer:
— to stage 1 - - - -
— 1o stage 2 i) 1 - =
— to stage 3 - - - -
Chargafreverse) 151 (LE ] - 138
Oither movemants B - 2 ]
Balance at 31 December 2019 1,778 BO 198 £.056
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balsnce at 1 laniary 2018 2,933 - 190 3123
Transfer
— o Mage 1 - - - -
— to-stage 2 11} 1 - -
— 1o sage 3 - - - -
[Rewverseliiaige [1.476) a1 - {1.385)
Othee movements 166 - ] 172
Balance a1 31 December 2018 1,622 Q2 196 1970

Allowance for impairment losses on financial investments measured at FYOC] is recognised in other comprabensive incoma
without decraasing the carrying amownt of financial investments presented in the ttatement of financial potition, and any
imparment loss or gain & recognised n the profit or loss, As at 31 December 2019, the hnancal imestmants measured at
FVOCH included credit=rmpaired financial investments whose impairment provision havs been fully charged

212 icac @
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Motes to the Financial Statements

Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

(e} Fimancial investments measured at amortised cost

11 December 31 December

2018 2018
Debt sacuritios Em.'lll_r.l.rd by typo of nuers):
Governments and central banks 4,308, 456 I.61E 536
Including: Special gevernmpnt boad (1) 85,000 ES. 000
Policy bands 412,287 501,634
Banks and other financial institutions 240,708 2649735
Including Huarong bonds (1) an, 302 o0, 309
Corparate entities 44,145 dd 474
drcrued intorest 69,483 61682
5,175,078 4491205
Oaher imeestments {is) 36,611 3031
Accrued interest 158 125
36,805 30,460
5,211,886 4ET1EEE
Less: Allowance for impasment losses (3.721) [2.483)
5,208,167 4,519,182
Aralysed inta:
Diabit Securithes:
Listed in Hong Kong 41,955 16,E55
Listed cutside Hong Kong 77,062 BB, 196
Unlisted 5,053,TEE 4. 366,471
5,172,805 4,4B0 £33
Cther imaestments:
Unlisted 35,362 29,560
35,362 29,560
5,208,167 4519182
Market vabue of listed securimes 120,952 123.618
hunwsl Hepore 200009 '}13
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Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2015
[ AME milligns, unless otherwise fated)

Movements of the allowance for smpairment losses on financial investments measuned st amortned cos se a3 follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance at 1 lanuary 2018 1,504 a54 125 2483
Transfer:
— to stage 1 1 {n - -
— 1o stage 2 - - - =
— to ttage 3 - - - -
Charge 695 4BE = 1.181
Other movemants 55 - 2 57
Balance at 31 Decomber 2019 2,255 1,339 127 =il
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balsnce at 1 laniary 2018 LI 2 B3 1,256
Transfer
— o Mage 1 - - - -
— to-stage 2 1 1 - -
— to slage 3 2) - F -
Charge 325 841 38 1.204
Othes movements 2 - 2 23
Balsnce a1 31 December 2018 1,504 a5 125 2 483

(b The special governmaent bond represants a non=negotable bond with a nominal vals of RMESS,000 million msued by
tha Ministry of Fnanca of the Pecpla's Republc of China (the "MOF") to the Bank in 1998, The bond will mature in

2028 and bears infevest a1 a fixed rate of 2.25% per annum

fip  The Huasrong bonds are a senes of long-term bonds msued by China Huarong Assel Managemen! Co, Lid
[*Huararg™] In the year of 2000 and 2001 to the Bank, wath an aggregate amount of RMBI12,996 millon The
proceeds from the isuance of the bonds were wed 1o purchaie non-pedorming loans of the Bark. The bondi are
men-negotiable, Witk a tenure of 10 yeard and bear interest at a Toied rate ol 2.25% per annum. In 2010, the Bank
recereed A notice trom the MOF that the maturity dates of the Huarong bonds were extended lor anather 1en yean
and the intersdt rate remaind unchanged Additionally, the MOF wall eantinue provideng funding in suppor of the
repayrraent of the prncipal and intecest of the bonds, In 2020, the Bank recelved a further natice from the MOF
ta adiust the interst rate of the Husrong bonds, which will be detesmined on yearly batis with reference ta the
merage evel ol five-year government boad yeeld in the prsious yeas. 85 at 31 December 2019, the Bank recened

accumulated sarly repayments amauntng ta AMB2 22 687 million.

(mp  COther investments include debl investment plans, asset management plans and trust plans with fized or determinabie
payments. They will mature from Jameary 2020 1o November 2032 and bear mvterest rales ranging from 2.00% to

6.73% per annum

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Eank
31 Decembaer 31 December
2019 g
Listed investments, at cost kol I 2.M2
Unfisted investrents, 81 cost 142,608 119398
145,320 122110
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Motes to the Financial Statements

Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS mallicns, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars of the Group's principal subsidianes a3 a1 the end of the reporting pencd are as follows;

[r—
iz then
. ; oy o
L Ll LS. LN HEen ot
L 11 Do ] Diumesh vz Jrente Frrelgal
Hams nn o =y BB byfbelesk  ind sparatiom ativeas
reknival ared Commerrial Band of Chioas ] [ 100 HEDSLlHmdeon  HOOLL M ndlon  Rong Cang the M Cirnrennal
Limited B A’ akrg
HR‘_IIIIH-'L‘:H " i 100 WEDABETmios  FHDLEL miion Horg Long the FRL Tt
[T intwrateta| a7 iy
etcteid et Corvmetvis Bael of Chen 0 ] T CHRG mbes  KETR533 mlien Ay, Garmite [r—iry
_ el tockComary =t L < 1 L
T Lardom] K0 | R Rorim®| ] T ] LD vl ARDE o Lardce, Cormrwmud
P I.-Il_n%
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L] These sutsidianes inromporated in Mairkend China ase all limited Labiliby companies
The above table ksts the prinopal subsidianes of the Bank. To give detads of other subsidiaries would, n thie opinion of the

rranagerrent, resuft in particulars of excessive length.

There is no subsidiary of the Group which has material non-contralling interests during the reparting peniod.
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Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2015
[ AME milligns, unless otherwise fated)

26. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Investmients in associates and pnt ventures comprise the followng:
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31 December 31 Decemnber
2019 1018
Imteresl n AssOoialE 30,603 27 e
Intdrest i jadnd vesiures 1.BE7 2025
32,490 29124
31 Decomber 31 December
2019 1018
Shase of met assets 27,345 19385
Gaodwil 10,493 10087
32,838 29472
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (3481 1348)
; 32,450 29124
{a) Particulars of the Group®s associates and joint ventures are as follows:
31 December 31 Decomber
2099 e
Standand Bank Group Limited (*Standard Bark® | (i} 27,770 26,011
Others 4,720 ing
32,490 29124
i Francial infosmation of the Group's material ssociates and jing ventures
Farcentage af Vating
Hame equity mterest % rights %
3 Decembar 11 December 31 Decerbed Place ol Proucipal lisised
Assccaate directly held by the Bask 019 2018 7 wgitation activibaes capital
Cesndard Banks 20,06 2008 FL0E Johanneshuig, Commercidl  ZARTET mulion
Repablic of barking
South Afrca

= Seanclard Bank, 4 keted commeteial bank in Republic of South Africa and a strategic partner for the Group, enables the Group

o wicen it customer bate m Afria

Tha market value of the Group's invesiment in Standard Bank amounts to AMBE27 105 milion a3 at 31 Decernber 2019

(31 Decembeor 2018: RMEZ7 £77 million].
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Motes to the Financial Statements
Fnaroal Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

(it Particulars of the Group's only material associate ane as follows:

The surmmarised Tnancisl infosmation of Swandard Bank, being consmtent with the Group's accounting policies, and
reconciled to the camung amaunts usng the equity mathed in the Growp's consoldated financial statements 8 &1 follows

2018 018

Gross amounts of the associate

Assels 1127, 85% LR

Liabilities 1,023,850 918,256

Hat assats 103,808 ELE 1

Prafit from continuing operations 12,652 13.362
Aoconciled to the Group's interests in the associate

Grass amounits of nel ssebs of the asociate atiibute fo (he parent company BE.D41 81,215

Group's effective inferest 20.06% 20.08%
Group's share of net assets of the assocate 17,661 16308
Goodwal 10,457 10,051
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Standard Bank

in the consolidated financial statements 8118 26,359

(b} Movements of associates and joint venturas investments of the Group are as fallows:

Wyveras b dwng 3w am
L] Bairsua of
PO [T prowsss far
[FLN miogean Comr  dietribetion of fxarm Lo
M o The egarsing rew Ommew  wulwegely  oepwbeney  Eehodadads o e eni at v vl
L ol the nuptl in ol mrnud e o pin riun of ol the pur
(LT 10 2 i1 [ ] [ 1" 1 -

Laccin

ptts Bt b - = 10 L] (51 1 B BE
Trten 1068 PLN fEi g 13 - [} L] LE =
e e 50 ocd 18 L] (8,55 115 ns e
otal B 1 L] 150 i L7 138 il s
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hotes to the Financial Statements

Financial S:atemenis for the year ended 31 December 201%
[ AME milligns, unless otherwise fated)

27. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

OMiea
Ll i}
Prapariies id Comtnation Leasshald sl mased Birerah and
bl Inprogress  imgrovemint il vl Totd
Coat:
At 1 Jasiary 18 2517 wsn 16,305 TR 127,082 LE
Addriony 5450 1551 [ 6508 43,148 0,31
L smargler infout) A58 [5.553) - 1 L0 -
Irigacants 1] il (LA ] #1785 fan)
At 31 Decernber 1018 151,048 B 12,954 Tagen 11,00 ELERLE]
. Mdl_iw!nm 16 - = {1,051} I.1D,ﬂ1L
At 1 fanuary 3015 151,088 B 16,554 14380 160,21 a5
Adriory 2430 W 1453 EI%S Haar H#ED
Ci wargder nfout) B 988 - 116 B0 -
e e L. oS L oy =0 (e
AL 31 Devsrshed 2019 151,355 39,758 11528 T65% 16431 A5 E7E
henurdlaled Segrecation aed it
A1 1 enwiary 2008 5548 4 £ SEATS 1L A3 LETR ]
Depetecuation charge for (he yeat SATH - HE 368 E, 108 05
Irpairmmesnt chuarge der the year - - - - il ] i
Dracxmaly 18] - =] [ELLE] (948 G573
&1 31 Deverbe: 2078 W 4 5,156 360 2345 152,745
Imzact o adegiting BTG 16 = - 588 [
Al Jairy 2019 1,700 4] AL 5 360 11,903 152,161
Depeeciation charge or the year 5.7 B 4] 6518 (% 19,658
imzairmend charge for the yur = = = ~ It 1
Depcnay 135 e An 14,17 11,458 [
At 30 Deverber 2019 55 e 5983 E1,751 gLl e 31T
Camyng smcunt:
At 31 Deversber 1018 A4 35,081 1,798 15,50 147,581 190404
&1 31 Decersbae 2019 HE5E I 138 15,407 134,140 186,581
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Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

The camymg vabue af the Group™s properties and buildings is analysed based on the remaming terms of the land leases as

fallaws:
1 December 31 December
2019 2018
Lorg-term leases (over 50 years]:
Hald in the PRC (other than Hong Kong) 21,280 18,148
Hald in Hong Kong FEL] BES
Halo overseas 530 T45
221,041 19,762
Medium-term leases (10 to 50 years)h
Held in the PR fother than Hong Kong) 0,906 BE.247
Hald in Hong Kang 458 124
Hele averseas 1,023 157
72,387 GE,628
Shari-term leases (less than 10 yearsi:
Hudid i the PRC tothes than Hong Kong) 1,153 2,027
Held overseas 34 7
- (FF7] 2,054
5,655 o0, 4dd

A5 ot 31 December 2019, the process of abtaining the legal titles for the Group's propsrties and busldings with an aggregate
carmang amaunt of RMB12, 316 million (31 December 2018: AMB10, 525 milion) was still m progeess. Management i of the
wigws that the aloresaid matter would naither affect the rights of the Group to these assets nor have ary significant impact

on the business cperation of the Group

Az at 37 Decernber 2019, the carying amownt of srcralt and vessels leased out by the Group under operating leases wa

RME1 34,140 milion (31 December 2018 RMET4T, 581 miflion).

s at 31 December 2019, the carrving amount of atreraft and wessels awned by the Group that have been pledged as
secunty for due 1o hanks and ather financial institutions was RMBT6,007 mullion (31 December 2018 AMESC.BET mullion)
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Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2015
[ AME milligns, unless otherwise fated)

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(a) Analysed by nature

Delemed ingome tas sseis

31 Decomber 2019 31 Decombar 2018
Deductble/ Doferred  Deductiblel Deferred
{tancable) incame tax {taxable) Ineame tax
temparary nssata) temparany aspels
diff erences liabilities) ditferences (Nabilities)
Alloweance for impairment losses 252,387 62,888 210,624 52438
Change = far value of financia instruments
measured at FYTPL (2,437 (&A1) has 147
Change n far valie af financls instruments
measured at FyiOCH 122,954) {5,781} (14, 248) 3613
Accruved staff costs 25,162 6,260 26,033 6,508
Othess (205) (i Le]} 11,768 3,101
250,948 £2,536 234,507 ER 375
Defermed mcome tax Hakaldeeg
31 December 2019 I December 2018
Taxable/ Doferred Taxable/ Deferred
(deductible) income tax {deductible} income tax
tempaorary limbilities temporary linbilities’
differences [mssats) differences {asscts)
Allowance for impairment losses 1,270 {535 (G 401
Change m far value of financial instruments
measured at FVTPL 2,544 636 572 143
Change a fair value of financial ingtruments
meadured a1 FYOC 5,560 1357 ER=H 900
(LT 1,652 415 2.172 TR
B 486 1.873 54583 1217

{b) Movements af deferred income tax

Defered income lax sisets

1 lanuary  Recognised in  Recognised in 31 December

2019  profit or loss equity e
Allgweance for impairment losses 52,438 10,450 - 62,688
Change o fair value of financial instruments
messured at FVTPL 147 (99B) - iB51)
Change n fawr value of financial instruments
measured at FVOCI {2,818 - 11,9621 (5. 781]
Accrued staff costy 6,508 (218 - 6.790
Others 310 (R &2 (13
58,375 6061 (19000 51.536
220 icec @
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Fnaroal Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
{In AME millicns, unless otherwise Hated)

Deferred smeome tax labilies:

1 lanuary  Aecognised in Recognised in @~ 31 December

2019  profit or loss aquity 2019
Hflorweance for impairmaent losses 40%) 1134} - (535
Change in fair value of financial instruments
measured at FyTPL 143 493 - 636

Charge in fasr value of financial instrurments
medkured at FWYOCI 900 - 457 1,357
Dby LTk (&0 - 415
1,217 199 57 1,873

Deferred ncome 18 assets
impact of
31 Dacrmber adepiing flsnuary  Recogniedin  Recogniedin 31 Decessbor
w7 IFRS 9 01 prefiterlen Uty o
Allewance for

impairment |ossos 37475 7.254 44.72% 7.709 - 52428

Change in faer value of

fnancial instremants

migasured at FVTFL 2,358) 577 (1,781] 1,938 - 147
Change in fair valug of

fmancial instriements

mipasurad at FWOC) 4,433 a4.433 - (8250 13,819
Change in fair valug of
available-lor-sale
{onancial astote 9,748 (9, 748} -
Arcrued stalf costs B30 - EO1D (4020 - B 508
Dahors (3.373) 7,702 4,319 (.17 [R1 3,100
48392 10,218 5,510 8028 i8,263) 55375

Delerred sneome tax Rabilibes:

Impact af
31 Decembr ndepting 1lanuary  Recognisedin  Recognised in 31 Decessber
mi? IFRS 9 ] predit or loss Bquity 018
Alloveance Tor
impairment losses (5020 6 (A5 95 - [EI
Change in fasr value of
Tmancial instruments
mamured at FyYTRL - - - 143 - 143
Change in fair value of
[rvancial mstrmmants
measared at FyOC1 (28) (38) - 938 200
Change in fa value of
ayailable-forsale
fmancial asvets [38) EL] -
Others 973 - ar3 [358) . 575
433 6 439 (160 938 Ly

The Group dad not have significanm unrecognised deferred mcome tax assets and llabilities at the end of the reparting penod,
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29. OTHER ASSETS
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31 December 51 December
2013 2018
Preciaus metals 139,009 1682391
Settlement accounts 136,768 122318
Right-of-use assets i) 33.658
Lard use nghts 16,842 17,464
Repossamsed assets 10,617 10,684
Goodwill 2517 L
Advance pagments 1.5 10,555
Intarest receivable 1.133 2624
Others 28514 28589
465,393 184,524
Less; Allowance for impairment losses 14, 594) {4,123
(0 Reghi-ol-use assets
Lossad office
Leassd Leased eguipmant
properiiss mircraft and motor
and bulldings and vessels wahicles Total
Comt:
A1 January 2019 16,827 13,586 i F0884
Acldtions BA7E 3289 1.567 11,334
Disporsals (B4 (a1 (A 1+] 11,553}
a1 31 December 2019 21463 16,534 1.62B &0 625
Ascumulaed depreciaticn:
A1 1 Jenuary 2019 - 480 - AB0
Deprecation charge fos the yes 5,775 BEL Tk 6571
Despersaly (55) {29 = {E4)
a1 31 December 2019 5,710 1,143 fod 6967
Irgairmsent:
A1 1 lanuary 2019 - 108 - 108
Impairment charge far the year 24 0 - i
Dupesaly - {51 = 15}
A1 31 December 20019 24 LIE ] - ey
Carrying ameaint
AL 1 lsnusry 2019 16,827 13,398 T 30,196
At 31 December 2019 16,719 15,218 1524 33461
222 Icec @
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Motes to the Financial Statements
Finarcal Statements for 1he year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

30. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

11 December 31 Decamber

2018 2018
Interbank wealth management products {11 19,580 11,480
Fimancial lizbilities related to precous metals (2] B0, 454 67,166
Diebit securities 23 13,064 1.285
Others 9,144 6,369
102,242 B7,400
(1) The prncipal-g d interbank wealth management products ssued by the Group and the financial assets in which

the aforesaid preducts form parts ol a greup of finsncial instruements that are managed logether on a fair value bass, and
are classdied o Bnanoad labilites and Snancal assets desigrated as at FYTPL respectively, As at 31 Decermbrer 2019, the
far valse of the interbank wealth management products was spproemately the same as the amount that the Graup woild
be contractually required W pay 10 the holders of the wealth management products wpon maturty (31 December 2018
appeoaimatily the samel.

{2y Fnancial habdities relsted to precous metals and issied debt secunties have been matched with precious metak and
denvatioe as part of a documented rith managoment stralegy bo mitigate market risk, such as imerest rabe risk. &n accounting
msmatch would arise i thess financial Eabilities were scoounted at amortsed cost, wheteas the related precious metals and
demvaltiie were measured at far valae with movernents in the faie value taken through the statement of praft or los. By
desighating these fimancal Kabilities at FYTPL, the movement in thesr fair vahees s recorded in the statement of prafit or loss,
fa at 31 December 2019, the difference between the Far value of the Snancial liabilities related to precious metals and Asoeed
debt securities and the amount that the Group would be contractually reguived 1o pay to the holders of the Brancial labilives
related bo precious metals and isued debl securities upon matwtity wat not significant

There wede no significant changes in the credit spread of the Group and therefore the amourts of changes in fair value of
the firancial Eabfites ariseng from changes in credit msk were not considered sgnificant during the year of 2019 and the
year of 2018 The changes in fair value of the financial liabilities wena mainly attributable to changes in other market factors

hunwsl Hepore 200009 ‘!I,_-]
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31. DUE TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
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31 December 51 December
2018 018
Deposits:

Banis and ather financial institutions cperating in Mainkand China 1,640,846 1,202.6M
fanks and other financial institutions operating outside Mainland China 132,600 123317
Accrued interest LA 2.158
1,776,320 1,328,246

Money market takengs
Banks and ather financial institutions operating in Maintand China 153,203 128015
Banks and other financlal institutions operating outside Mainland China 329,375 346, 186
Accrued interest B6.975 12,048
450,253 486243
2166573 1,814,495

32. REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Roguirchase agreements comprise repurchases of bitls, securities and cash recented a3 collateral on securties lending,

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Repurchase agresmants-hills
Banis. 24,152 18,709
24,252 18,705
“Repurchase agreements-seaurics:

Baanis 107.917 331,691
Other fmancial institutions 121,840 148 663
129,857 450,354

Cash recesed as colateral -
o aecuities kending 89RO 15375
Accred interest 184 363
263.273 514,801

33. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

Certificates ol depost issued by Hong Kong Branch, Tokyo Branch, Seoul Branch, Luzembourg Branch, Doha Branch, Sydney
Branch, Mew York Branch, Duba (DIFC) Branch, Lendon Branch, BCBC Asia, ICBC Macau and ICBC Mew Zealand woesre

recogrised at amortised cost

224 ICBC @
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Motes to the Financial Statements

Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019
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11 December 31 Decamber
2019 2018
Demana depasils
Corporale customens B,731.,558 6,405,136
Fersonal customers 4,328,090 3931182
11,060,648 10.336.318
Torre depomsits:
Carporate customars. 5,295,704 5,076,005
Pevsonal customers 6,149,654 5,505,236
~ 11,445358 10,581,341
Dthers T 3aEs2 268914
Aoorined intenEs 236,797 227461
22,977,655 21,406934
35. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED
I Decembar 31 December
2019 1018
Subardinated bonds and
Tier 2 Captal Motes ssued by i1}
The Bank 336,063 169 BR4
Subsidianes B.082 8122
Agcrued imtorest 6,050 3473
350,204 267,459
; Othes debt smm:-llulﬂsutd by |;2]-
The Bank 251,545 225,075
Subsidianes 138,876 108,504
Auccrued imtarest 1,546 10
352,671 335,383
742,675 Bi7.842

A3 at 31 December 2019, the amount of cebl securities ssued due withm one year wans RME8117,233 million (31 December

2018: RMB92,045 million)
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Financial Statemends for the year ended 31 December 2015
[ BMIE millions, unless otherwise fated)

(1]

Subordinated bonds and Tier 2 Capital Notes

The Banlk;

A appeored by the POC and the CHIRC, the Bank iswued callable swhordmated bords and Tier 7 Capatal Notes through open market
el i 3040, 2011, 2002, KT and 2019, Approved by the PROC, thew wbonirated bonds and Tier 2 Capital Bofet wers traded in the
bond market among hanics. The relevant nformation & set out beloss

Enieg
ncie g Asuiri kst Coupea

Hiars s itn fia AT} s BN} {m INE] wili Vilrdas  Mussbydin  Cresdimdi Nl

iranry mber!
Ll g ] 16010 100 e HiLD e i 1R Lo el i ]
0 K D e e S| 100 Yiam wim jifuis 131 Taelaon p et s o] L]
18 K I ot b ] 100 ¥ 0,000 e R N gk ] L) -]
AHL< g8 L 1A 100 Faan abm M ¥ 1Wame £ TRy iwi
7KK O ek DSRGEIT 100 Y 00 A LEily AT T N7 L]
17 KK (2 e LT 100 ¥um LR e 145% LT Pkl 1n1eeT il
WK O et TG 108 ¥ w000 A5 L% fatd il ] sl 2030 (01}
TR 1 Bond e L anm TG 45l HEVe TV 10 e
THCES 0 ot G 100 Yuan 1000 AL 443% A0 AN 1RatE i1
HCE 04 ot AT 100 Yum a0 10503 1% LAY fryt ik L] u

®

(%
()

(e
]

(L]

]

[wuih

lad

The Bank has the option to redeern all of the bondit on 14 Seplember 2030 upon the approval of the relevant regulaton
authosities.
Thier Bank has the option to redeem all of the bonds on 20 June 2026 uvpen 1he appeoval of the relevant requiatory authorites
The Bank has the option to redesm all of the bonds on 20 Decembor 2021 upon the approval of the rdevant regulatony
authorities.
Thi Bank hat the option to redeem all of the bonds on 13 June 2027 upon the approval of the relevant reguistony suthorites.

The Bank has the cpiicn to redesm a1 of the bonds on B November 2022 upon the approval of the mlevant regulatony
it

The Bank has the option 1o redeem all of the bands on 22 November 2022 upon the approval of the reeant regulatony
authoxities
The Bank has the ogton fo redeem all of the bonds en 15 March 2024 unon the aporeval of the relevant regulatcry
authantis
The Bank has the opbon to redeen all of the bonds on 15 March 2029 upon the approval of the relevant regulatory
authorities.
The Bank has the opton to redeem all of the bonds on 26 April 2024 upen 1he appeoval of fhe relevant regulatony sithordies
The Bank has the opon to redeem all of the bonds on 26 Apeil 2029 upen the appeoval of 1he relevant reguiascry authoriies

In 2015, the Bank ssued Tier } Capial Nobes denominated in U0, Approved by the Siock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for
listing and dealing, the Notes ane listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Lirsted, The relevant informaticn B set out below:

Fding
Aozl Lislarea
{miginal Lacpar
Hame e data Loy hiisan pre T = BME} ke Wokam dota Muterity dols  Cresleiam dats Hetw
emlany o
U
Tiew 1 Ll Mok 1hmams Ly o 2o 1338 AT i b DS FRL - )] (1]
(xip  On 15 September 2015, the Bank tmaed Ter 2 Copital Hotes wilh an agoregate nominal amount of USD2,000 million,

226

beemririy & fied irterest rate of £ 875% per annum. The lsting and permission to deal in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited became effectve on 17 Sepiember 2015, The Notes were imued at the price fived at 59,1E9% of the nominal
amount with maturty due on 21 September 2025 and cannot be redeemed before maturty.

IcBC (&
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Motes to the Financial Statements

Fnaroal Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
{In AME millicns, unless otherwise Hated)

The Bank has not had any defaults of poncipal or interest o other breaches with respect to the subordinated bonds and
Tier 2 Capital Motes during the reporting period (2018; KilL

Subzidarins
On 30 Mewember 2010, ICBS Asia isssed & subordnated bond with an sgoregaie nominal amount of USDS00 milkan, bearing a

fined interest rate af 5.125% per annum. The bond was mased at the pelce lixed at 99.737% of the nominal amaunt with maturity
dise on 30 Nevemnber 2020,

On 23 March 2008, ICBC Thas issued a Teer 2 Capital Mates with an aggregate nominal amaant of THES.000 millicn. bearing a fued
irterest rate of 3.5%. The bord was ssued with matunty due on 23 Seplembser 2028,

On 12 September F019, KCBC Macay mxued a Tier 2 Capital Notes with an aggregate nominal amount of USIS00 million, beanng a
fiwed interest rate of 2,875% per annum. The bond was Bsued at the price fied at 99.226% of the nominal amount with maturity
e on 12 Seplember 2029

Thie sberve subsrdinated bonih arad Tier 2 Capila Notes are separaiely lisied ob the Stock Eschange of Hong Eong Limited and Thal
bustiid Priarket assodbation, ICBC Asla, 1CBC Thal and ICBC Macau have niot lud any defauls of peirtipal of imeet o oiher breachis
wlh fespect 1o the subondnated bords and Tier 2 Capital Noles dusing the pedod (2016 NE

{2) Other debt securities issued
A at 31 December 2019, the Group's other debl secufies Baed manky include:
The Bank:

[ Sydoey Branch nsued notes and interbank ceposits amounting 1o AMB14,455 milon denominated in AUD, CHF, BB, HED,
USh, GBP and EUR weith maduritees between 2020 and 2024 at fixed or floating nterest rabes. OF which, in 2019, Sydney
Branch issued notes amounbing 1o Ak32,048 milion denominated in AUD and USD wath matunty between 2022 and 2024
il fized or lloatng intevest rates; in 2019 Sydney Branch abo ssued inferbank depoil amounting bo RMB2E,E%3 mallion
denommnated in CHF, RS, GEF, EUR and USD walh matuty in 2030,

il Singapode Branch hswed notes amounting o AMB43.925 milon cenominaled in BMB, USD and EUR with matusities
Ietween 2021 and 2024 a1 Paed or Aoating imeses) rates O which, in 2013, Sngapore Branch isued potes amounting to
RIMB16,688 million deraminated in AME, USD and EUR with maturity beteeen 2001 and 2024 a1 fised or Noating interes
rbes.

(i€ Im 2018, Tokyo Branch tsued rotes amounteng 1o BMBESE milkon dengeninated in JPY weth matemsies in 2030 a1 Socd
Interest rates.

() Mew York Bramch issued notes amounting to RMES1 108 millon denomirated in USD with matunties between T30 and
2027 &t fiwed or floating mterest rates. O which, in 2019, New York Branch msued noles amounted to RMEZ L 638 million
denomenated in USD with maturites in 2020 a1 fived inlerest rates.

(W Luzembourg Branch msued notes amaunting to RMEZS, 301 mBon denominated in UISD and EUR with matuities banhiesn
H0 and JOX4 at fed or Boating (etesest rates. OF which, in 301%, Luxembourg Branch ssued notes amounting 1o
RMA13,E08 milan denaminated in USDH and BUR with matutities Between 2020 and 2004 at fized o floating interest mates

(wi)  Puba (RIFC) Branch ssued nodes amounting b AMEIS 437 million derominated o USD ard BUR with masunites
bebwean 2020 and 3024 at foed or floatng mtenest rates. OF which, in 2019 Dubal (DIFC) ssued notes amounting o
ERBE, 953 millicn dencminated m USD with maturities i 2023 and 2024 at fioating intevest rates,

(i) Horg Kong Branch sued nobes amownting 1o EMBAS. 711 million demominated in RMB, USD and HED with matusities
between X020 and 1024 a1 fized or Soating interest rstes, OF whicn, in 2019, Hong Kong Branch msusd nates amscunting 1o
EMBZ6,455 milan denaminatad in RMB, USD and HED matusity between 2030 and 2024 a1 fied or fioating infeces mies.

hanwsl Hopore 20000 II."",I:.'
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[y

Lomdon Branch msued notes amaounting fo AME2E 010 million denomenated in GEP, SO and EUR with matunties betiveen
20 and 2023 a1 floating interest rates. OF which, in 2018, London Branch msued fnotes amounting to EME1, 847 million
denomanated in GEP with matwrity in 2022 at flosting interest rates.

Subsidiaries:

i)

o]

[t}

228

ICBC Asu jsued medum-term debt securlties and notes and interbank depotits amounting ta AMB1T.219 millken
denommenated in BMB, USD, EUR and HKD with maturities betwesn 2020 and 2023 at fived or floating nberest rates. OF
which, m 2019, ICHC Asls bswed medurr-ierm debd securities ard nates amounting o AMES G00 million densminated n
RMAE with matuniles in 2002 at fued irierest rates, and inteshark ceposits amounting to RMB247 million dencminated in
FERAR with rusburf e [ D20 at fixed interen rates,

ICBE | easing msued medsim-term debit secunities and nofes amounting o BMBZT B30 million derominated in R4R and LSO
with maturities between 2020 and 3027 at fieed or finating interst rates.

OF which, Styiea International Capetal Management Limited ("Skysea Inbermational®), which & controlied by the Group,
sued quaranteed notes of LSD750 million with a fived interest ade of 4 875% i 2001, As at 31 December 2019, Skytea
Intermational has redeerned USD153 million and the carrying amount of the Notes were RVBA, 157 mallion. The Motes were
guarantesd by Hong Kong Sranch and wene issued a1 the peice fived at 97 708% of the nominal amount with maturities due
on 7 December 2021, By tatnbying certan conditicom, Siuea intermatonal has the option o redeern all of the notes at any
tame. The Hotes were Isied on the Stock Exchange of Hong Eong Limeted.

ICBLIL Fmance Co. Lbd, which 6 controled by the Group, ssued mediume-ierm notes amounting o RMBEAEID millien
cenomanated i USD with matueites between J020 and 2027 &t foed or Foating interest rates, OF which, 0 2015, ICBCIL
Fenange Co. Ltd ssued medium-term notes amounting o HME 14,566 millon denomsnated | USD with matunbes. in 2022
and 2024 31 fund or floatng interest rates, By satshying cemain condticns, ICACE Fmance Co, Lid, has the oplion 10 redeem
all ef the notes ai ary Time. Above nobes weee guaranieed by ICBC Leassng and lsted on the Irsh Stock Exchange and the
Stock Exchange of Hong Eong Lireted respectvely,

Hat lizc 1400 limited, which & controlled by the Group, hswed a prate placement band amounding to RMBS4Z millicn
denominated in USD with maturity in 2025 af a fized imterest rate. The bond wan guaranteed by The Export-import Bank of
Komea

ICEC Financial Legsing wiwed medivm-term debt secusities and noles mide China amounting 10 RWES006 million
denoménated in AME with maturities between 2021 and 2004 o Soed interest rates. OF which, in 2009, ICBC Fmancial
Ledsing issued medium-tenm debl secusities and notes amounting 10 RMES, 250 million dencminated in RME with maturities
In 2022 and 2024 an fixed intevtest rares.

ICBC Thas bssued debd secumties amounting o AMBT.531 milon denommnated in THE with matusities between 2020 and
2026 at Faed interest rabes, O which, in 2019, ICBC Thai saued debt secunities amounting 1o MBS, 243 millicn derominaled
in THE with maturities betveen 2020 and 2022 at foed nterest rates

ICEC Infernatonad maved medumsterm debt securities and notes amounting 1o RME 14, 266 million denominated in US0 with
maturity between 2020 ard 2027 st a fieed or fioating interest rate, OF which, n 2019, ICBC Intemational Bsued medium-
temm debt securities and notes amounting to RS48G9 million denominated m USD with maturities in 2022 ot faed ntenest
rate,

ICBC Mew Zealand tsued medium-term debil securities and rotes amounting 1o AMEB], 09T million denominated in AUD snd
NID with misturities betwesn 2020 and 2024 at fmed of floating interest rades. OF which, in 20719, BCOC New Zealsnd isued
mediuim-term debt securities and notes amounting to EMB93S millon depominated m NID with maturity in 2022 and 2024
al fived or Nlonting inlerest rates.

ICEL Argenting issued medicm-dorm debt secunties and notes amounting bo RME233 million denominated o ARS with
maturites in M0 at fioating interest rates,

In 2019, ICBC Fimancal fsoet Investment #soed mediumdderm debt secwities and notes amounding to ARME 18,000 million
denominated in BME with matuntes n 2022 and 2024 at foed inferest ates
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Motes to the Financial Statements
Finarcal Statements for 1he year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

36. OTHER LIABILITIES

11 December 31 Decamber

2018 2018
Settlernent accounts 215,055 167,015

Loase lablties 1) 29,524
Alloweance for impairment losses on oredit commitments 28,534 34,715
Salanies, bonutes, allowances and subsidies payables i) 24,036 15,308
Sundry tax payabbes 13,408 10,937
Promisiory nofes 1.044 i.280
Eary retwament benefits 530 BEE
Dahers 200,953 165 808
525,125 409,819

it Nestunty analyss of contractual undiscourded cash flows of lease Habilities

11 Decembaer
2015
Less tham ane year T.402
Oine 10 twvn yoars G005
Two 1o thiee years 4,705
Thres 3o fae yeans 6113
Miare than five years B.oag
Contractusd undocourted cash flows of 'ease kabiliies a3 af 31 Decembser 2019 32,373
Ending balaace of lease lishilites a5 31 31 December 2009 28,524

(il There was no overdue payment for stall salanes, bonuses, allowances, subsides payables as at 31 December 2059
(31 Decernber 2018: N,

37. SHARE CAPITAL

31 December 2019 11 December 2018

Number Number
of shares Mominal of shares Nominal
[millions) walue [milliomns) valum

Issued and fully paid:

H shases of AMB1 Yuan each 86,795 86 795 BE, 795 BE, TS5
A shaves of AMB1 Yuan each 253,612 255,612 169,612 269,612
356,407 356,407 356,407 356,407

Excopt for the dividends for H shares which are payable in Hong Kong dollars, all of the cedinasy & shares and H shares rank
pats pasiu with sach ather in espect of drvidendi an andinay dhane

IR 2
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38. OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

(1) Preference shares

(a} Preference shares outstanding at the end of the year

hnxm odgil
Frurwil retrerent Aimanting Drdend inben ey W Lorminiiom
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(B} Main Clauses
(I} Owerseas preference shares

a Dinewdiered
Fised rate for 7 years for EUR after ssuance,
Dividend resst every 5 years thereafier 1o the sum of the benchmark rate and the Fued Spread.

The Fixed Spread will be equal to the spread betwesn the dividend rate a1 the tima of issuance and the benchmark rate. The
Fixed Spread will remain unchanged throughout the term of the Profenonce Shares

Dindends vall be pasd Hn‘luﬂ'p.

b Cenditions to distribution of dividends

The Growp could pay dividends while the Group still has distrbutable afver-tax pralit after makng up previoas years' loses,
contrbuting 1o the staiutony reserve and makeng general provasions, and the Group's capital adequacy ratio mests regulatory
requinements Prelerence shareholders of the Group are senior to the ordnary sharehalders on the mght 1o davidends, The
Group may elect 1o cancel any dividénd, but such cancellation will require a shareholder's resalution 1o be passed,

c Dindend stopper

Il the Group cancils all or part ol the dividends to the Preference Shareholders, the Gioup shall nol make amy dividend
diststiution to oedinary shareholders belore e Group pays the dividends foe thee corrent dvidend period 1o the Prefeence
Shareholders in (ull

d, Order of distrbution and fguidation method

The EUR Preferemce Shareholdess as well a5 the Domestic Preference Shasehelders will rank equally for payment. The
Praference Shareholders will be subardinated 1o the depesitors, erdinasy creditors and holders of convertible bonds, holders
af sibardinated debt, holders of Ties 2 capital bonds and haldess of other Tier 2 capital mnstruments of the Greup, but will
be seniar 10 the ordinary shareholders ol the Group

130 IcBc @
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Motes to the Financial Statements

Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

e, Mandatory corversion trigoer events

Upen the pecurrence of an Additional Teer 1 Capital Trigger Event (Cone Tier | Capital Adeguacy Ratro of the Group falling
1o 5.125% o below), the Group shall have the right 1o corven &l o part ol the Preference Shares into H shares, in order
o resiore the Core Teer 1| Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Group 1o abowe 5.125%: f Preference Shares wele canverted ta
H shases, they may not be converted 1o Freference Shaies again.

Upon the cccurrence of a Non-viability Trgger Event (Earber of the two situations: (1) the CBIRC has determined that the
Group would become non-vialle if there is no comversion of write-down of caoital] or (2) the relovant authorities have
determined that a public sector injectian of capital or equivalent suppon s necessary, without which the Group would
becorna ren-nablel, the Group thall have the right to conwert all Prefevence Shares into H shares. if Preference Shares were
carveried 10 H shares, they may not be converted to Preference Shares again

Tha intsal mandatory corversion price of EUR Preference Shareholders is 0.4793 Eura. In case of stock dridends datribution
of H shanes of the Bank or other crcumstances, the Bank will make cumulative adjiustment to the compuliory comsersion
price in tum.

! Redempdon
Under the premeie of obtaining the approval af the CBRC and conditisn of recdempleon, the Group has dght to redesm all

or worme of EUR Prefsmence Sharsholders i lirst call date (sevdn years afler iuance) and subsequent any diadend payment
dater, Redemphan price 15 equal to swe price plus accrued deadend in curren penod

g.  Dividend fetting mechanism

Man cumulative dividend iy a8 dvidend on preference shares which does nat cumulate upen omission of payment so & 1o
require payment of a passed o emitied dividend of ope year out of eamings of a lollowing year. Alter recenving dividend
at agreed dividend rare, preference sharsholders of the Group wall not paropate the distribution of residual prafits wath
ardinary shaseholders,

The Group could pay dwdends while the Geoup stll has distributatde after-1ac profit after making up previows years' losses,
contributing 1o the statutony resenve aned macing general provsions, and the Groug's capital adequacy ratio meets regulatory
regurements. Preference shasehciders of the Group are senicr to the oedinary shareholdars on the right to dividends.

The Groug shall distribute dividerds for the Preference Shares in cash, based on the liquidation prefeence of the saued and
outstanding Preference Shares on the corresponding times {ie. the product of the issue price of preference shares and the
numbier of the Biued and outsitanding preference shares), Interest methad of the Preference Shares of the Group s onoe a
year,

(i) Domestic preference shares

a Dividend

Fized rate for 4 coran period {5 years) alter lssuance

Diwdend reset every 5 years thereafter to the sum of the benchimark rate and the Fied Spread

The Faed Speead will be equal to the spread between the divdend rate at the tme of isuance and the benchmark rate. The
Fixed Spread will remain unchanged throughout the term of the Preference Shares

Dividends will be paid annually,
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b.  Conditions to distibution of dividends

Tha Growp could pay dividends while the Group il has distributable after-tax profit after malking wp provious years’
losses, contributing to the stafutory reserve and making general provitions, and the Group’s capital sdequacy ratio meets
reqpulatory requirements. The paying order of domestc preferance shares is squal to overseas preference shases. Prefenance
dharehalders of the Group are senior to the ardinary shareholders on the rght te dvidends. The Group may elect to cancel
any divagend, but such cancellaton will regure a sharehoides's revelutien to be pased

. Dividend sioppes
Il the Group cancels all e« past of the diidends to the Preference Sharehalders, the Group shall not make any dvidend

distnbution to ordinary sharehalders before the Group pays the dividends for the current dividend period fo the Preferencs
Shareholders in full

d Order of distriution and kquidation method

The Domestic Preference Shareholdens a5 well as Owerseas Preference Shareholders will rank equally for payment The
Freference Shareholders wall be subordinated 1o the depostors, ordinary creditors and holders of corvertibée bonds, holdess of
submedinated debd, holdens of Tier 2 capital bondy and holders of other Tier 3 capital imtruments of the Group, but will e
seniol 1o the odinary shareholders of the Groug.

e Mandatory convirsen trgger evants

Upen the atcurrence of an Additional Tier 1 Captal Trigger Event (Core Tier 1 Cagital Adequacy Bates of the Group falling
0 5 125% of below), the Group shall have the night to convert o o part of the Preference Shares into A chares, in onder
fo restons the Coie Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Rabo of the Group to above 5. 125%: It Prelerence Shares wiste converted ta
A shares, they may not be converted 1o Freference Shares again

Upon the ocowrrence of a Mon-Viability Trigger Event (Earfer of the two situations: (1) the CBIRC has determined that the
Group would become non-viable d there i no conversion or write-down of capital, or (2) the relevant suthorities have
determined that a public sectoe injection of capital o equibvalent support 18 necessary, without which the Group would
become nan-vinble), the Group shall have the night to convert ol Preference Shares into & shares. i Preference Shares wese
corverted to A thares, they may not be convened 1o PFreference Shares again

Amaong them, the indlal mandatery converson price of domedtic preference shares in 2015 was AMBI. &4 snd the iretial
mandatory comyorsion peice of domestic preference shates in 20018 was RMBS 43, In case of stock dividends destribution of
A fhares of the bank oo other circumatances, the bank will make cumalative sdjustment to the compalsnny comveruon price
in tum

i Redemgiticn

Alter five years having elapsed since the date of ssuanceithe date of jssue termination under the premse of abtaining the
approval of the CRIRC and compliance with requlatony reguinemenis, the Groug has right to redesm all or some of domestic
preference shares. The redemption penod of preference shares ranges from the start date of redemption 1o the date of full
redemption or conversion, Redemption price is equal to book value plus accrued daadend in current period.

9.  Dwedend setting mechanism

Mon cumulative dvidend i a dividend on preference shares which does not cumulate upon omission of payment so as to
reguire paymient of a passed or omilled dividend of ooe ypear oul of eamings of 4 following year, Alier receving dividend
at agreed dividend rate, preference shareholdars of the Group will not pamicipate the distribubon of residual profits with
ordinary shareholders.

Tha Group could pay dividends while the Group still has distibutable after-tax profit sHer making up previcas years' losses,
contributing 1o the statutory rederve and making genersl provisions, and the Group's capital adequacy ratio meets regulatony
redguiremients Proferenco sharsholdeds of the Group are sensor to the ufdln.l.ry shaseholdess on the ngh't 10 dredords,
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The Group shall dotribute dividends for the Preference Shares in cash, based on the total amount of the tawed and
outsianding Preference Shares on the :nrrnpu'ldlng times {i.e. the product of the ssue price ol prﬂwnnl:e shares and the
number of the miued and outstandeng preference shases), Interest methad of the Preference Shares of the Group 3 once a
year,

{c) Changes in preference shares outstanding

| Janairy HT1 Mamarts during the jew 11 Deverebar 1010
Frantiy I original e n prginal
[ — At [ e MR LB TR canerey In Y Aoy wrwsry In BB
Hiilandeg I milien shatva) millon) [mdlice)  [milen thun) il inifion]  frviliion stham) Imalliar) |miffion)
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L] 14 158 1 an 145 i al - - -
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s i H 1 ma [ ] {1200m - - -
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Mode: (1) The AME amourts of offshore preference shares in Euroon 3§ Decernber 2019 are translated at the spot eschange mate on
suance date

{2) Ddfshare USD prefevred shares and A& preferied shares have been redesmed on 10 Detember 2010,

(2) Porpetual Bond
{a) Perpetual bond outstanding at the end of the year

fieareid et fnorignal
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Mole: USD perpetuad bond wan msued by ICBC Asia, a sutmidiary of the Rank.

{b) Main Clauses
(i) USD Perpetual Bond

On 21 luly 2016, ICRC Ass istied Bawel ll-comphant Mon-Cumulative Suboedinated Additional Teer 1 Capdal Securitie
[hecpinattor rofered 1o o “Perpotual Bond®) in the agoregate amount ol US§E1 billion (squealent to approaimately
RMBE,GTE million nel of refated issiance contsl Faed rate lor the first 5 yeare after sswarce ol the bond & 475%. 1t
peipetual bondy are not called, ditnbution will be reset bated on the then prevailing S-year USA national boads yeld plus a
fixed initial soread (3135 per cenl. per amnum) svery 5 year

The distibution shall be payable semi-annually, with the first oistribution payment date being 21 lanuary 2007 ICHC
#Asia has the nght to cancel distnbution payment (subject to the requsrement as set out in the terms and conditions of the
pempetual bond) and the distributon cancelled shall not be cumulative
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The perpetual Bond will be written off up 1o the amount as directed by the Hong Kong Monetary Autharity (herenalter
referred 1o @ “HEKMA®) if the HEMA notifies ICBC Asia that in the opinion of the HKMA or a relevant government body,
ICBC Asia would become nan-vinble if there is no witten off of the principal. The perpetual bond also containg Hang Kong
Bad-mn Powier. Each holder of the perpetusl bond shall be subpect 1o the exercise by 1he Hong Kong Resolution l:l.rthulﬁj' to
any or a combsnateon of the following:

(1) reductien ar cameellatien of 2l o a port of the principal andfor dastributien af the perpetusl bond;

{21 the corversion of all or a part of the prncipal andfor distnbution of the perpetual bond into shares of ICBC Asia or
anather persan; andior

(31 the amendment of the matunty, distribution payment date andfoc the datribution amount ol the pepitual band.

ICBC Asia has a call apthon to redeem all the sutitanding perpetual bond fram 21 July 2021 o any subsequent dstribution
paymnt date themalter.

(il RME Perpetual Bond

With the approvals by relevant regulatery authoribes, the Bank ssved AMESDO billon undated capetal bonds (heresnafter
reterred (o as “Perpetual Bond ™) in China's national nier-bank bond market on 26 Rly 20019, Each Perpetual Bond has a par
value of RMB100, and the annual coupon rate of the Bonds for the first five years & 4.45%%, resetting every 5 years. The rate
is determined by @ benchmark rate plus a fued spread. The fixed spread is the difference between the distnbution rate and
the benchmark raie as determined at the time of issuance. The fined spread wall not be adjusted omce determined during the
duration pencd.

The duration of the Perpetual Bond & the same as the continuing operation of the Bank. 5 years after the ssuance date of
the Peipetual Bond, the Bank shall have the right to redeem the Perpetual Bond in whole or in part on each distribution
payment date (including the fifth distribution payment date since the ssuancel. Upon the ssuance of the Perpatual Bond,
in the event that the Perpetual Bond is not dassified s other tiev-cne capital bonds due to unpredictable changes in
regulaticns; the Bank shall have the right 1o redeem the Perpetual Bond fully instead of pastly

The clismi = rispoct of the Perpatiial Bond, in the event of 4 winding-up of the Bark, will be subardirated to claims ol
dirposutors, geneval creditors, and subordinated indebtedness that rank senior to the Perpetual Bond, wall rank in pronty to
all elassed ol shates bold by the Bank's sharshalders and rank pan passu vath the claims in fespect of any othed Additional
Tier 1 Capital instrurrents of the Bank that rank pan passa with the perpeual bond,

Upon the ocourence of an Addikenal Tier 1 Cagilal Togger Bvent (Cone Tier 1 Camlal Adeguacy Ratio of the Bank falling to
5.125% o belowl, vl the consent of the CBIRC and without the consent ol the bordholders, the Bank has the right to
wirite down all o part of the above Perpetual Bord ssued and esisting a1 that time in accordance with the odal par value,
in order 1o restore the Core Tier 1 Capital Adeguacy Ratio of the Bank 1o sbove 5125%. Upon the ooumence of 4 Non-
Wiability Togger Event, the Bank has the right to wiile down all the above Perpetual Bond bsued and existieg at that time in
accordance with the totel par value without the consent of the bomBholders,

The Perpetual Bond is paid by non-cumulative interest The Bank shall bave the rght 1o cancel, m whole o in part,
distributions on the Perpetual Bond and sny such cancellation shall not constitute an avent of default, The Bank may, at i
sobe discretion, use the proceeds from the cancelled ditributsons to mest other cbligations a3 they fall due. Moweeor, the
Bank shall rot distribute profits to ordinary sharehalders until resumption of full imerest paymant,

The funds raised by the Bank from the above-mentioned Perpetual Bond wal be approved by applcable laws and regulatory
agencies to supplement ather Tier 1 capital of the Bank
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{c) Changes in perpetual bond outstanding
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MNote: The RWE amount of perpetual bond as at 31 December 2019 & warmlaved an the spot exchange rate on ssuance dale.

(3) Interests attribute to equity instruments’ holders

1 lanuary 31 December

Equity instrument 019 019
1 Total equiy atinbute to eguity holders of the parent company 2,330,001 1676166
(1) Equity stimbuie to gedinasy equity halders of the parent company 2,243,950 2470054
(2} Equity attnbuie to other equity instnements hodders of the parent company 85,051 206,132
. Total equity attribute to non-pontrolling inietests 14 BE2 15817
(1) Equity attribuie to non-controlling mierests of ordinary shares 14,682 15877
{2} Equity stimbuie to non-controfling snterests of other equety Instruments - -
39. RESERVES

(a) Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly ncludes sharg premium srsing from the isswance of new shanes a1 prices in excess al par value,

(b} Surplus reserves
(i) Statutory surplus reserve

The Bank s required to apprognate 10% of its prnfll: for the year purtuant o the Company Livar of the People’s RBepuble af
China and the Articles to the statutory surplus reserve untd the reserve balance reaches 50% of |13 reguatered cagital

Subpect to the approval of the sharehoiders, the statuiory sufplus reserve iy be used to offset accumulated losies of the
Bank, if any, and may alsa be converted o cagital of the Bank, provided that the balance of the statutony surphus peseree
after such coptalisatson ks not bess than 25% of the registered capital mmmedaiely belore capitahsaton.

Pursuant 1o the resolution of the board of directors’ meeting hald on 27 March 2020, the 1ofal appropriation 1o surplus
reserve of the Bark was AMB29,7E6 million (2018; AMBIR. 421 milion), among which an appropriation of 10% of the
prafit of the Bank for the year daterrréned under the genevally scceptad accounting prnciples of PRC (*PRC GAAP™) 10
the statutory surpluz reserve, m the armount of RMB29,733 millon (2018: RMAZE, 318 million} was approved and the total
surphus resande made by some overseas branches was RMB5S3 million (2018 RIMB103 mellien) pursuant to the requiremants
of local authonties
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(i) Discretionary surplus reserve

After making the appropriation to the dannory surphn reserve, the Bank may slio appropriate it profit for the year
determined under PRC GAAFR 1o the daeretionary surphet rederye upon apprewal by the shanrshalders in genesal mestings
Subject 1o the sopreval by the sharshalders, the dacretionassy saplus rederoe may be used to off st sceumulated boises af
thie Bank. if any, and may be converied inta capital

(i) Other surplus reserve

The Bank's aversess entities appropriate their profits to the surplus reserve n sccordance vath the relevent regulations
promulgated by the bacal regulatory bodies

{c) General reserve

Fram 1 July 2012, the Bank i requined by the MOF to maintain & general rewsrve within egualy, through the appropration of
prafit, which should nat be less than 1.5% of the year end balance of 15 sk assets

The Bank's sulsidiaries appropnate thenr prodits 1o e general reserve accarding 1o the apphicable local regulations
The general reserve balance of the Bank as a1 31 December 2012 amounted to RMBZS5 962 mifecn (31 December 2018

RMB2T1,201 million), which has reached 1.5% of the year end balance of the Bank's risk assets

{(d) Investment revaluation reserve

The imeesiment revaluation reserve records the fair value changes and imparment proviion of financal nvesiments
maasued at FVOCL

{e) Foreign currency translation reserve

Tha foreign currency translatbon resere B used to record exchange defferences ariseng from the trarmlaten of the financal
statements of the subsdiaries and branches incorporated outside Mainland China

(f) Cash flow hedge reserve

The cash flow hedge reserve comprises the effective portssn of the gan or loss on the hedging mstrument.

(g) Other reserves

Ot reseroes represent reserves of wbsidianes and share of reserves ol suoclares and jeant ventures ather than the items
listed above.

(h) Distributable profits

The Bank's distributable prahits are besed on the retained profits of the Bank & determined under PRC GAAF and IFRSs,
whichever b lowess, The amount that the Bank's subsidianies can legally distribute is determined by neference to ther prafis
a reflected in thes financial sisternents prepared in atcordance with the accounting reqgulations and prroples promulg ated
by the local regulatory bodies of the respective countrievregans. These profits may difler from thowe dealy with in thess
firancial staternents, which are prepared in accordsnce with IFRSs,
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The statement of changes mn equity of the Bank during the year are set cut belaw.
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[l Includes the appropriation made by owerseas branches in the amount of RMBS3 millica (20718 AMB103 millicn].
[id) Includes the sppropration made by ocverseas branchet in the amount of AMEB2 million {2018: revercal in the amount of

EMBS million),
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40. COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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2015 WNE
Iveres that wall not be reclassified 1o profit or loss:
Changes in fair value of equity instruments dessgniated as af FYOCE {53 2,086
Less: Income tax effect 15 (481}
138) 1,605
Other comprehensive income recogniied urdes eguity method n #
Others 4] (5
Iteres that may be reclassified subsequently o prafit o loss;
Changes i fair vahae of debl indtraments measured at FVOCI 9687 29N
Less: Amount transfered to profit or loss from other compreransae income 73 337
Income tas effect [2.434) (8,709
S 8026 14560

Credit losses of debi instruments measured at FYOC] 164 (1,238)

Reserve from cash Flow hedging instruments
Lises during the year (696 42}
Less: income tax effect 62 1)
(634 53
Other mmm_é-lmuml mm.r!ed unides equity method (5300 458
Forelgn currency translation differences 417 3325
Others (33 {903}

10,708 1809
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41. INVOLVEMENT WITH UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

(a) Structured entities sponsored by third party institutions in which the Group holds an
interast

The Group holds an interest in some struclused entilies sponsored by thisd party imstitutions through investments in the
products issued by thiese struchwed entities. Sudh structured entities mciude imestment Tunds, assel management plans,
trust plars and asset-backed securities and the Gioup does mot consolidate these stiuctured entities. The nature and purpose
of these structured entities are 1o gererate fees from managing assets on behalf of westors and aee financed through the
issue of investment products 1o inestors,

The followng table wts out an analysin of the caempng amounts and massmiem exposure of nterests held by the Groap in
the structured eniities sponsored by third party instiutions

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum
amaoaunt BEXPOTARTE amaunt BEpORLTE
Irvestinent funds 27,225 27,225 23,19 13,191
Assel management plans 422712 arxr e 324,773 324,773
Teust plans 44,556 44,556 39,966 9,066
Asset-backed securtes 117,487 117,487 80,202 80,202
611,980 611,980 468,132 468,132

The masermer exprures 0k in the abowe imesimend funds, saet management plans, trust plans and essel-backed
secunibies am i amortised cost or fair value of the assets bold by the Group al the reponting dale.

The followng table sets out an analysis of the line items in the consoldated statement of financial postion in which assets
were recogrised relating to the Group's interests in structured entiies sponsored by third party institutions:

31 December 2019

Financial Financial Financial
Investments Imvestmants investmenis
L ed ot ed at maasured at
FUTPL OO amertised cost
Irvestiment funds 27,215 - -
Asset management plang 405,680 - 17,032
Teust plans 26,226 - 18,330
Bsset-backed secuntes 68,233 20,844 28410
527 364 20,84= 63772
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3 December 2018

Financial Financial Financial

Investments investmants investments

measured at maasured at measurad at

FVTPRL FVOEI  amortised cost

Investmant funds 23,191 - -

Asset management plans 06,981 - 17,7192

Trust plans 28,197 - 11,769

_Asset-backed securities 60,234 5317 14,001
S 418,653 5917 43562

{b) Structured entities sponsared by the Group which the Group did not consalidate but
held an interest

The types of unconsolidated structured ertiies sponsored by the Group wclude nen-prnopal-guaranieed wealth
management products and vestment funds. The natuwe and purpose of these struciured emities ane to generale fess
fram managing assets on behall of imestors These structured entitbes ane fmanced through the lsswe of notes 1o Imveston
Intesest held by the Group Indudes investments in notes msued by these structused entities and fees charged by providing
management services. As at 31 Decembed 2019, the campng amounts of the investments in the notes ssued by these
structured entities and fee receivables being recognised were not matenal in the staement of financial positions.

As at 31 Decembser 2019, the amount of assets held by the unconsoldated non-prncipal-guaranteed wealth management
products and imestrment funds, which ae sponsored by the Group, were AMBZ 642,057 million (31 December J018:
RMB2,575,857 midbon) and RRE1, 332,184 million {29 December 2018: AMET, 308,500 million) respectivaly.

Durireg thie year ol 20019, the amount of the average exposure of financing tranactions through placements and reverss
repurchase agreements from the Group with non-principal guaranteed wealth mansgement products sponsoeed by the
Group was RMBA3,142 million (2018 AMET?3, 105 million), The tramactions wete conducted in the ordinary course of
business under normal terms and conditions and a1 market rates.

(e} Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored by the Group during the year in which
the Group does not have an interest at 31 December 2019

The aggregated amownt of the nen-prncipal-guarenteed wealth mansgement products sponsoned and isued by the Group
after 1 January 2019 but matured befare 31 December 2019 was RMB204,793 million (The aggregates amount of the non-
principal-guaranieed wealth managerment products sponsored and ssued by the Group after 1 Jaruary 2018 bu? matuned
belore 31 Decemnber 2018 was RMET0E, 588 milion)

During the year of 2019, the ameount of fee and commission income recefved from such categesy of non-principal-
guaranieed wealth management products by the Group was RMB 1,610 million (2018: RMET, 337 million),

The aggregaied amount of the investment funds sponsored and issued by the Group aller 1 Januasy 2019 but matured
before 31 December 2019 was RME3,000 million (The aggregated amount of the investment funds sponsored and issued by
tha Group after 1 January 2018 but matured before 31 December 2018 was RMBEE million).

Dutity the yesr of 2019, the amount of income peceived from such categony ol Fvestmisnt Turds was ARMBED, 72 million
(2018: AMBD. 19 milion],
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42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents

1 Decombar 31 Decembar

Note 2019 2018
Cash on hand 15 56,035 T0,047
Balances with central banks other than resincied depowts 15 EFra. ikl 138,286
Nostro acoeunts with banks and other financial institutions with
ceigenal maturity of three months or bless 124,374 114,886
Placements with banks and other financial institutions with coiginal
miafurity of three manths or less 230,140 250,067
Reverse repurchase agreements with erginal matusity of
thuee maniths or less BOE,5T2 GEBE, 237
1,450,413 1,508,523

43. TRANSFERRED FINAMCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into fransactions in the normal course of business by which it transfers recognised financia! assets to third
parties or 10 structued entities. n some cases where these transfers may give rise to full of partial derecognition of the
financial assets concerned. In other cases where the transferred asmsets do not guality for desecognition as the Group has
retained subsiantially all the risks and revsands of these assets, the Group conlinued 10 recognine the transfermed assets.

Repurchase transactions and securities lending transactions

Transfered financial assets that do not qualify for derecognition mainly inchude debt secusrties bald by countarparties as
collateral under repurchase agreements and debt seorities l2nt to counterparties under secunties lending agreements
The counterparties are allowsd 0 sefl or repladge those sacuntios seldl under repurchase agreaments in the absence of
detault by the Group, but has an obhgation to retum the secuntees at the maturty of the contract. 1 the secunfies increase
or decrease in value, the Group may in certain cincumstances require or be required to pay addibional cash collateral in
certain croumstance. The Group has determined that it retains substantially all the nsks and rewards of these secunhes and
therefore has not derecognised them. In addition, it recognises a financial liability for cash received as collateral

The Tollowing table anabeses the carrying amount of the above mentioned financial aviets tramberred to thind pamies that did
not quality for derecognition and their asociated financial liabiiitie:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of amount of amount of
wrancforrsd associated transferrod associated
assots liahilitios assets liabilities
Repurchase agreements 30,375 29,766 33,081 45,780
Seculies lending agreements 286,527 - 173,685 -
316,902 29,766 306,848 &5, 780
hanwsl Hopore 20000 .fl"”

390/474



hotes to the Financial Statements

Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2015
[ AME milligns, unless otherwise fated)

Securitisation transactions

The Group transfers credit assets to struciured antties which msue asset-backed secwries to investoss The Group may
acquire soma asset-backed seounties and fund shares at the subordinated tranche level and accordingly, may retain parts
of the risks and rewards of the tramfered credit asets The Group would determine whethar or ot 1o derecognae the
asociated credit assats by evaluating the extent o which it retains the risks and rewards of 1he aswets

For those in which the Greup has nedher irarsfesred noe retained substantiaty all the faks and rewards ol the trantfermed
credit assets, and retained eontral of the credt assets, the Group recognises the Fets an the statemen? of financial posbon
in accardance with the Graup's cantinuing imehvement and the rest & derecognised. The sxtent of the Geoup's continuing
inyolvement i the extent af the ks and rewasds indertaken by the Group with value changes of the ranslered financial
assets. The amount at the time of trandler of the onginal creds assety, whech the Group determined thal 1 has conbinuing
inveeerment theough acquiring some tranches, was BMBIE4, 156 million a4 a2 31 December 2013 (the amount at the time
al transdes af the ariginal eredit sty was AMB256 346 million as at 31 Decermber 2018) and the carging amaunt of asiets
that the Group contnum 1o recognee on the stitement of knanclal positon was RMBS2,016 medson s a1 31 December
2019 (31 Decembar 2018 RMEIT, 239 million)

With respect to the secumsation of financial assets that do not qually for cerecognibon, the relevant finandal assets ane
not derecognised, and the consideration paid are recorded a5 a financial liabiity. As at 31 December 2019, the Group doss
not have camrpng amount of transferred assets that did not qualdy for devecognition and carrying amount of their assodated
liahdities (31 December 2078: N,

44. SHARE APPRECIATION RIGHTS PLAN

The Bank's share appreciation rights plan was approved in 2006, which allows share apprediation rights to be granted to
eligible participants including directors, supenisors, senion management and other key persennel dessgnated by the board of
direciors. The share appeeciation rghis will be granted and exercised based on the price of the Bank's H shases and wall be
vald for 10 yeass. As at the approval date of these financial statements, no share apprecation rights have been granted,

45, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

{a) Capital commitments

At the end of the reporbng penod, the Group had capital commatments as follows

3D b no b
2019 2018
Contracted 31,915 33,042
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(b} Operating lease commitments
Operating lease commitments — Lessee

Asat 31 Decenber 2018, the total future minemem kease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were payable as

Tollows:
31 December
2018
Within 1 year 6,526
Creer 1 year but within § years 12,806
Cwer 5 years 2.3
11,683

Thet rougt bs U lesses in respett of a namber of proge e, eecironic sguipments, Banpon squiprrents and othe office
equiprments held under leases which were previousdy classfied o operating leases under 185 17, The group has initially

applied IFRS 16 usmg the modified tetrospecive approsch & sl 1 lanuary 2009, s ecognised the presenl value of
outstandeng lease payments as lease habilities (Refer to note 31 From 1 January 2009 omwards after the adoption al IFRS
16, the presert valus of outstanding lease payments o recognised as lease labilites in accordance with the requeement ol
IFRS 16 (Reder 1o note 2 and rote 36 ()

Operating lease commitments — Lessor

&b the end of the reporting pencd, the Group leased certain sireraft and vessels 1o third parties under operating lease

arrangements, and the tota future mimmum lease recensables in respect of non-cancellable cperating leases wih it tenants
e a3 follows:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Within ane yiat 21,018 16,068
Crver ane year but within five yoars 87,494 62,732
Ower Fvig poard 04,249 B8,258
202,761 V67,048

(e} Credit commitments

it amy gwen time, the Group has outstanding commitments to extend credit. These commilments are in the form of

approved laans and undrawn credit card Bimits
The Group provedes letters of credit and finanoal guarantees 1o guarantee the perfermance of custemers to third parties.

Bank acceptances comprse undertakings by the Group to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Group expects

mast acceptances 1o be settled simultanecasly with the resmbursemaent from the customers,

hunwsl Hepore 200009
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The contractual amounts of credit commutments by category are et out below. The amounts disclosed n respect of loan
commitrments and undrawn credit card bmat are vader the assumpton that the amounts will beh.ll; advanced. The amounis
for bank acceptances, letters of cedit and guarantees represent the maximum potential losses that weuld be recogrised at
the end of 1the reporting penod had menlnparﬁﬂ failed 10 pm'fnrm a4 contracted.

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Bank acceplances 311,300 263,038
Guarartees dsued:

— Financng letiers of guaraniees 69,63 104,146

= Mon-financing letters of guaraniess 414,245 405155

Sight bettars of credit 40,8023 43918

Usance letters of credit and gihir commitments 156,683 162,801
Laan cormmitments:

— With an ariginal matunty of under one year 1ET,651 151,927

— With &n original maturity of one year ar over 625,146 1,061,666

Wndraven credit cand lima 1,157,478 1,037,861

2,963,074 3,379512

31 December 31 December

2019 018

Credit risk-wiighted assets of credit commitrmentsi L306E 1402715

] Imermsl ratings-bused spproach was adopted to caloulate the oredit rak-weightsd ssets according bo the wwope approved by
the former Ching Banking Regulatory Commission {the “former CBRC® |, and others wene caloulated by weighted approsch,

{d) Legal proceedings

A a1 31 Decembser 2019, there were @ number of legal proceedings owtstanding agasnat the Bank andior ity subsidianes
with & claimed amount of AMB4, 233 milon (31 Decenber 2018; AMB4, 154 million],

In the opsnion of management, the Group has made adequate alowance for any probable losses bases on the ourrent facts

and circumstances, and the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits will not have a matesiad impact on the financial position or
operations of the Growp.

(e} Redemption commitments of government bonds

As an underwriting agent of the Governmens, the Bank undenwrites cerfan PRC government bonds and sells the bonds
io the general public. The Bank is obliged to redeern these bonds at the discretion of the holders at any time prior to
maturty The redempton prce for the bonds 1 based on the nominal va'ue of the bonds plus any mlerest acorued up o
tha redempticn date. As at 31 December 2019, the Bank had undenwritten and sold bonds wath an accumulated amount of
RMBES B4 million (31 Decembar 2018 RMBAS, 845 millon) to the general pubfic, and these government bonds have not
yet matured nor been redeemed. Management expects that the amount of redemption of these govemment bonds through
the Bank prior 1o maturity will not be matenal,

The MOF will not provida funding for the easly redemption of these gowermment bands on a back-doshack baus bt &
obliged to repay the princpal and the respective interest igpon maturfty

(f} Underwriting abligations

As at 31 Decermbar 2019, the unexpired securitios undorwiting cbigations of the Group amounted to RMET.000 millon
{31 Docombor 20718: RMBT00 million)
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46. DESIGNATED FUNDS AND LOANS

11 December 31 Decamber

2018 2018
Dewgnated funds 1,916,638 910,829
Designated koans 1916282 910ATE

The designated funds represent the funding that the trustons have mstructed the Group o wse to make loans $o thied partes
as desgnated by them The credit dak remaine with the trustary

The designated boans represent the loans granted 1o specfic bonowers designated by the trustors on thelr behalf scooedng
10 the entrsted agreements sigrad by the Group and the trustors. The Group does not bear any risk.

47. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

Financial asgets of the Group inthading securities, biks and loans have been pledged as colliteral lor liabilities or contingént
lakilties, mainly the repurchase agreements and dervative contracts. As at 31 December 2019, the camying value of the
financial wsets ol the Group pledged o collatersd smounted 1o approsimaldy RMB227,938 milon (31 Decernber 2018
RBABASD, 513 millionk.

48. FIDUCIARY ACTIVITIES

The Group prondes custody, rust and awet management wrvicoe, to third parties, Revenoe from such activities iy included in
“net fee and commission moome” se1 out i note 7 above. Those assets held in a fiduclary capacty are not included in the
Group's consoidated statement of financial position.

49, RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

In additan to the transactons detaibed eluewhere in these financal staterments, the Group had the folowing ransactions
with related panties durng the year

(a) Shareholders with significant influenece
{i} The MOF

Ther MCF is 2 ministry wnder the State Councd of the PRL. primanly resporrsble for, ameng athers, state fiscal revenues,
expenies and taxaton paolices: As at 31 Decernber 2019, the MOF directly ewned aporoximately 31.14% (31 December
201B; approximaiely 34.60%) of the mwed share capitad of the Bank. bn 2019, the MOF has transfered 10% of the shares,
wihich ts 12,331,645 186 A shades [t holds in the Bank ane-aff 10 the National Councl for Social Sequrity Fund as the hokder
The Group enters Inta banking transactions with the MOF in its normal course of business, details of the maor transactiom

are a3 follows:
 December 31 December
2018 2018
Balances at end of the year

The PRC gavernment bonds and the special govermmant bond 1,205,664 | 097,055
2018 018

Transactions dunng the year:
Inderesl income on the FRC governmaent bomds 36,806 37,795
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As at 31 Decemnber 2019, the Group hoids a senes of long-term bonds ssued by Huarong, which i under the controd of the
MOF, wath an aggregate ameunt of RMBS0, 308 millien (31 December 2018: AMBSD, 309 millicn). The detads of the Hustong
bonds are included i note 24

Other relates party transactions between the Group and enterprses under the control or joint control of the MOF ane
disclened in nate 4%g) “transactions with state-remed entities in the PAC "

(i) Huifin

As at 31 December 2019, Central Huspn investment Lid {*Husjin®) directly owned approzimately 34 71% (31 December
2018 approzimately 34.71%) of the issued share capital of the Bank. Huijin s & state-owned investment comparny
established on 16 December 2003 wnder the Company Law of the PRC, Huwjm has total registered and paid-in capital of
RMIBE28,. 209 milon. Huijin is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, and in accordance with the
authorisation by the State, Huijin makes eguity imestrments in magr state-covned financial enterprises, and shall, 1o the
extent of its capital contribution, exercise the nghts and perform the oblipations as an investor on behall of the State in
accordance with applicable laws, to achieve the goal of preserving and enhancing the value of state-owned financial assets
Huijin does not conduct amy other business or commencial actwity, It does not intervene in the day-to-day business
operations of the fimms inwhich # invests

As at 31 December 2019, the Huijin Bonds held by the Group ame of an sggregate face value of RMBSE.23 billon
{31 December 2018: RMB3E.77 billionl, with teems ranging from 1 to 20 years and coupon rated ranging from 2.85%
1o 5.15% per annurm. The Huipn Bords are government-backed, shom-term finanong bills and mediurm-term netes The
Group's subscription af the Hugpn Bonds was conducted in the erdinary courie of bisines, in eomplance with relevant
regulatesy requirerents and the corporate govermance af the Group

The Growp entared into banking transactions with Hugpn in the crdinary course of business under normal commarcial leoms
andd at the market rates. Dietails of the majer transactions are as follaws

31 December 31 December

2099 0ig

Balances at end of the year.
Debt securitees puschaned 37,436 ¥3.563
Loans and advances to customers 22012 27.007
Due to customers 1,558 11453
019 Foal

Trandactions dunng the year
Interest incame on debt swecurities purchased 1,849 1.211
Interest incame on loans and advances To CUSTOMErs ne 1.207
Interest expense on armaunts due 1o customers 240 192
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Huijin has equity imlerests in certain other banks and financaal insttutions under the direction of the Government, The
Group enters nio tramactions wath thess banks and financial institutions in the ordinary oourse af busmness under nommal
commrcial ems. Managemen! consders that thewe banks and financial ingutions ane competitor: of the Group, Detaik
ol mapoe Eransactions during the yoar conducted with these Banks and financial institutions are a5 foliows:

31 Decembar 31 Decamber

2018 2018
Balances at end of the year:
Dbyt securites punchased 530,740 523,519
[ from banks and other financial instiutions 101,724 135,654
Lesans and advamces to custormners 324 FAN
Derivative financial azsets 4,971 6,335
Due to banks and other financial institutions 221,015 123,288
Dervative financial kabilities 5,902 6,988
D to customens 1.003 833
Cradit commitments 7072 13,974
2009 2018
Trarmactions dufing th year:
Interest income on debt securities purchased 1B,548 15866
Interest income on ancunts due fram banks and ather financial icstitutions 234 538
Interest income on |oans and advances Ta customens 44 6
Intetist expense on afmounts die ta banks and ather ancal odlitutrons 1,362 1,517
Inferest exoense on amounti due 10 cuslomens 10 12

(b} Subsidiaries

11 December 31 Decembar

201§ 1018
Balances al end of the year.
Furanceal smnesEmeiils 374 27,638
Dhues frem banks and oifer linancial insidutions 402,276 418802
Lexans and advantes (o cusiormers 30,150 40 5332
Derivative financial agssts 1810 2,054
D 1o banks and ather financial inatitutions 167,454 410,539
Denvative hinanclal kabilities 3,293 GBS
Reverse repurchase agreements 1.872 4479
Credit commitrments 113,755 151,512
201§ 1018
Transactions dunng the year:
Interest income on financial irvesiments. 151 155
Interesl income on amounts due Trom bankd and other financial irstitutions BEd 1,802
Interest income on loans and advances lo customers 520 1.033
Interest enpende on amounts due to banis and other finanoal septutons 1,807 1,643
Fee and commissian income 3,088 21432

The majoe halancet and transactions with wibviddiaries have been sliminated in the comrolidated financal statements
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(e} Associates and affiliates

I December 11 December

2019 2018
Balances at end of the year
Uebt secunties purchaned B.548 -
Due from Banks and ather financial instititions 4,005 13%
Lowns and sdvances o customens 1.6E0 33
Detrvative financal assts L.Ima 1.558
Due to banks and other Hnancial ks iutions 12397 15887
Due to custormers 1] 165
Dervatrve inanceal kabilies 202 433
2019 2078
Transactions duting the year,
Eterest income on debl wsuritien purchased 128 -
eres] ippame on armounts dee From banks and other loiasoal st uisons el 53
EteEres] incoumie O loans ahd acvances {0 Cusboimis oF 120
Iteres] expense of armounts due io banks and other financial siiuions 254 323
eyl enpensg on armounts doe Vo Cuslomers [¥] 1

The major transactions between the Group and the assocates and ihew afliliates compmsed due from banks and
ather financial institubions, loans and advances to customers and due to banks and other firancial mstitutions and the
corresponding intevest income and interest espense. In the opinicn of maragement, the transactions between the Group
and the associates and thesr affiliates were conducied under nommal commercial 1erms and conditions.

{d} Joint ventures and affiliates

31 December 31 Decemnber

095 018
Balances at end of the year.
Due to customens 3 71
2019 2018
Transactionn during the year:
nterest expense on arnounts due to customerns (4] 1

In the opinkan of management, the transactions between the Group and the aforementioned parties were conducted in the
ordinary course of business under normal terms and conditions and at madket rates.
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(e} Key management personnel

The key managemant personnael are those pesors who have the authonty and mesponsblity to plan, direct and control
the actiities of the Group. directly or indirectly, including members of the board of dirsctoss, the supervisary board and
emecutive officers

Tt apgregate compensation for the yea, ather than those for the personne| dusclosed in note 17 aboee, i a5 foliows

2018 o8

RMB‘ 000 RME‘000

Short-term employment benefits 2,168 6,002

Post-employment benefits 104 162
o 2273 6260

MNoile: The above remureration belone tas paysble 10 key management persannel for 2018 represents the total amount of annual
remuneraton, which incluces the ameunt dacdesed in the 2018 Annual Repeet

The total compenwtion packages for wenior management of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2013 have not
besn firalived in accordance with the regufationd of the PRC melevant authonties. The remuneration nat yol sceiued o not
expicted o have & ugnificant impact on the Group's 20019 financial statements. The total compensation packages wall be
furthes disclosed when deterrmned by the relovant authorities

Comparss or (orporations, n which the key management of the Groug or their dose relatives are shareholders o Koy
mansgement persannel who are able to exercise control dinecily o indimecty are abo considened a2 related panties of the Group

The trarsactnns between the Group and the sforementioned parties for the year ae as follows:

31 Decembar 31 December

018 1018
AMB'000 RMB 000
Loans 2413 4,513

Thete were o other matenal transactions and balances with key management persannel on an ndividueal basis during the
year. The Group enters mio barking transactans with key management personned in the norral course of businet

The aggregate balance of kaans and credt card overdrafit to the person which are considered &5 relsied pariies according to
the redevant rules of Shanghai Stock Exchange was RMEB3. 24 midlen as at 31 Decemnber 2019,

In the apinen al management, the transactions between the Group and the aforementioned parties were conducted n the
ardinary course of busness under nosmal terms and condstans and o1 market rates

2l )
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(f} Annuity Fund

Apart from the obligations for defined contributions to the Anruity Fund, Annwity Fund holds the market value of & shares
of the Bank with an amount of RMETD1.36 million as at 31 December 2019 (21 Decomber 2018 RME4L.41 million], and
holds bonds msued by the Bank of RMB20,28 million as at 31 December 2019 (31 Decemnber 20718: Nil}

{g) TransactHans with state-awnad antities in the PRC

The Group operaies in an economec emaronment predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly ovned andior controfied
by the Governement through its autharities, afiilates or other organsations {collectively the “state-cwred entities” ). Dusing
the year, the Group entered into extensive banking tramactons with these state-cwned entities incheding, but not Smited
1o, lending and depasit taking, taking and placing of interbank balances, entrusted kending and the provision of intermediary
services. the sale, purchase, underwaiting and redemption of bonds Bsuwed by other state-owned entites, and the sale,
purchase, and leasing of properties and other assets

Management considers that fransactions with state-owned enlities are activities conducted in the ordinary cowrse of
business, and that the dealings of the Group have not been significantly or unduly sffected by the fact that the Graup and
those state-owned entities ang uliimately controlied or owned by the Governmens. The Group has also established peicing
policies for products and services and such pricing policies do not dopond an whaother or not the customens are state-owned
cnhifacs.

{h) Proportion of major related party transactions

The major balances and tramsactions with subsidianes have been eleminated i the comolidated financial statements. When
calculating the progortion of related party fransaction, ramsactions with the subsediary e ol involved,

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Balances L Balances %=
Financial investments 1,803,840 21.55% I1.GED, 137 14 58%
Duwee from banks and other financial mstitutions. 106,719 10.24% 135829 14.11%
Loans and advances to customers 17,826 01T% 30,620 0.20%
Derivative financial assets 6,251 9.15% 1.693 11.06%
D 1o banks and other financial institutions 233412 10.30% 139,175 TET%
Drerivative financial labilities 8,004 0.40% T4l 10.09%
Due 1o customens 3,034 0.01% 12,669 0.06%
Credit commétments 7172 0.24% 13,8974 043%

2019 018

Balances & Balances %
Intarast ncome 60,893 587% EDEIE A%
Intarast expanse 2,066 0.48% 2.046 054%
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50. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(a) Operating segments

For management putposes. the Groug b organised into dilferent operating segments, namely corporate banking, pesonal
banking and ledswy operatiors, based on internal ciganbational struciure, management requirernent and  inbernal
repeting system

Corporate banking

The corporate banking segment covers the provesion of fmanoal products and sennces 1o conporatons, QOVErNMEnt agenoes
and financial institutions. The products and services include corporate loans, trade hinancng, depesit-taking actwities,
corporate weatth management services, custody adtvities and vanous types of corposate intermediany services, efc.

Personal banking

The perenal banking segment covers the provision of financlal praducs and sendoes 1o individual oustemers. The products
and services inclide personal loans, depoit-taking activities, card busmess, personal wealth mansgement services and
vanouUs ypes of personal mtermediary servces, ete.

Treasury operations

The treawry ocoerations segment covers the Group’s ireasury opetations wihich mclude money maikel tramsctons,
irwestment secunties, foreign exchange transactiom and the holdmg of dervative positsond, for ity own accounts of on
behall of customess, eic

Others

This segment covers the Group's assets, labdtes, income and expenses that are mot drectly attributable of cannot be
allecated o s segment on o reasonale baus,

hManagemeni moniors the operating resuts of the Group's business unifs saparately for the puvpose of making dedsions
atout resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment information is prepared in conformety with the accounting
palicies adopied for preparing and presenting the financial statemants of the Group.

Transactions between segments manly epresent the providion of funding to and from indwiduasl segments. These
transactions are ¢onducted on terms dietermined with relerence to the average cost of lunding and have been reflected
i the performance of each segment. Net intetent income and expense arising on ntemal fund transter are referned 10 o
“intarnal net interest incomadexpense”. Net interest ncome and expenie relling 1o third parties are referred to a5 "external
net inferes] intomatexpenie”
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Segment revenues, expenses, results, aisets and liabilves include nems directly attributable to a segment a3 well & 1hase
that can be allocated on a masonable bass. The baxs for allocation i mm'n|'|l based on ocoupation of or coninbution to
resounces. Income tanes are managed on a group basiz and ane not allocated 1o operating segments

Year ended 31 Decomber 2019

Corporate Persanal Treasury
banking bankng operaiicas Dthen Total
Exwrmal st intenes eoome 2841 .16 nian - B06526
Internal rt interest incomefesperna) B4 134 528 {1100 - -
gt £t dnd commmssion indooe BB.963 65213 1418 - 155,600
(rther incomatiexpane], net B 1M &) P 461 1347
Diperating ‘rcoma 308 208 186 55 56422 460 136007
Oiperating spenies 76,208 108,770} (16,484 LLE A QoT.TE}
Irpainmant s on anets {152,735 (M4 480 (147 5 (1T 57)
Operatmg profibe L R T R YT .28 30260
Share of profits of axsociates and joint verbures - - - 1510 1520
Frofit befove taation 159,368 152519 78,191 131 391,738
Iacoame L enperss (78 428}
Frofit for the year 313361
(ther segment infermatian
Depmoation LRI 1286 1546 L2t ] 19,088
Amor sation 1008 g 446 145 14
Capital erpengitars FEF el 8538 1660 LEREL]
¥1 Detembar 21019
Sagrmenl auety 10,247 &72 B,438 504 13,176,154 188,505 30,109 436
bchuding: Irvestmessis m awooates snd ot venteres - - - A2 490 32,490
Pragersy s e prent 107 967 a3 37043 46,880 86551
Dithes nen-cutment ayuety (1 44 %50 13,974 7517 17329 E3,230
Sagment lutlities 12,854 055 10,763 847 3340594 258 597 AT A3
Other segment mfermatiarn
Credid commatmants 1832133 1130938 - - 1363011

(1] Includireg net trading incame, net {lesshigen on Bnancal investments and other opsfating income {net).

(i Incliding long-term receivables, intangible assets, goodwdll, kong-term deferred expenses, right-ol-use assets and other non-

rrent assets
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Wear ended 11 Decernber 2018
Lorparate Persoasl Treasary
banking banking operationy Others Tatal
External net irterest inoome 17,082 B4.143 M - 52518
Eriernal net infetest {epenseiincome EEL.] LI [IRLE L] - .
Het fee ard commision income Bl B4 Bi963 ] - 145,301
(e incomedexpemal, net (i 1,551 1604 .143) 5,188 1308
Dperabing moome 353,859 FEER ] fizAdd 5,188 125,111
Operatng eparnses 6797 e ] {17448 (18771 (5T et
impainment loses o asets {131 3&0 130,508 T8 (131 (TE1, 554
Dperating prehibeds) 151,714 144784 ] i2,508) 360,334
e ol prefits of assooatis and o ventunes - - - 1,088 k[ ]
Bool{ bedore tanstion 151714 182,784 TaEIE 587 72411
Inoma 1an experma (73,6500
Peol 4 fior the pes 2887123
Dithes segrmest ndermation.
Depreciatian 5,621 500 b3 b 538 13,407
Amorinalon Hag a7 432 164 2381
Capiil expendiue 30411 26,5653 12,083 303z TEEES
11 Decombar 1018
Segment anali 9.706,611 571,793 13,095,006 186,114 17599540
e Imersiments m asocates and joet et E - 25,124 20124
Proparty sad ogqupment 1ov.2m 0155 41 45577 250,404
(itner non-cument assets 20,760 UM 24 15,862 AT BdE
Segmaent labdtis 13.282.100 GEEL 1179500 HB.535 15354657
Cithes segmend nfoemation;
Crmdi| commemants L123,15 1,007,358 - 32951

(i1} Incliading net trading mcome, net gain on finencisl investments and other operabng incoms [netl.

(il Includirg long-term recerables, intang ble ssset, goodwil, long-term defered experie ard other non-curent sssets
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(b) Geographical information

The Growp oparates prncipaly in Mainland China, and also has branches and subsidianes operating outside Mainland China
(inchuding: Hong Kong, Macaw, Singapore, Frankfurt, Luembourg, Secul, Tokyo, London, Almaty, lakarta, Moscow, Doha,
Dubal, Abu Dhabi, Sydney, Torento, Kuala Lampar, Hanod, Bangkok, New York, Karachi, Murmbai, Phnom Panh, Vientiane,
Limna, Buenos Aires, Sao Paulo, Auckland, Kuwait City, Mexico City, Yangon, Riyadh, ktanbul, Prague. Zunch, Manila and

Wienna, etc )

The distnbatoan of the geagraphical aneas i1 a5 follows:
Mainland China (Head Office and domestc branchesk:

Head Office ("HO"):
Yangtre Hiver Delta;
Peael River Dolta
Bohal Rim:

Ceniral China:
‘Westem Chira.

Morthaastern China

Cvorras and cthen:

B
i

the HO business dyvision (induding matitulions directly managed by the HO and thesr officesh,
includsng Shanghae. Jangsu, Thejang and Ningba;

ncluding Guangdong, Shenzhen, Fujian and Xiemen;

Inclutkng Beifing, Thanjin, Hebe, Shandong and Qingdao;

Including Shanai, Henan, Hubel, Hunan, Anhul, liangs and Hainan,

Including Chongging. Sichuan, Guizhou, Yumnan, Guangsl, Shaanxi, Gansu, Qinghai, Nngxia,
Hinjang, Inner Mongoda and Tibet, and

includsng Liaoning, Heilonggang, Jilin and Dalian

branches located outside Mainland China, domestic and overseas subsidiaries, and imastments in
maociates and jonl veniures
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P wndid 11 Bcaemet 271
Ml Chi 13 e et
Tt P g tim Wetmy sty (wnen el
Ml Bewilel Do lety [ [ [ Dl sden  [nsten ]
[l o P et e [TL4 e i “@m B WiE wir = SENE
P o et e e e i o 1 L] (£l L5 28 - -
rttm e s mzw e nes hit mE W i A AL nes THT
o realege, el il L] (it -1 i} nra bl L] B 158 T
e i 1in T T [T Hi5RT Al i w TS
It g o B Ll W ELHR ki) =41 [ [l Rl L W
i e o sk, oS 55T Al Lt ekl @ L HLB0 AmER
Dyt ot L iisd ] (M)} (1% h ] wm p L 1 1 11 b
o ol re o g e o - - - it 1%
Pt i sty L= (L i o nm g xa ] wE
e i e
B ke B ol e ]
et
L 1 hi pi- | iy ] Lar L 1t L] - Rk
ey = = i ith i} i} o L) e | - L&t
sl ety 1 1 s 16 1 s 1.5 L] - MR
[} Incuding net rading nceme, net (lessigan on financad irrestments and other epenating intosme (net).
8 Qe HT)
M T (HT i oty brarmbend
R Posel lra Gl Wetwn  Bermers Dot and
b 05 B Bewlel o] ] [ [ e [t Tead
iy et L T T r T v e L e s s moem
et Pt i st o
et - - - - - e - U
et e I o | L7 s xE il ] LU 1k - 1
(e encewtam il 1S L4 L] 13 Lty e L= i) - i
gl O LoEL)
I2d nmE
it 3y prorgrl e LTNE EEH ORI TR WA LEIEN LEIEA e R T LY
Iraboced Labiaey L
ol it pILErIT
e e e
Lo iy | GE SR W LT (L1 i) &R Lirg ] T LR 15am

it Including long-1evm recenables, imtangile assets, goodeill, ong-term deferred espenses, right-of-use asaets and oihar non-
current assets.
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i Including borg-teim recevables, inanigble sset, goothll, long-term defered emperses and other nor-cutrenl et
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK MANAGEMENT

& descnplion and an snalysis of the major miks Taced by the Group are as follows:

The board of derectors (the “Board™) has the utimate respomsibility for the rek management and oversaes the Group's rsk
management functions through the Aisk Management Committes and the Audit Commettee of the Board

The President supervies the itk management strategies and reports directly to the Board He chars two management
commtees ncluding the Rak Management Commmittes and the Awwt and Luhility Managemend Commities. Thewe tan
commettest formulate and make recommendationt in respect af rive management strategees and policies through the
Prosidiert 1o the Ritk Manasgemen! Committes of the Baard The Chiel Risk Officor assiits the President to suparess and
manage vatious fk

The Growp has also asugred departments to mondor fnancial rsks within the Group, ncluding the Credit Management
Department 1o monitor oedd nsk, the Risk Manapement Departrrent 1ogethes with the Asset and Lability Management
Department to monstor market and bguidity nsks, and the inerral Contral and Compliance Depaniment to monidor
opesaticnal rsk. The Rsk Management Department is primanly responsible for coordinsting and  establishing 2
comprehensive risk management framework, prepaning consohdated reports on credt fisk, market risk and operational sk
and reporting drectly to the Chief Hisk Officer,

The Bank maintans a dual-reporting line structure at the branch level Tor rsk management purposes, Under this stracture,
the risk managament departments of the branches report 1o risk management degariments of bath the Head Office and the
managerrant of the relevant branches,

(a) Credit risk
Definition and scope

Crodht risk o the risk of loss arising from a bonvower of counterparty’s slure (o perform its obligations. Cperational fabues
which result i unauthorised or mapoeogriate gusrantees, financial commitments o imasirments by the Group may also give
riwe to credid nisk, The Group®s credit risk i3 mainly attnbutable to its loans, due fram banks and other financial instifutions
andd financial imvestments

The Group Is also expoted o credit risk in other sress n addition 10 the cedit risk arisng freen the Group's loans, due
from banks and ather fmancal nstitutions and  Tmancal imestmens. The credit risk ansirg from dernative financial
Irstrements o limited 1o derivative financial assets recorded i the stsiement ol financial position. In addition, the Group
provides guarantess o customers and may therefore be required to make payments an ther behall, These payments will be
recovered fram customers in accardance with the terms of the agreement. Therefore, the Group assumes & credid Hk similar
10 that ansng from loans end appbes the same risk control procedures and palicies 1o reduce msks.

Credit risk assessment method
Stage of financial instruments

The Group classifies financial instruments into theee risk stages and makes provisions for expected credit losses accordingly,
dependang on whether credit risk on that financial instrument has increased sipnificantly since nital recognition,

Refer to Mote 36} Impasment of the financial assets for the definition of the three stages

hunwsl Hepore 200009 f:.-"
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Significant increase in credit risk

The aviesiment of dgnificant increase amce nitlal recognitian m the credit rk & pedormed ot leatt on a quartedy bask for
fimancial instrurnaents held by the Geoup, The Group takes inlo consideration all reasonable and wpportable inlermation
(irchiding foreard-lsaking infasmation) that rellacty signilicantly change i credit nik for the purpeses ol caiutying financial
Inviruments. The main comsidesatont ame regulatory and aperating enviconment, internal and extemal eredin stk gradings,
debit-tervicing capacity, operating capabilitied, contractual terrm, and repiyment reconrty. The Group eompares the risk of
detault of & single firancial instrument or 8 partfala of financial iInstruments with similar eredin rigk charactenstics as at the
enel ot the reparting pecod and i1 ridk of defaull 4% the date of imtial applicaton to determine changes in the ke of defaul
during the lifeleme of a teancal instrument & 4 portfalio of fnancal instruments in determining whether ereda fak of a
firancial instrument has inereased dgnalcantly snce initia recognatan, the Graup eonudens factar indeatng whethes the
probability of default has nsen thamply, whether the financial instrurment has been past due for mare than 30 day, whather
the market price has been falling to assess deterioration

Definition of default

The Group delines & corporate borrewer a8 in defsull when i1 meets one or mone ol the follovweng criteria a1 the wming of
Fetognition:
iy The principal o« interest of loan s past due mere than 90 days to the Group;

(i} The corporate borrower i unlikely 1o pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, withowt recourse by the Group to
actions such az hquidation sgaint collatesal;

(il The corporate besmower has the above matters [n other linancial natiutons relers o G, i)

The Growp defines a retall business borrower as in default when single credit assets of borowers meets one or more of the
followwing criteria

fr  The principal o interest of loan & past due mone than B0 days to the Group,
(i) Write-alis;
(i} The Group considers the bomrower i3 unlikely to pay s oredit obligations 10 the Grou in Tull

Impairment assessment
Generally, a finandial asset is onsidered to be cred t-impairad iF:
- It hairt. bown overdue for mere than 90 dayi;

. I light of economic, legal of other factor, the Group has made concstsions to a bormewer in financal difficulties,
whath wesild olbirwie have bisn mmperable under normal crcumatancis;

. The borrower B peobable 1o be insolvent or caery out other finanoial restructurings;
- Diue to sericus hinancial difficulties, the fnancal asset cannot continue 1o be traded in an active market,
- Thiere are other objective evidentces that the financial asset (s impasred,

Description of parameters, assumplions, and estimation technigues

Expeciod credit losses (“ECL") lor & Tnancial instrumen & meatured a1 an amount equal 1o 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL
depending on whether a sighificant incresse = cred rink on that financlal instrument has occumed since initial recognition
of whether an aicet is considered to be credit-impasred. The los allewance for loans and advances to customers, other than
those corporate loans and sdvance to customers which ore eredit~mpaired, is measured wsing the rsk parameters methed.
The key pararreters nclude Probability of Defauy ("PD"), Lens Geeen Delash ("LGDT), and Expesure at Defauly ("EAD"),
consdenng the time value of money. Related defintions are as Fallows:

258 icec @

407/474

EDINETOOOO
000000000000 n(Eess?)
Oooooooa



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 n(Eess?)
Oooooooa

Motes to the Financial Statements

Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

PD s the possibility that a customer will defaul on its obligation within a certain pencd of time i kght of forwand-lockng
imdormation. The Group's PD i3 adjusted based on the results of the Internal hhhg-qud .lppruach under 1he New Batel
Capral Accord, taking the forward-lecking in‘ormation inte account and deducting the prudential adjustment to reflect the
debiar's pomt-in-time (PIT) PD under the current macroecoramic emmronment;

LGD ks the magnitude af the likely loss if there B a default in bght of farward-looking infarmation. The LGD & dependng
an the tyae of caunterparty, the method and prianty of the recouise, and the type of collaterals, with takng the Torwaed-
leaking infesmation nta account,

EAD refers to the total amount of cn-and ofi-balance shest exposures in the event of default and 15 determined based on
tha histosical repayment records.

The atswmplicns underlying the ECL calculation, such as how the PDs and LGDs of ditferent maturity profiles change ane
monifored and reviewed on a quanterly basis by the Group.

Thare have been no significant changes in estimation techniguees or significant assumplions rmade duting the year.

The mmpairment loss on credit-impaired corporate loans and advance to customers applied cash flow discount method, if
theve & objectve evidence that an impairment |25 on a loan or advance has incurred, the amount of the loss 5 measured a
the differance between the asset’s gross camying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discourted
at the asset's original eflective intesest rate. The allowance for impairment loss i deducied in the carrying amount The
impairment lnss s recognised in the statement of profit or bess In determining allswances onan individieal basis, the
following factors ane contidered:

. The sustamabdity af the borrower's busineis plan;

. The borrower's abikty 1o improve performance once a financial dfficulty has arisen;
*  The estimated recoverable cash flows from projects and Iquidation,

. The availability of ather financial support and the realsable value of collateral, and
. The timeng of the expected cash Nlows.

It may not be possible to identify a singhe, or discrete events that result in the mparment, but 8 may be posable to identily
imgairment theough the combined effect of several events. The impairment losses are evaluated at the end of sach reporting
petiod, unless unforeseen cooumatances teguire mcee carelul attention

Forward-looking information contained in ECL

The calculation of ECL incorparates forward-locking information. The Group has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic vaciables, including Gross Domestic Product (7GOP™), Contumer Price Index (°CF1°), Purchasing Managers'
Index (*P8I°) M2, Industnal Added Value and Real Estate Climate Index, impacting ECL for sach portfcha. The impact of
these economi vasiables an the PO and LGD has been dotermined by performang statistical regresison anafnn 1o understand
the corrafateons among the histoncal changes of the sconomic variables, PD and LGD, Forecasts of theie sconomic variables
are peoaded quarterly by the Group at least and provide the best estimate view of the economy over the next year

When calculating the welghted avesage ECL, the eptrnitm, neulral and pessimism scenaries and 15 weghtings determined
by & combination of macro-aatsical analyshs and expen judgment are taken o account by the Group

Write-aff policy

The Greup wened ofl financial assets when 0 hay exhawited practcal recovery elforts and has concluded there & no
reatanable ecpectation of recovery
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Contractual modification of financial assets

The Group somedimes modifies the terma of loans provided 1o customen due 10 commerclal renegotistons, o for d sirewed
loans, with & viess to marimising reconery,

Such rescheduling adtvities include extended payment term arrangements, payment holdays and payment forgiveness
Rescheduling policies and practices are based on indicators o critenia which, in the judgment of management, indscate that
paymsent will most likely continue. These policies are kept under continuous revew. Thes is onlly the case for assets which
hiawe performed in accordance with the new terms for 5o consecutive months of more.

Tha Tollowing lable includes carrying armeunt of rescheduled loasns and advance to customers

31 December I December

2019 e
Rescheduled loans and advances 1o customers 1319 1211
Impaired |oans and advances ta customers included in above 1,583 ERLF

Collaterals and other credit enhancements

The amaunt and type of collateral required depend on the assessment of the oredit rak of the counterpary. Gudelines are
in place specitying the types of collateral and valuation parameters whach can be accepied

Reverse reparchase business s masnly collatesalived by bils, koans or investment secunties. As part of the reverse repurchase
agreemeiy, the Groug has recesved securities that it b alloveed (o sell or repledge in the absence of delault by Uheir owrers,

Corporate boars and dacounted bills are mainly collsteralised by properties of other assets As af 31 December 2019, the
gross camying amount af corpotate loans and deccunted bill amounted to RMB10,377,695 million (31 December 2018:
RMBS 783,331 million), of which credit expoiLite covisted h‘l collateral amourted fo AMB3 583,296 rmlbon (31 December
2018 RM33,208,571 million],

Retail lnans are mainly collateralised by residential properties. As al 31 Decernbes 2018, the gross carrying amount of retail
lowns amounted to RMBS5,333,624 millon (31 December 2018: AMB5,636,574 melon), of which credit exposuwe covered by
collateral amounted to AMES, 565,771 milion (31 December J058: RMBA, 313,432 million)

The Group prefers more liquid collateral with melatively stable market vabue and does not accept collateral that is illiquid,
with difficulties in registration or high fluctuations in market value. The value of collateral should be sseised ard confirmed
by the Group or valuation agents identilied by the Group. The value of coflateral should adequately cover the outstanding
balsnce of loans The loan-to-value ratic depends on types of collateral, wage condition, liquidity, price volablity and
realisatron coit. Al collateral bas 1o be registered in accordance with the relevant Laws and fngl.d.uhurs. The credol olicess
inypect the collateral and aseds the changes in the value of collateral reguularky.

Management monitors the market value of collatersl penadically and requests additional collateral in acosedsnce weth the
underlying agreement when it s considered necessany.

Itis the Group’s poboy to dispose of repossessed assets in an orderly mannes. In general, the Group does not ootupy
repossessed assets for business usa.

During the reporting periad, the Group took possession of colliteral beld as secwity with a carrying amount of
RMESS3 million (31 Decombor 2018: RMEY, T74 malfica),
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(i} Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit
enhancements

Ax at the and of the reperting pedod, the maximum eredit mk sposure af the Group without talorg sceeunt af any
collatoral and sthist erodin enhancements & wl st below:

31 December 31 December

Z01% 2018
Balances vweth central banks 3,251,881 3,302,529
Due from banks and other linancial matituticns (R Q62449
Derivative financlal ausets BB, 311 71,335
Reyertse repurchase sgréemants B45, 186 734049
Loans and advances fo customers 16,326,352 I5,04E6,132
Firnancial imaesmerts
— Financial invesiments messuned at FYTPL B37,972 750,957
— Financial investrments measured at FyOoC) 1,421,609 1400, 244
— Financial inwestments measured 8t amortised cost 5,208,167 4519182
Othess 181,028 166,363
259,183,074 26,953,240
Cradit éammatmants 2,963,071 3,220,512
Total madmum credil vk exposung 2 046,145 30 1B, 752

{#) Risk concentrations

Cridil risk js olten greater whin counterparties ame concentraled i one Singie industy or geographic location or have
comparable econome features, In adddion, different geographic aeas and industreal sectors have thair unique characteristcsy
In tatrn of economic development, and could prewnt a ditherent credit ik
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(1) Loans and advances to customers

By geographical distribution
The composmen ol the Group's gros loans and advances 1o customers (eacluding acorued inferest) by gerographecal
distrbution s analysed as followes:
31 December 2013 _ 3 Decembor 2018
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Head Office TTd,578 4. 62% T23.302 4.69%
Yangtae Rver Delta 3124,793 18.6:4% 2.B23.603 1E.31%
Pearl Rover Della 4,341,370 13.97% 2.072,.857 13.44%
Bola| Rirm 2,739,585 16.34% 2,524 307 16.37%
Cantral China 1,445 315 14.60% 200210 14.28%
Wiestern China 1,991,010 17.84% 2.735.901 17.7d%
Nertheastern China Ta8,691 4.77% 759,140 4.9 %
Ouerseas and athers 1,546,077 0.22% 1.578,574 10.24%
Tatal 16,761,119 100.00% 15,419,505 100.00%
By industry distribution
The composition of the Greup’s gross loans and advances to customer (excluding aconsed interest) by industry & analysed as
follows:
31 Decamber 31 December
2019 018
Transportation, storage and postal services 1,304,923 2,070,542
Manudacturng 1655775 1,568 387
Leasing and commercial servioes 1,252,193 1,145,342
Productien and suppdy of electricity, heating, gas and water 1021, 366 1,004, T
Water, environment and pubbe unlity management Q26,495 186,803
Real estate G0R, 354 B50.038
Whalesale and retail 537.306 E26.05%
Finanre 300,159 29537
Constnacton 284,905 165,149
Mining 211,049 134976
Science, education, cullure and sandaton 131,260 196,035
Others E AN 304537
Subtetal fer corparate leans T 9555821 oaiEEed
Pess0nal e [gage and busniess loans 5,512,175 4,605 904
Others B 449 630,630
Subtetal fer personal laans 6,363,624 5636574
Discounted bills 421 57d 364 437
Total for loens and svances 1o customesns 16,761,219 15418505
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By collaterals
The comgositien aof the Group's grosd lsans and advances to custemers (axcludng accrued interest) by eollaterals i analysed
as Pollowns:
31 Decamber 31 Decamber
2018 2018
Unsecured loans 5,369,713 4,950,419
Guarantesd loans 2,078,921 2,157,264
Loans secuned by morgages T.884,774 1,056,026
Fledged loans 1,427.911 1,256,196
Teotal 16,761,319 15,419,805

Overdue loans and advances to customers

The compasition of the Growp®s grois cverdue loans and advanices 1o customers (eacluding acerued interest) by collateralt i

snalysed a3 folaws
31 December 2019

Cwerdue  Overdue for Owerdue Crverdus

for 1o 50 days to for 110 far aver
90 days 1 year 3 yean 3 yeary Total
Uriecured baans 27,232 21,584 7.8 5474 Ta,121
Guaranteed loars 17.045 25,698 21,7 B.A76 TG
Loans secured by mongages 35613 36,689 25,003 11,184 To8.491
Pledged loans 19 5,554 LIS 2123 13,085
Total 83084 ES,525 B6 B8 28,559 FL

N Owemberd0l§

Owerdue  Owerdue for Owerdue Owerdue

far 1 to 90 dayi 10 for 11 far aver
90 days 1 year 3 years 5 years Tatal
Urspcured loans ELRFFL) 30237 10507 1.206 15,165
Guaranteed lears 18,536 11,206 23,684 12,502 75,928
Loams secured by morigages 38,324 30,074 24,0895 12 608 105,101
Pledged koara 1.064 1339 4734 3507 1274
Total 91,153 -ER- 63,010 31,923 269,932
hunwsl Hepore 200009 .?l‘l‘_l
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Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2015
[ AME milligns, unless otherwise fated)

(2) Debt securities investments

By Hsuers distribution
The following tables present an anslyss of debr securities (escluding acorues interessh by types ol ssues and iImestments

31 December 2019

Financial Finmncinl Financial

investments Investments nvestments

measured ot measured at meaiured ot
FVTPL FVOO  amortised cost Tatal
Governiments and ceatral banks 60,509 4.9 4,306,548 4. TESITh
Pulicy bariks 41444 196,839 412,239 632,511
Banks and other ficancial irstituticn 178,106 306,242 140218 B15, 566
Caorporate entities 77198 4742 .07 85,486
358157 1400271 5103322 5 862 550

31 Decernber 2018

Financial Financial Financial

investmenis nvestments investments

measured at measured at measured at
FVTPL FYoL  amartised cest Tatal
Gowernments and central banks 42,296 413,840 1617 465 4,073,702
Poficy banks 4520 213877 501,564 774,732
Banks and other firancial imgitutions 126,420 303,685 164,645 652,750
Corporate enfiles 15,742 436824 44,326 506,802
243,749 1377387 4,428,000 6,043,076

264 icec @
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Finarcal Statements for 1he year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

By rating distribution
The Greup adspis o credit rating apgroach 1o manage the eredit risk af the debl secutities portfolia beld, The ratings are

obtained from Bloombeng Composite, of major rating agenches where the issuers o debt securities are located, The carrpng
amounts af debt securities mvestments (excluding acoreed interest) analysed by rating a5 at the end af the reporting pesad

are a4 fallows:
31 Decermber 2019
Unrated AAA AA A BelowA Total
Daebt securities (analysed by type

of issuers)
Gowvernments and central banks 1,613,759 3,133,011 6,645 13211 22,630 4783276
Policy banis 633,828 213 2,617 15,551 N3 652,532

Banks and ether
financiad institutiony 81,128 385,377 18,672 84,343 75,046 B25. 556
Corporate entilies 104,386 342 856 25,892 63,480 58,862 505, 486
2633101 3,841 467 53,826 176,585 157,871 G.862.ES0
31 Decamber 2078
Unrated ARAR AR A Balow A Tatal
Debt securitics (analysed by type

of issusers):
Geeernments and contral banks 1479735 2,557,514 5217 15,840 15,306 4073702
Policy Ranks 758,698 1289 965 11,894 REG T74.732

Banks and other
financial instMution: 232,352 32628 17,605 71,531 58,634 693,750
Corporate enlilien 53,501 350,062 9,153 56,597 35,579 o6 E92
1524286 3223493 32,940 156,862 111,455 6049076
hunwsl Hepore 200009 _?[15
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(iff) Analysis on the credit guality of financial instruments

The Growp's credit ik ctages af financal nstraments are s follows:

31 December 215
Book value Prowition for experted credit losses
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage } Stage 1 Total
Frangial assets measured
% amaortised cost
Cash and halanoss
with central banis. ERARR TS . = 3379 - - - -
Doz froem banks
and other fingnca
nlitusons 16004, 865 16748 S k] 215 [P - i1.245)
Favarse sppuIhass
agreaments £55,543 - - 85,623 [L2]] . = ()
Loans ard advance
o cusiomen: 15,680 639 453439 23856 18N 215316) R4 (1846881 (4TE4%8)
Iadudisg: Corporale
loans ard advances 9,342,728 1340 WOTIT  SET00N0  (ELIET) (o451 (143a2E  (3E140)
Passonal laant 6,335 675 IEEGG MR A0 ATE {53134 B (35,360) 25 537}
Deouried bils 4,206 - - 4,106 {1 - - i
Frantul ryestments 06,504 g 166 510888 2,255} 1.5 [t27) (L& ]
Friciaus mitsl leaang 153,710 1485 548 155,741 s Gn an i, 129)
Total ooT 347 AT 73 40rTE MY 19408 80,15 (1850871  (4BLEAT)

Mofe: A sirplified approach of impairment allswance & appled to other financisl svsets measured at amorteed coat, thresstage

model i ot applicable

31 December 2619
. L e TOSCiNe o Spectirl et oty
Stage 1 Stage 2 Sage 3 Tetal Stage 1 Sage 1 Sage 1 Tatad
Francial sssety mesaured af
F¥acl
Lo nd achances
o cusiomen 4837 = 613 3953 tam - 151 233
Iscludise: Comporate
laans and advance 5,335 - - 6325 a1 = - @
Disecunied bily 417,085 - GBIy 417,568 2096} - 51 r |1
Financlal imvesiments 1417,535 4074 - 1421600 (1,778} 0 [198) (2056}
Toul 1,240,305 4o 613 1845602 (2,005} 0 (03] 2388}
Credit commements 193,139 Ll BT L6307 (5,266 2 (188 (5534}
266 icec @
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Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019

[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

31 December 2998

ook value

mn for ll:pu'h-d ﬁﬁmm
Stage 1 Sage 3 Stage 1 Tetal Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 3 Tatal
Financial #3ets Teauned
o amooed oost
Cash ind balanses
with ceniral banks A3M576 - = 33756 - - - -
Duse s banis
and cther Snancel
LD e 9541 Ry - 383 464 [k ] fri] - {1815
FRiverie tepurchise
agreeTents 553,295 - - 559295 (40 - - (4
Loass, ard achiassces
1o ustemen 14.310,148 552,086 JTIT I50ETRI {15R0EL @06 (17324 (41T
Inciuding Comorate
loans a5 mbvances 8,774,321 52ree 134637 9436240 1109.393) 74,38 136,499 (3H0,195)
Peranal laans 5585 610 TS 40120 5650554 EETH (21041 122 92,500
Drscounted blls 10,189 - Fal 10,209 15 - 2 @5
Finsncisl mvestmensy 4567 4,7 161 4,531 B&5 11,504 (BS4) ({Fl] {14E3)
Pracious melal ieasing 103,880 o i4 104,185 (530 (226 20di [ 1]
Tetal 23,816,354 566,580 5,267 MEWEIN [161,050) (825000 (1735681 (017.HN
Mote: ds simplified spproach of impainment aliewance is applied o other finencial assets messured at amorted ook, thiesslage
medel & not apolicable,
31 Decembar 2013 .
S Syt st __Provihs burrgnchidl cran e
Stage 1 Stage 2 Siage 1 Tatal Stage 1 Soge I ftage 1 Tatal
Findncial pasets Mamuned 21
FyaCi
Loasg and adiasces
1 Eustamen 360,234 1 KLY 160 483 {198y L] (248 (448
iy Covporate
lndns &3¢ sehvances 6,255 - - 6235 na - - ny
Diszognbed bik L3579 1 4B 4228 {185 =1} 2481 wan
financial investments 1,356,443 1,501 = 10244 {16228 &1 (196] 1910
Total 1. TEBETT 142 oL B {1,820 4] (4441 .30
Ceedit cormimenty 3175558 53,160 7 B39 512 1Z8.E10) 15,345 15621 34,715

(b) Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that funds wil not be sulficiont of will nod be raied al a reascnable ot in a tiraly manner 1o meet
the need of amet growth or repayment of debis due, although remaining solvent, This may arise from amount or maturity

rrasmaiches of assets and habilities

The Group manages 14 quidity nsk threugh the Asset and Liability Management Department and aima at

. aptimising the structune of asiels and habilities,

. mamntaining the stabakty of the depoit base;

. provecting cash flows and evaluatng the leved of curnent assets, and
. in terms of liguidity of the branches, mamtaining an efficiont internal fund translor mechanism

416/474

hunwsl Hepore 200009

267

Oooooooa



hotes to the Financial Statements

Financial S:atemenis for the year ended 31 December 201%

[ AWIG millions, unless othenaise stated|

(i} Maturity analysis of the assets and Fabifities

Thie tahled below summarme the matunty profile of the Group's atwets and labilities. The Group®s expected the remalning
maturly af s finanaal instrements may vary ughilicantly tram the Tollowing analsis For axample, demand depasis fram
cusfomers are epected 1o mastain a stable o increadng balance afthough they have been clidlied as repayable on

dernand in the fallewing tables.

1t Darembur 1118
Dvuriun/ e Them
= =i Ban thiee nomi i Onefs Mo than Urshrd
mdmasd  wae mamth L] e il T jwars live prany [ Tenal
Byt
Gy e bl e ool Sk G5 Loe 18 poi ] 3 = 1ETEAR 1INEE
T e bl ot il s (o) 181247 BE 08 esx AR aam (i = 1337554
vt |mancal dney 48 e BE HW o ] = a3
o aeed pbvancon. b umeeny 1,245 N L LA 155530 ErRIT SEET  IRINSST
Fruncdl e
= Firual men et maeited at VTR, ot L] a0 s 161,84 TR 1335 HL0m
— Frurosl swrecn manued e P00 - 18 ] Ll T g B 1AMET
— I TR M
i i - 4] 13588 L HE P 1R 555 AT ] LI
I, SOOI i [ e — = = = = ¥ 7490 L0
Tropesty and mgeprmen - - - - - - 5 Ta581
xn Fo:H TeAE 418 .40 45 B Taim sms
sl ey Liarngs 1w 138275 A [FecRet R TR EEIIA T D
Liabibthes:
e 50 oozl busky = = w - r ] - - L
Trruencal ksl tory desigraced i o YT B4 Ted 154 .6 LN 25m - RN
Lot francal laslom o 40 s R i = - LA
D bt wed b frsieial wes e | LR H ELT LY. ] AT e nen - L5
Cerabae of depent - e 158,541 1R B8] - - e
RS L0, 763 108303 ISEE AR 117,105 o] = H¥NEs
bt neraae pmed = k] e nee I g LN = M
Oty (L MEE tata FLLT e ELEH] = 2115
Total Labsbir LFE T 18841 2007880 LA 180, hanr AN A
el gy gap LERE Bt mm 0 408 [PH5. 546 LEEME - l00M e 15T R El ]

[} Inclides reverse rapurchiase Sgreemens.
(") Ingludes. repurchase agresments.

[**}  Includes loans and sdvances 1o customers and Girancul irvestments that are impaired of not impared but overdue lar maone

than ars manth.

268 icec @
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Finarcial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
[In AME millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

11 Dwcwsmbes 1010
Dwirdeni O Theasi
“rpanakle Jani Pan LU et b = My tun L-edetrd
o deind e miath i B i P iy L] 1= Tatal
hinty
Lz ] baalamcs it corvirad ks 10 = - piL) = = PAL R E LEFFEY
D o b o ot firandis rediuton (] 155580 Lkt falfl L] L1 BES L1 - 1 6.8
Urwatwe brarod aned # 1088 L0 Wim 11825 (11} - s
L. ] advanes o ClomEn Il umEr i i pa ek A 54T 94 LTI (] 156,15}
ol evestneh.
= g et memred KiV1RL (47 Ll 17 1A 6 5 1.3 BL§E AT
— Fearcidl et Seurnd £ 1001 S0 A g TI% 22k ITLan ) (KE-3E1}
— g mvebricl: mesre
rrerasd pom 1 i 1HLES LETS FEULL | A5R R - FRTEAT T
T rate i e i - - - - - - PRk oAb}
Eiperty o ezapren - - - - - - pLaarsl G
i ISTAME L 18172 1T LR ] niw AT
Tetd mirn LR o R TIER ERCIEREE LI 700 LIRS Ll  I7eeS
Linbiktire
D o il ek - - - Tl an - - &6l
Tiruarcial Rnflitors deigreatind an i [YTPL GRS an m LS50 114 v - [ LE o
Dermatie brascl kbl g ot 1559 b 110 LRE §615 - nsm
D 3 b e e il bt o} LIAIH FRaL ] M2 S raae e 4 S - DIH
Cerihrate of depm - [T 116,157 HRNT 1845 L] - ML
Dt rtiosery TLEMED 1ATIE LK 1%, ] AWATIE 5S8R LH - R L]
Tt et mmeed - T T8 L1073 T T - LRLE TS
Dt s SLa iy BoA e Li - LR
Tt hablte WIS ST LRI LRI 1oa A - EyEr
et ey g LAY 13160 NN (A dA2NN LE Ll 11588 1344 fy

("} Includes reverse mpurchase agreemants.

(™) Intades repurchase agreements

(%} Inclodes loans and sifvances 10 dustomess and Hinanosl Fvestments that are impaired or nol impased but overdue for moe

than ane manih,
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Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2015
[ AME milligns, unless otherwise fated)

(i) Maturity analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flows

Thie tabies belew sumimarss the matunty pralile of the Group's financal instruments baied on the confractua) undneoanted
eash flenes The halances of some iteent in the tables balow are different fram the balances on the eancolidated gatement af
firancisl poution M the tables incorporate all cath flows relating to bath poncipal and interest The Group's sxpected canh
flenwt en thess enstruments may vary ugnificantly fram the Tollowing analysis For ezample, demand depedits fram atomern
are sapecied to malntan a sable of increadng balaace although they have bsen cladsibied as repayabile on demand in the

fnllewing tables
11 Dweember 1019
Dverdue Cme tn Thiee
repayabie L thee T menh o Oneds  Mom han Undated
ondemursd  oee month monfis  onepar  Feepean  Bveopran | Total
Non-Serivative crih Sowi:
Finarcial ssets:
Censh il Biandes with vereindl bty £15850 (] T8 wla = = 1EEAS 1R
Buue frorm banks and otfwr frnuncal imitution: f+) 181, X B3 Hanee s B 16 - LR
Lowarrs v v B Cucfiamens [+ WrE o LpRS FLED  ISNNE  AWeAE MW BT MIEET
Fagsnal mestrimh.
— lrarcid mweitoeh swad @ PTR Wim T3] 1] kel [ L 5] Pl 11,75 BN
= franddl iwri=erh meased ot PVOCH = LERC L MEE LR AR 0aE s
— il ivestswety resined at imortned coit - 64 185,680 monT  LMLET LEeR iMr AN
Otteny ELC T PR 12365 BIE SEar 2] B LES

1236 LBANSE NS5 S5IES Ml nEAES 3R AT

*)  Includes v repurchase sgmeemenis

[*}  The maturity profile of the mnegatiated loams' contractual undiscounted cash flows & determined according 1o the negotsated
benms.

(**}  Includes Inans and sthances 1o customers and Snancial irvestments that are impatred or not impaited but averdue for mone
than ars menth

1 Detemler 0T
Chvperhand O 12 Thew
tepayihle Ui thae T monia b Doy Mom Sun
on demussd  ore moech moot  owpm  leyen  vepen  Undsed Yol
Noa-Beshvative cash Sows:
Finarelsl Rebslties
Dise 0 opeinal R = . 141 = .1 . - Lo
Traruial kit densyuaned s it FVTR, 540 el 1062 palic} 1111 1sat - 104,801
T 20 barks and other fruncial mibautom [+ 18435 T R R L pLitl | L1 R FL
Ctrleatis of depoat - ;L] 15943 LAER ] I - - o
e b costoeneny ILAERE0  LOGATPE 18RSI S0URNT  LIDAEST 1550 - nFss
Tt rarurision. anisn - (L1 TTe Lt W = LOMEN
Ottenn 360,181 Tan 1 T3H 08K 187 - 3R
WEETI ISYST DOWERE SRS LM ERIN - HEe
Duriwwtive cash Mows:
[iertvatvee frarca rairument weSed on el has - a i) -] ora] Fo o] - e |
Diervatie eeancial mrumens oemed on geis bast
Inchading; T infiow 58 LIE T AN JEREIRE  LAIEARD M = BANEIEL
Lish ptfiow (450 (OSNOR  MONIGT)  RITRIMG  (LERLAE) (4B = e
[FE [FT77] e gE Agry (k] - e

"} Includes repunchase agresments.
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31 Do MK
Civetidus! Oaa b Thies
npayakie  Lenthas et monthi Omie  Moorten  Unduied
ot deieand e marth it et gir  [renpeasi v pran | Tatal
Nen-dertvative canh frec
Fimansclal msetx:
Canh i St with cehidl Basls 54172 - 1 b ] - - LE0 333
D from bk ared cither founcial mabitaicns |+ T I e 1] T S 51 L] e = LEan
Lty g afvanon 1 o (o] s HEEAET [T TRR < ST b S R L ] R LES e
Frarcal oveiimed)
= Frarcal restmerts munased o PR S T L e MEFIN anriw 15175 ELIS BaEE1E
— Frascal restmerts swaned o P01 1% 515% MAM Moiu EEe e e 1EEs
= Francul rrestee by mne: ot
meraed oot 106 e R BN IR teael - BMesD
Diwn 155 L) 1185 5400 L1 ] -] 10E MIgu
TSATE 104081 1GM0SE LBRIW 103NN 1I0AE LN mETE
("t Includes reverse epurchase agreements

("} The matunty profile of the renegotiated bars’ contractual urdscounted cash Nows o determired acconrdng 1o the negotiated

fefma.

(" Inchades loans and advances 1o customes and financial vestments that are impaired or not impared bat overdue for more

than ane manth,
M Deconiar 1010
Cvnrche’ Caeta Thares
mpiyabls  Lem thm e menth in Oniis  More than
o famand oo month marniha weysr  fmymam T pman Undated Tatd
Hea-dertyathve cath flowc
Fimandial llabslises;
D 1 ot ek - - - H 0o - - 4E
Finarcol bk cesquato & o PR 0 a5 E SE1q L] | 5al e
D 0 banity and ot finasvial imstitatiom [+ 1,139,755 B o ese 48 HA0 [1F ] FEET
Coriices of deponit - w0 hr i 4 s ug ] - m
e 1 cusomen: HSEIN  OUME 1IN EERHY  JEEE  1Lel REETTT
e ecurts o - M WEE B3 ITAN a0 - s
Drwn T HE (] 1418 RE b LAt ] = i
PRI ISR BN RESHIT apasn s - FTHME
Derivatio tanh flows:
Demarve fnancul nitramrh setfied oo hel bas = &S 34 <] 3 LI = frii]
Seesatvr fearcnl nrinarerth setfed se o haex
nckadng: Cah il T OLENSN  1IEEM ISR Wam mm - AT
Camh carthos MB3ES  (L7EAS  IBLESY QBT (ISR (70 = B
a¥ mom bam 1 s - e
("} Intudes repurchase agresments.
Aanwsl Heport 2000 2N

420/474



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 n(Eess?)
Oooooooa

hotes to the Financial Statements

Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2015
[ AME milligns, unless otherwise fated)

(iif) Analysis of credit commitments by contractual expiry date

Management doet not expect all of the commitments will be dren belore the expiry of the commitments

11 Deimrbes 213
Thees
Pepayakle Lew than Ori s marths 4 m iz e thar.
on demini o mamh  these monthi one yEar frin e fiww prm Tatall
Lredt commutresnn L3206 160 (LI E] 130065 WA AN RAER pLt1o)]
Dol Y
. Thise
Repayabis Lt thas Oreia manibata Ot iz More thar
on demand and manth  thess maniin ane il Trew juiel Free pram Tatal
Creit commutraests LI585 143554 oy 608 :pE i PELATE EFroLIH

{c} Market risk

Barket ok 15 the sk of loss, in respect of the Group’s o0 and oll-batance sheet activites, arsng from advense movernents
in market rates nchiding interest rates, foregn exchangs rales, commodity prices and stock peices. Market mk ames from
both the Group's rading and nor-1radng businesses

The Group is primanily exposed to structural interest rate risk arisng from commerdial banking and position risk arisang from
ftreasury transactsons, Interest rate rsk is mherent in many of its busnesses and largely anses from mismatches bebéeen
the repricing dates of interest-generating assets and interest-beaning Rabifites. The analysis of the interest rate risk in the
banking book i dsclosed in note 5110d],

The Group's curmency rok masly results from the nik aming from exchange rate fluctustions on its foresgn. exchange
expasures. Foreign exchange saposures mclude the mismaich of foreign exchange asiets and liabilities, and oif-balance
sheet foieign exchange pastions ariung Trom denvative transactions

The Group considess the maskel risk ariseng from slock prices fluctuations in redpect of s investrment partiolios &
irmmatenal

Sensitivity analysis, interest rate repricing gap anafysis and foresgn echange risk concentration analyss are the magpr madket
risk management tools used by the Group. The Bank monitors market risk separately in respect of trading and other nan-
trading portfolos. The Value-at-mk {*WaR ") anabysis i a major tool wed by the Bank to measure and moniior the masket
risk of ity trading portfolics. The following sections include a Vall analysis by risk type of the Group's trading portfolios of the
parent comgpary and a sensitaty analysis based on the Group's cumency risk exposure and inferest rate risk exposure [both
trading and non-trading portfolios).

272 Icec @
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Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

(i) wvaR

VaR analyum is @ statisticsl techaique which ettimates the patential massmem bedses thil could ocour on rik patitions 1aken
dus ta movements in intenest fated, forsign eachange rates or prices over & wpecdied time horizon aned &t 8 specified bevel
of confidencs, The Bank adopts a histamcal simulation model to caleulate and manitor trading poctialio Val with 250 day®
histarcal rarket data dwith & 39% confidence level, and one-day halding pedad) on a daily basic,

A surmary of Vall by risk type of the Bank's tradeng portiolios is as follows:

2019
31 December 2019 Avorage Highaest Lowest
Interest rate nuk 35 AT A | 24
Cuimency risk a3 i 112 5
Commaodity rigk 15 40 T &
Total portfelio Vall b 108 140 B
2018
31 December 2018 Avarage Highest Lowmst
Interest rate risk EFl 28 42 15
Cumency risk &6 B 115 43
Commodity risk T 13 3% 7
Total portfolic Vak a8 T 113 5d

VaR for sach risk factor is the derived langest potential loss due 1o fluctuations solely in that rsk factor, As there it a
dversification effect due 10 the correlation amangst the nsk Tactors, the indsidual VaR does nat add up o the total partiolio
WVaR.

Although VaR 15 an impartant tool for measunng market nsk under normal market emvinenment, the assumptions an which
the maded 15 based do give ree 1o wome | mitations, mainly including the follossng:

{1} VaR does nat rellect liquadity risk, In the VaR model, a one-day holding period assumes that 4 is passible 1o hedge or
dispose of positions within that pericd without restriction, the price of the financial mstruments will fluctuate in the
wecified range, and the correlation between these market prices will reman unchanged, This may not fully reflect
the markel reik anwng a1 times of severa illiquedity, when a one-day holding penod may be insufficent 1o hquidate or
hedge al pantions fully:

(&} Even though positions may change througnout the day, VaR anly regpresents the risk of the portfalics a1 the cose of
#ach business day. and it does not account far any |osses that may oceur beyend the 29% confidence level, and

(3} VaR relses heawly on historical data 1o provide information and may not deadly predict the future changes and
madifications of the risk factors, especialy those of an exceptional nature dus to sgnificant market moves.
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(i) Currency risk

The Group conducty (M busneduss maindy 5 AME, with certain frarmacthons denominated (0 USD, HED and, 10 & ke
extent, ather currenciet Tramdaction in dorsign cusrencues masnly arde from the Group's treasury aperation, forsign
exchange dealings and overses imvestments

The exchange rate of RMB to USD & managed under a floating exchange rate system. The HKD exchange rate has been
pegped to USD and therafore the enchange rale of AMEB to HKD has fluctuated in bne with the changes in the exchange rate
of B to W50

Thae Groug manages A5 cunendy risk through various methods, inciuding limitation management and risk hecging to hodge
currency rak, and perlorming cunency risk sensitraty anabesis and stress testing requlary.

The tables below indicate a sensthaly analys of exchange rate changes of the cumencies to which the Group had signifscant
expodure on and off the balance sheet on s monelary assers and liabilities and s forecasted cash flows. The anabys
cabqulates the effect of a reasonably possible movement in the currency rates against RMVB. wath all other variables held
constant, an peofil before taxaton and equaty. A negatne amount in the table reflects a potential net reduction in profit
before tanaticn or equity, whie a postve amount reflects a potential ret increase. This effect, however, is based on the
assurnaton that the Group's forelon exchange exposures as at the year end are kept unchanged and, therefare, have not
inconporated actions that would be taken by the Group to méitigate the adverse impact of this cumency risk.

Effect on profit
Change in bafore taxation Effect on aquity
Curreancy currency rate 2019 2018 2019 1R
Lis0 =1% (146} ) (373 1332)
HED 1% 260 366 {1.492) 11,298

‘While the tables above indicates the eflect on proft before tazation and equity of 1% depreciation of USD and HED, these
will b2 an opposite effect with the same amount i the currencies apgreciate by the tame percentage.
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Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019

& brookdown of the assets and habilities analysed by currency o a follows:

[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

I Devember 2019
{14:] HED Othen Total
[eguivalent lequavalent {equivalent {equivabeat
AME to AAR) to RAAR) 1o EME) o RAE)
Rusels:
Cash and belanoey with ceniral banks 1035646 141,588 10550 1%1R 131 e
Dot Fm Bunks a5 cthar Errcual ingt itiaf (=) 114812 561,308 7690 12544 1.BAT 554
DCeraairoe Enancal st 0,653 18,773 724 10,504 6aam
Lot and adhasied 10 Cuslomen 148M 512 BEO.350 ¥51.007 196,663 15,326,557
Financial iveimenty
— Firancul Fveiments measuted a1 FYTRL 500,353 AR 6076 14,199 62078
— Furancial rvestminty, measaed at PYOC) 1.041,158 12061 .8 8,405 1470872
— Fisancial iFvestment. medsted ot amsrtied ton 5,030,922 VDR TET 13345 B1,133 3,208,167
repsmenty in giiccubes and jont venlunes. 2,581 9 ™ 28,417 am
Property i equpment 85,232 a7k T 1695 286,561
Dihery FELELH 103,145 5550 158,897 ERrLE ]
Total ssets 26,496,471 2,250,805 469,500 B90,650 30,109436
Liakslitins:
Dicer o ceritral Banki - 141 - B15 1,017
Financial labsl be desgnatid as 2t AVTFL 0,845 1833 n 6,042 102,241
Dieraitive fnaretial habiiioes 45,060 13585 6,157 10,417 B5,180
D 1 Basks arnd other fireraal mamutior (e} 1.113312 658,857 I.766 129,911 150986
Certficates of deposa 28 202 131,48 16,247 953 65408
Dhuse 1 cuitenners 21.5089,155 837,80 369 830 60, 769 11,997 655
Diebit securilees rsuid 170,064 320,005 11,788 a1 067 azETs
Dithesrs 450,017 110,878 19431 1414 B350
Total bacabbes 24,176,655 2,196,621 451,222 531,935 11T 433
et pastion LitoA16 54,155 18278 209,724 2692003
Comdit commutments 1.149 504 498,355 T 135,578 28630M
("t Inclodes reverse repurchase agreements
(") Inclodes repurchise agreements
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Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2015
[ AME milligns, unless otherwise fated)

31 Decembses 2018
141 HKD Dehers Tatal
[egpuival {Equival [equival [equivalent
RME to AMB) 1o RME] 1o RAAE) to RMEB)
Assats:
Cash and halasces with contral banks 3 157,631 131 T80 | R Fi] B5 048 1372 570
Do frows barsikn sl otk finarcial initutionn, (s] Q0 593 BJ1.743 TE 581 57,606 1 EDi 438
D raative: Snancad amais 999 8185 4887 BA1D T35
Loar e achancet 40 cusinmen 13,537,076 BEZ.1IC 240 564 285 387 15,046,130
Frrancisl mvesimentt
— Frantul myemenis meaiered ol FUTRL 783,190 o=t 1841 §5i1 BOS 147
— Fnaniclal i ments measered 8l FA0C] LM 251 590 4001 58mM 1430163
— Frantul mywitmeniy meaisesd 8 ssodued oo 4354 FAY B9 IET 14504 SOETY 4,519,182
levesiments n M!n:ulri.nd;:nl verlines B 1637 - IBA10 a1
Fropety andl pquipment 13g113 129 245 = 1,238 200 404
Dihery 1B, 738 120 8360 135 551 A3 TR
Total assety 1£372 485 2287754 419423 TIRETT 27,699 540
Liabslities:
Dot 1 eniiral Banks. 2 - - [ ] Lo
Farancial Rabsihtios designated s al FYTPL 11,698 1n3M - B4,328 BT 0D
Duerraatioe firancud labslnies a1l 31708 1152 Fal | Ti573
Dot 1 bkt ind athes finsncial irtauion [+ 147511 6IT 108 a4 148,728 1,310 1%
Cestficates of depost 17,086 1L 588 13,115 58,557 31,354
Dot 103 cusinmeny 10,059,293 B AM 3,342 212828 21,408,934
Deetil secr taes scued FEER:H 301,010 4,125 38826 B17.842
Oithers 176027 a1 10,143 18,806 405 TTT
Tostal habibies. F155,58 2178482 381 550,857 25,358 657
Het pesiten 1016966 [ i 49,605 163030 13
Crachil commatmenis TATE 089 551400 £5,563 135933 i

("1 Includes everse repurchase agreements

™ Includes repurchase agreements
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Fnaroal Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
{In AME millicns, unless otherwise Hated)

(d} Interest rate risk in the banking book

Interast rate risk in the banking book & defined as the ntk of lows in the ovenall gaim and economic value of the hanking
boak arising from adverse movements in inferast rate and term stnucture, etc This rsk may ocour in tha fellowing stuations:
when the interest rate fluchuates, becawme the reprcng penod of different fmancal metruments & ddferent, the debt interest
rate repricing date 15 sarfer than the assed interest rate when interest rata rising and vice versa. The bank will face ta the sk
of reduced or even negative spreads over certasn penied of time: when the pricmg benchmark interest rates are different,
tha changes in the benchmark mierest rates are inconsistent. when there ase embedded option terms or impled options in
the business of holding cpton: dervatives o banking book’s one and off-balance sheet business and due to changes in
expected default levels or market liguidity. the marke!'s msessment of the credit quality of financial irstruments changes,
leading to changes in credit spreads,

The Group manages the intees rae risk of banking book through the Asset and the Lishilny Mansgement Depanment,
fallowing methods have been adopted,

- Interest rate prediction; analysing the rmacroeconoime facioes that may imapact on the PROC benchmark inleres rates
and markel inletest rates;

*=  Duration management: opterasing the differences in toming between contractual repricing (maturitiss) of inferest-
generating assets and mnteresi-bearing labdites;

. Pricing management: manageng the decation ef the prcing of interest-generatng assets and the Benchrmark intesest
rates of rrarkel interest rates;

- Quota management: eptimesing the postsons of interest-generating assets and interest-beaning liabdities and control
the impact on profit and loss and equsty; and

- Dorivative frading: uting interest tate dorivatves for hedging management in a timely mannar,

A principsl pant of the Geoup's management of int2rest rate risk 5 to rmonitor the sensitivity of progected ret interest income
under varying intarest rate scenaniod (simulation modeling). The Group aims 1o miligate the impact of prospective interest
rate rrovements which could recuce fulure net interest incorme, while balancng the cost al wuch hedpng en the current
FEVERLE

The following tables demonstrate the sensitenty to a reasonably possible change in interesi rates, wath all other vanables held
constant, of the Group's net irterest income and equity. The data set out in the Tollownng tables ncludes trading book's
data.

The effect of the nel mtenest income (s the effect of the asumed changes i intetest rates on the pet interest Rcome,
arising from the financial assets and financial liabiives held a1 year end that are subject 1o repricing within the coming
year, including the elfect of hedging mtruments. The effect of equity & the eflect of the assumed changes in nlenest rates
on other compiehensive income, caloulated by revaluing fixed rate financial ssets measured at FYOCE hedd a1 year end,
including the effect of any associated hedoes.
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[ AWIG millions, unless othenaise stated|

H December 2018
incresand by 100 basis paints Dustrodiied by W Loy poind’”
Eifect on Effect on EHect on Effect on
Cuerency natinterest intome eqaity et inierest income squity
L] (8,551} 1P 652 6951 323
T [&ra) A8 s BAM
HED (3,630 43y 3630 i
Othersy 1,553 [IRE" {1,553 1,047
Teasl {10,007} {37.245) 10,007 R ]
1 December 2018
increased by 100 basis points Diecreased by 150 basis poirts
Effect an Eflect on EHwct on Efecton
Currency nat interest iscoms Rty ol iniarest incomae Rty
FsE B} 30513 338 330
s {1.643) (5575 1,645 55683
D 536 - (938) -
Ohers isi} 90y @ ]
Teaal (4,04} {36,552} 4,048 48

Tha interest raje senditivities sot out in the tables abowe ame for illuttration anly and aio baded on timopfhed sconaios. Tha
figures represent the effect of the pro forma moverments in net interest mcome and equity based on the projected yeld
curve seenanat and the Group's curren? intenest rate rsk profile. This effect, howeser, does not incorporate actions that
would be taken by management to mitigate the impact of interest rate risk. The projections aboyve also assume that interest
rates of all maturites move by the wame amount and, therefore, do nat reflect the potential impact on net interest intoma
and eduity in the case whene some rates change while others rermasn uncharged
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Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

The tables below summarse the contractual repncing or maturity dates, whichewer is earlier, of the Group’s assets and

[nablties:
31 Decemnber 2018
Less than Three Har-
theea months bo One t3 More Bran irberest-
moniths one year fve yean Frow yean bearing Total
Bty
Cash and halanos, with central banks. LF70,85% - - . 347,58 1310918
Duge frrn Bsands and
cther fnarcal imtution (<) 1.5z 450 804 51383 Bl 68 187,55
Derivarteve finandal amsets - - - - LE R caIN
Loars and advances i Ouslomeny 10,245,253 4546 815 120540 FELREC] =M 16,306,552
Financial irvestments
= Francal nwestments measioed
al VTR 124,802 18720 45061 BOLTTE L5508 P20
= Francal nvestments messned
al Ol F2r ] 233,643 am mand A ] 1416472
= Fnancal investment, messuned
al amortsed ool 285,260 T, 577 405547 181208 - LF R
nweiment in macciales and
jont wernhen - - - - 1450 12450
Fropeity asd squipmant - - - = 55,561 FLIR
Dithers 13 % - - 13454 B2 528
Totd sty 15,767 210 BSE55 3,501,898 2339574 15650 659 30,109,436
Lisbilities:
Due tc contral banicy 1 - L] = - 1017
Fruncal lablibe designated 24
atRTR LESS 19,782 11068 - (AT loz24r
Deratve Snarcial labdtes - - - = ALY 85180
Due b banks and
othir fnandal insstutions (v amam 235,160 TS e 150 2,529 846
Cortchcaes cl deposit 15817 2,8 6303 - - F35428
Due b cuslomin, VL EBT 406 4670300 R Rcal 4,008 518,104 329 555
Db sacurites susd 31676 BN 121445 255 - TALETS
Ditters 1543 5,087 1559 Tam wm 623,150
Totd habslties 17,381,196 507305 1781868 41935 361,749 qama
Infeesl 1n emalrh 11.5!?,?351' 1,14&5!] 120,030 1910175 (1] W
[t Imcludes reverse sepurchase sgresments,
("} Includes repurchase agreemenis.
The data 61 out in the above 1able ncludes wadng book's data.
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31 December 1018
Leas than Thres [
three manths ko One to More than et
maths oo year five yean Fue yean bearing Total
Azts
(Cash ared balances with central banks 301,055 - - - 331,521 1375
[ue from barks. and
other Brancal smtifutions () 125855 33451 A1 in $E.140 | e 458
Derniwtne fnandial et " B - . 11,338 FAKE.]
Lo and adbvances 1o customen 10878334 1TRA20 207 82 1§ AT st 5045153
Fnancal rwestmints
= Fnarvial wveesimee b megned
NPT 115,658 168,835 LA 127,18 oer 05347
= Fnarvial wweesimen b magsuned
gt} 17358 45475 T 261,355 LA 1430, 563
= Fnargial weesime b mazured
l amortied rod ¥ &S 1407 145 145,61 - 4505 06
Iwsiment in Escciates and
joim verlure " - - . 13126 FERFC
Fropety and squipment - - - - AR 1340
Dty &5 LY - . 430002 438173
Total asets 1510217 4813548 BT ToEs B985, 154 7559540
Linbiigies:
Dus inceniral basky - n 410 - - 481
Frangal abiise drignaned o
AT - 1443 LR - 153 BTADD
Darivaiarn rancal Kabibies = F - - 13573 13573
Due 1o basks nd
tther Sransl e borms () 1,943,530 5,330 099 11 a9 LI
Cerirbcabes ol deposg 207,051 mm 15 &a - 4135
[Due o custorien 13512006 &T0a,008 237191 10488 SH1465 T A3
Debt securiies soed 178,532 52654 105,508 JE3 47 - BIT 242
Dty 7935 i 1453 0 a7 234,560 a5
Total Eabdities 15854174 5,205,501 2716540 e 1.237,538 25,354 557
Inter e tate memaich 133,857 1391553 1 68,350 1,684,757 KA R

1 Includes reverse repurchase sgreements

(™} Includes epurchase agresments

The dlata 46t out in the aboue table ncluded trading book's data.
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Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

(e} Capital management

The Group's objectives on capital management ane:

. Maintain reasonable capaal adequacy ralio 1o contimuously meet regulatory requirements on capital Keeping stable
capital base to enwire the Group's buidness growth and the implementation of businevs development and strategic
plan i arder 1o achieve comprehentse, coordinated and sistainable development;

. Adopt the advanced measuremant approaches, mprove the inlerral capital adequacy assessment process CAAF),
disclose nformation on capital management, cover all types of ssks, and ensure the stable operation of the Group;

. Integrate the quantibed results of vanows rsks nfo daily management, establish a bark value management system
with economic capital as the core tool, improve the palicy, process and application management syslem, strengthen
the cagital constrasnd and incentive mechanism, enhance the produd pricing and decmion-making capabilities, and
improve the capital allocation efficiency, and

. Make reasonable use of vanous capital instruments, cominuously enhance capetal strengths, refine capital structure,
improve capital quality, reduce capital cost, and maximize sharehokder retums

The Group manages s capital structure and makes adjustments In fight of changes in economic conditions and the risk
prafile of its activities. In order to maintain o adjust the capstal structure, the Group may adjust its profit distribution policy,
issue or repurchase ocwn shares, quasfying additional tier 1 capital irstruments, gualifying ter 2 capital mstruments and
corvertible bonds, eic

The Growp's Management moniloes the capital adequacy ratios regularly based on regulabons issued by the CBRC. The
regquired information is respectively filed with the CBIRC by the Group semimannually and quarterly,

Framn 1 January 2013, the Group commenced to calculate the capital sdequacy rabics ih sccordance with Regulaton
Gonesning Capital of Commercial Banks (Provisional) and other relevant regulations. In April 2014, the farmer CERC efficially
approved the Bank lo sdopt advanced capital mansgement approaches Within the soope of the approval, the foundastion
Internal ratings-based (IRB} appeoach b adooted to codparate credit risk, the 1B approach 1o retall credit risk, the internal
rrodel appeoach BMA) 10 market risk, and the standardized approach 1o aperational risk meeting regulatory requirements

Domestic commercial banks should meet the requirements of capial adequacy ratios by the end of 2018 in accordance
with Regulation Governing Capital of Commescial Banks (Provisionall. For domestic systemically important banis, minimum
core ter 1 capital adeguacy ratio, tier 1 copitad adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio should reech B,50%, 3.50% and
11.50%, respectrvely. For non-systemically imporiant banks, comespondging minimum ratios should reach 7,50%, 8.50% and
10.50¢%, respectively, In addition, overseas entities are dinectly regulated oy local banking regulatory commissions, and the
reguirements of capital adequacy ratios differ by countries

The Group calculates the following core tier 1 capital adequacy ratio, ther 1 capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy
ratia in accordance swth Regulstion Governing Capitad of Commercial Banks {Provisional) and relevant requirements. The
requirements pursuant to these regulations may have certain differences companng o those applicable m Heng Kong and
othes jurisdictions

The capital adequacy ratios and related components of the Group afe calculated o acooedance with the statutory fimancial
staterrents of the Group prepared under PRC GAAP. Duning the year, the Group has compled in full wath all its externally
imposed capital requirements.
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The capital adequacy ratics calculated after implementation of the advanced capital management approaches are as foliows:

31 December 2019

1 December 20180

Ciore tier 1 capital 1,472,774 2,247.021
Paid-in capial 356,407 356,407
‘alid portion of capital reserve 148,067 151 968
Sumpius resenve 292,148 161,636
Ganeral reseve 104,876 178 580
Retained profits 1,367,180 1,205,524
Walid partion of minonty Interests #£178 37582
Others (1,063} 111, 6456)

Coore tier 1 capital deductions 15,500 14,988
Goodwll 0,038 BRI
Other mtargible assets othar than land wie nghts 2,933 1827
Cash flow hedge ressrves that relate to the hedging of iterms

that are not fair valued on the balsnce shoet (8,451} 3,733
Irmestments in com her 1 capital wstruments ssued by financial
initdutions that are under controd but nak subjoct 1o comolidation 7,930 ]

Net cone tier | capital 1457 274 2231033

Additional tior 1 capinal 200,249 B
Additional tser 1 tapll!l| instruments and related premium 190 456 T I75
Walid pertion of minority interests 793 735

et tior 1 capital 1,657 523 2,312,143

Ter 2 capital 463,956 332742
Valid partion of tier 2 capital inttrurnants and refated premium 272,680 202,161
Sumpus provisan for loan impairment 189,569 127.930
Valid partion of minonty interests 1,707 1251

Tier 2 capital deductsons - L
Significant minanty investments in tier 2 caprtal nstrumients issuad by

financial inssifutions that are not subject to consobdation - -

Nt capital base 3,121,479 2,644 EBS

Rask-weighted azsets (i) 18,616,886 17,190,992

Core teer 1 capital .ndnquaq' ratio 13,20%: 12.9E%

Teer 1 uplul adequacy ratio 14.27%: 13.45%

Capital adequacy ratio 16.77% 15.39%

(0 Rehers to rak-weighted assets ofter capital Boor and adpstments

52. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value estmates ave genarally subjective in natue, and are made as of a specific point in ime based on the charactenstes
of the finarcal instruments and relevant market information. The Group uses the folowing hierardy Tor determining and

disclosing the fair value of inancal mstnements:

Lewel 1:  guolted (unadusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Lewel 2 waluation technigues for whech all inputs which have a sgreficant offect on the recorded fair value are

chwervable, either directly o0 indirectly; and

Lewel 3= valuation technigues which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not

based on chservable market data
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Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

The Group has establshed policies anc imternal controh with respect 10 the messurement of fair values, specry the
framework of fair value measurerment of firancial mstrument, fair value messurement methadologies and proceduses. Fair
value measurernent palicies speciy valuation techniques, parameter selection and refevant concepts, madess and parameter
solutiens, Operating procedutes $pﬂ:.|!'|| measwrement operatng procedures, wvaluation date, market paramieter selecton
and corresponding allocation of responsibilities. In the precess of fair value memurement, fromt olfice i mesponsble for
d.dlly Transactions management, Fimancial Accounting Department plar.'l o lmad role of developing accounting pofeees of fair
value measurement, waluation methodelegies and system implementation, Ak Management Departrrent i responsible for
verdying trade detaiks and valuation models.

The following is a deseription of the fair vabue of the linantal fstruments recorded at falr value which are detesmined using

valustion technigues. These corporate the Group's estimate of ssumplions that a market partieipant would make when
valuang the instruments

Fimangial investmants

Financia invesuments valued useng valuation techmgues consin of debl secunbes and assel-backed secunities. The Group
values such secunties in we ol a discounted cash low anslysis which inceporales sther only observable deta or both
obseivable and non-observable data. Observable inputs inchude assumptions reganding currend mtenest rales; unobservable
Inputs Indude assumplions regarding sxpecied fulure defsult rates, prepayment rates and marked liguidity discounts.

A magoenity of the debt securities classilied as level 2 are RMB bonds. The fair value of thete bomts are determined based on
the valuation results proveded by China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd., which are deterrmined based on a valuation
technigque for which all significant inputs ave cbhservable manket data

Derivatives

Denvatres vaued using 2 valuabon techrigue with market observable inpuis are maindy interest rate swaps, foresgn
exchange forwards, swaps and oplrons, etc. The most frequently appliec valuation technigues indude discounted cash flow
madel and Black-Scholes maodel. The models incorparate various nputs including foreign exchange spot and forward rates,
foreign exchange rate volatdity, nlerest rate yvield curves, stc

Structured products sne mainly valued wiing dealers quatations,

Loans and advances to customers

Ther loans and advances to customers valued by the valuaton technology are mainly the bill busness and the diskounted
cath llow modal # uwed. For the bank acceptands |:||T|. baied on the different cradit ndk af the acceplor, the intehest rate
curve 15 501 wp with the actual transsction data i the market a5 the sample; for the commencial bill, based on the merbank
offerad rate, the interest rate curse i construclsd aceoeding to the erndit ik and liquedity poant difference adpntment

Other liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss

For unguoted other liabilities desgnated as at FVTPL, the distounted cash flove model s uweed based on curment yield curve
appropriaie for the remaining torm to matuity adjusted for market Sguidity and cred@ spreads; and Heston model i applied
based on yield curves, foreign exchange forward rates, foreign exchange rate volatiiities, etc., which & calibrated by active
market quotes of standard European options with the same underlyng
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(a) Financial instruments recorded at fair value

The following 1ables show an analysis of financial instruments recorded at far vabus by leve! of the fair value hierarchy;

11 December 2019

Lavel 1 Lavel 3 Lawel 3 Tatal
Financlal assets which are measured at
fair value an a recurring basis:
Dervative financial assets 4,650 62,651 1,010 68311
Rivetse iepuichase
measuted al FYTFL - 156,657 - 159,657
" Loans and advances 1o customers
measured &t FYTPL - 5,276 1149 6425
Leang and advances to cuitemers
measured at FYOC! 7.637 416,356 - 423 503
Financial investimenls mesiured at FVTPL
Dbt securitios 6,002 259,347 52,913 358,257
Equily imvestments 14,410 2,037 B4,172 BOETD
Funids and other irvestments 16,124 4d1.534 S5dd4 53002
4B, 636 T4 913 172,529 ke v
Financial investments measured at FVOCT
Dbt securities 341,281 1,080,281 &1 1421609
Equaty imvestmants 1,017 8,351 44, 855 55,263
342198 1,086,632 44,542 1476872
#0122 1.476,485 219,630 3,087 336
“Financial lisbilities which are measured at
falr value an a recurring basis:
Crus 1oy Cucstomens - 896,318 - 96,318
~Financial liabilities designated as a1 FTPL
Wealth management praducts - 19,580 - 19,580
Financia lialsities related 1o
preciouws metal - B0,E54 - 60454
Other debt secuities liswed - 13,064 - 13.064
Others. L] B,504 a3 9144
48 100,602 5o 102,242
Dervative financial labilities 3,990 BD, 138 1.052 85183
4,028 1,078,058 1.644 1,083 740
284 ICBC @
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Finarcal Statements for 1he year ended 31 December 2019
[In AME millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

1 Decembaer 2018

Lewel 1 Level 2 Lawvel 3 Totsl
Finantial assets which are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis:
Derivative financial assets 5019 65,356 960 T1.335
Reverse repurchase
measurad at FVTPL - 174,794 - 174, Tad
Loans and advances 10 cusbomers
measured at FYTPL - 924 EERS 1.368
Loans and advantes 1o custormers - -
measured ar FYOC1 11,223 349 460 = 360,483
Fimancial investrmaents measured at FVTPL
Dbt securites 3 802 205,220 54,727 243,749
Equltf iAyestments 7475 40E 20,107 P ]
Funds and other imyestments 19,423 352,672 151,513 533,608
30,700 568,300 206,347 BOG, 347
Fimancial irvestments measured at FYOCI
Dbt gecuritaes 280,572 1,119,222 143 1,399,537
Equity Imvesiments 703 9,727 19,485 29.919
Ot invesimants = - 307 07
281,275 1,128,342 19,939 1430163
328,017 2,287,783 227,690 2,843,490
Financial liabilities which are measured st
falr value an a recurring basis:

Due to cusiomers - BS1 647 - BS1.647
Financial abilities designated as at FVTPL - -
Wiealih management praducts - 11,480 - 11,480

Fimarial kabiktes related 10

precious metals - a7, 266 - &7,266
Othar dabt cecurities ssued - 1,285 - 2,185
Others 130 4,867 1,372 6,369
130 85,898 1,372 B7 400

Dirivative financial liabilities 3,988 67413 2174 73573
4116 1,004,958 3.546 1,012,620

hunwsl Hepore 200009 ')EE
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Financial S:atemenis for the year ended 31 December 201%

[ AWIG millions, unless othenaise stated|

(b) Movement in leval 3 financial instruments measured at fair valus

The followang table shows a reconciliation of the openng and dosing balance of level 3 finanoal assets and finanoal

liabditios which are recoded 31 far value and the movamant during the year:
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Motes to the Financial Statements

Fnarcal Statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2019
[In AMS millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

Gairs o bowses on level 3 fimancial irstruments included in the staterment of nes predit or loss for the year compnse:

2019

Realized Unsrealised Total

Net gairs for the year 7ar 3,581 43683
2018

Roalised Unrealised Total

Met gairsflosses) for the year 2,015 (2.005) L]

(e} Transfers between levals
(i} Transfers between level 1 and level 2

Due to changes in market conditions Tor certan seourities, quoted prices in active markets were avalabie Tor these securities
Therefore, these securities were Transferred from level 2 10 level 1 of the fair value hierarchy a5 at the end of the meporting
pencd

Due 1o changes in market condaions for certain secuntes, quoted prices in active markets were no lenger available 1or
thesie secufities, However, thete was suflicent information available 16 measure the far values ol these securities based on
observable markel inputs. Therefome, these secunises were translemed from level 1 1o level 2 of the fasr value hierarchy as an
the end al the meponting perod.

During the year, the transiers between level 1 and level 2 of the fair value higrarchy for finandal assets and Rabilities of the
Group were immaterial.

{ii) Transfers between level 2 and level 3

Az At the end af the reponing penod, certain financial instruments were tramferred aut from level 3 to level 2 of the fair
value hisrardhy for financial assets and Rabiities when sgnificant inputs used in ther fair value measurements, which wa
presacady unobservable hecame abiemvable

During the year, certain derwatwes financial imstruments were tramiferred oul from level 2 1o level 2 of the fawr value
hierarchy when sgnificant irputs whed in then fair value measurerments such as market prce volatibty, which was previously
unobsenvable became chiervable

(d} Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable inputs

Financial instruments valued with significant unobservable mputs are prmarily certain structured derivatives, certain debt
securities and asset-backed secuntes. These financial instruments are valued wing cash flow discourt made. The modek
Incorporate varous non-observable assumptions such as discount rate and market rate volatilities

As at 3% Decernber 2019, the effecis of changes n sgaficant unobserable asumptions 1o resonably postible alternatve
assumplions wers rmmatesial,

hanwsl Haport 2000 287
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hotes to the Financial Statements
Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2015

[ AME milligns, unless ctherwise sated)
(e} Fair value of financial aszets and liabilities not carried at fair value

Mo sgnificant difference between the carmying amaunt and the fair value of the financial assets and financal iatsites not
maatired at fair valus, except for the following items:

31 December 2019

Carrying
amaurit Fair value Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Firanclal inpestments measured 21 amartsed (ost 5,208,167 5,293,114 52,891 4,573,955 120,168
5,208 167 5293114 02,991 4979955 130,168
Fimancial liabiflities
Subsardinated bands and Tier 2 Capital Notes 350,204 355,307 - ¥55.307 -
350,204 355,307 - 5,307 -
o 31 Dacembar 2018 .
Carrying
amaunt Fadr value Lawel 1 Level 2 Ll 3
Fimancial assets
Firantial investments measured a1 amarised cost 4,518,182 4,560,733 BI.225 4, 780407 FAER]
4,515,182 4,563,733 GT.2Z5 4,580,407 213,101
Fimancial liabiities
Subsardinated bonds and Tier 2 Capital Motes 282,455 285,834 - 5834 -
182,453 JEG B34 - 185834 -

Subject 1o the exstence al an active markel, such by an suthorsed secutitied exchange, the mirket valie s thi best
reflection of the far value of financial instrements. As thent i no avasable market valug 1or certain of the financisl assels
and finanesl Babilties bold and Bsued by the Group, the discounted caih low method o othel valusten methods discribed
bebow are adopted to determine the fair values of these financsl assets and financil babilitied:

iy The Tair values of financial mvestments measured ab amodised cost relating to the restruchuing of the Bank ane
estiinated on ihe bass of the sated interest rates amd the consideration of the melevant special dawses of the
imstruments evaluated in the absence of any other relevant observalble market data, and the Tair values appeozimate
to thes carrying amownts, The fair values of financial investments measured ot amortised cost imelevant to the
restructuring of the Bank are determined based on the avalable market values. IF quoted market prices are not
avasiable, then Fair values are estimated on the basis of pricing models or descounted cash flows

fiit  The fair values of subordinated bords and tier 2 capital notes are determined with reference 1o the available madost
values, | quoted market puices are not avaiable, then fair values are estimated on the basis of pricing models or
discounted cash fows

All of the above-mentioned assumptions and methods provde a conaistenl basis for the caleulation of the far values of the
Group's assets and kabiies. However, other institutions may use defferent asiurmptions and methods, Therelore, the fair
vithues disclased by dffferent financial matitutons may not be entirely comparable

288 icec @
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Finarcal Statements for 1he year ended 31 December 2019
[In AME millicns, unkess otherwise stated)

53. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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11 December 31 Decamber
2018 2018
ASSETS
Cash and balances with cantral banis 3,251,450 3313748
Due from banks and other financal institutons 1,169,496 1,031,402
Denvatee financial assets 35,991 38,185
Reverse repurchase agreemants 544,278 511383
Loans and advances to oustomers 15,465,895 14,211,777
Fimancial insestrmerts. 1.087.260 6,348,656
— Financial investmeants measured at FYTFL BO4,076 1o Ba%
— Financial investmenis measured at POCI 1,212,515 1,245,837
= Financial investments meatured at amortoed cost 5,070,66% 4362174
Irreestmients in suhsidiaries 145,330 122,910
Irvestments in associates 34,042 34,242
Property and equiprment 127,518 124,548
Dederrad income b avels B0 BS 55,720
Dther avtsis 365,170 a0, TeS
TOTAL ASSETS 18,411 462 16,072,160
UABILITIES
D 1 ceniral banks 1087 410
Finicial labilitied designated a1 a1 FYTPL B5,555 TBTIT
Derivative financlal labilites S0 726 42,120
Due 1o banks and ather financial institutions 2,162,101 1,644,147
Repurchass spreamants 74,384 300,958
Certificates of depout 297,696 281,380
Due 1o cusiomers 22.178,290 20,646,928
Incosme tax payable 92,907 B2.946
Debt securities diued 504, 828 499,791
Other liabilities 302,505 27,348
TOTAL LIABILITIES 43,840,032 23,824,295
EQUITY
Shase capeial 356,407 356,407
Dther equity instrments 199,456 79,375
Resarves 756,163 00,637
Retained profits 1,250,397 1111, 4486
TOTAL EQUITY 2,571,423 2,247,865
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 28,411 462 26,072,160
Chen Siging Gu Shu Thang Wenwu
Chairman WViee Chasrrman and Preadent General Manager af Finance
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hotes to the Financial Statements

Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2015
[ AME milligns, unless otherwise fated)

54. AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD EVENT
The Profit Distribution Plan

A final dividend of AMEBD 2628 (pre-tas) per share alter the appropeiaton of statutory sarplus reserve and general reserve,
was appreved at the boed of directors” meeting held on 27 March 2030, and s sulgect 1o the approval of the Bank's
shareholders al the forthomming annual general meeting. Based cn the number of ordinary shares ssued @ at 31 Deceimber
2019, the final dividend amounted 10 approsimately AMBSY, 664 million, The dvidend payable was nol recognised as a
liabslity as at 31 Decernber 2019,

The impacts of the Coronavirus Disease 2019

wnce the oulbreak of the Coronmarus Disease 2019 (7 COVID-157), the Group has actely implemented relevant natienal
decsions and arrangemsants, fully taken the role as a stabilzer in supporting the real economy, and completely ensured
vanous financial servces for the epsdemic prewentson and control. Meanwhile, the Group has been cosely followng and
continuously assessing the impacts of the cutbreak on its business, and actively taking countermeasures to ensure the
stability of the Growp's financial position ard financial performance.

Issuance Progress of Overseas Preference Shares

The First Extrasedinaesy Gensral Mesting of 2018 of the Bank reviewed and spproved refevant preposals on Bavance of
domestic and affshore prelerence shares. In March 2020, the Bank recefved an approval from CBIRC, consenting to the
Bank's affthare istuance of preference shared ol no more than AMB30.0 biloen in equivalent LSD, whick will be eownted as
thie additioral tier 1 capital of the Bank in accordance with relevant regullatory requiremaents.

Issuance of Undated Additional Tier 1 Capital Bonds and Eligible Tier 2 Capital Instruments

The Board of Directors of the Bank conudered and approved the Froposal on the hisuance of Undated Additional Tier 1
Capital Bonds and Eligible Toer 2 Capital butruments on 7 lanuary 2020, The Bank planned 1o issue undated additional
tier 1 capital bonds in the ol fshare market in foregn currency of RMBAD,0 bilon equivalent, which will be vsed ta replenish
adeditional tier 1 capital of the Bank; and to ssue eligible ter 2 capial instruments of RMBA0.0 bilion or equivalent foreign
curréncy n the domestse and affshore markets to replenish the Bank's tier 2 capital The undated sdditional tier 1 capital
bands and ebgible tier 2 capital instruments issuance plan s sull subject to the review and approval by the Shareholders’
General Meetng al the Bank, after which i1 s further subject 1o the approval by the relevant regulatory authonties.

55. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Cefan compadtative amounts hive been reclasified 1o confarm with the cdrment yesr's presentation

56. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were spproved and authasised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2020,

290 IcBc @
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
() 20.20 18.34 17.35 17.46 16.77
() 18.32 15.01 15.75 15.92 14.66
() 19.22 16.37 16.63 16.72 15.78
() 18.36 16.76 17.29 16.16 15.67
( )
UFJ
2019 12 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
() 15.78 16.05 15.92 15.70 15.44 15.18
() 15.35 15.50 15.48 14.73 15.10 14.91
() 15.58 15.80 15.71 15.29 15.25 15.07
( )
UFJ
15.24 (2020 10
( )
UFJ
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Independent Auditor's Report

KPMG

To the shareholders of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (the “Bank”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 133 to 298, which comprise the consolidated and the Bank’s statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank and of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the People’s Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Impairment of loans and advances to customers

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 3.(6) to the Financial Statements: Impairment of the Financial Assets”, “Note
4. to the Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates” and “Note 23. to the Financial

Statements: Loans and Advances to Customers”.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group has adopted International Financial Reporting
Standard 9 Financial instruments (“IFRS 9”) since 1
January 2018. IFRS 9 uses the expected credit loss
(“ECL") model to calculate the loss allowance.

Impairment of loans and advances to customers is a
subjective area due to the degree of judgment applied by
management in determining impairment allowances.
From the Group’s perspective, the determination of the
loss allowances for loans and advances to customers is
heavily dependent on the external macro environment
and the Group's internal credit risk management
strategy, and the judgments in determining the loss
given default or the assessment of recoverable cash
flows relating to individual loans and advances to
customers, where loans and advances to customers
were unsecured or were subject to potential collateral
shortfalls.

Our audit procedures to assess loss allowance for
expected credit losses included the following:

evaluating the effectiveness of internal control
operations related to provision for expected credit
losses:

— assessing the key design and operational
effectiveness of internal controls of the financial
reporting process, including credit approval,
recording, monitoring, re-evaluation of periodic
credit grading, and the accrual of loss
allowance; In particular, we assessed the
design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the key internal controls over the
classification of loans by credit quality across all
stages;

assessing the information system controls,
including general information technology control,
completeness of key internal historical data, data
transmission between systems, mapping of
parameters of expected credit loss model, and
system calculation of loss allowance for expected
credit loss.

assessing the reliability of expected credit loss
models and parameters used, including evaluating
probability of default, loss given default, exposure at
default, discount rate, forward-looking adjustment and
other adjustment factors, and evaluating the
reasonableness of key management judgments
involved.
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Impairment of loans and advances to customers (continued)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 3.(6) to the Financial Statements: Impairment of the Financial Assets”, “Note
4. to the Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates” and “Note 26. to the Financial

Statements: Loans and Advances to Customers”.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group classifies financial instruments into three
stages and recognises an impairment allowance based
on the expected credit loss for the next 12 months or the
entire lifetime of the financial asset, depending on
whether credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition and
whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired
respectively.

The loss allowance for loans and advances to
customers, other than those corporate loans and
advances which are credit-impaired, is measured using
the risk parameters method. The key parameters include
probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and
exposure at default (EAD), which are derived from
considerations including the historical overdue data,
historical loss ratio, internal credit grading and other
adjustment factors.

assessing key parameters involving judgments by
seeking evidence from external sources and
comparing it with internal records including historical
loss experience and type of collaterals. As part of
these procedures, we inquired management for the
reasons of modifications of estimates and model
parameters, considered the consistency of
management judgments, and assessed key internal
controls over the input of underlying data into the
models.

comparing the economic factors used in the models
with market information to assess whether they were
aligned with market and economic development.

performing back-testing, which included the
assessment of the model’s predictions using
quantitative methods to measure the outputs against
the actual realised observations, including how they
change over time.
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Impairment of loans and advances to customers (continued)

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 3.(6) to the Financial Statements: Impairment of the Financial Assets”, “Note
4. to the Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates” and “Note 26. to the Financial
Statements: Loans and Advances to Customers”.

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Loss allowances for the credit-impaired corporate loans selecting samples to assess the reasonableness of
and advances are measured using the discounted cash management judgments on whether the credit risk has
flow method. Management exercises judgment in increased significantly since initial recognition and
determining recoverable cash flow based on a range of whether credit impairment has occurred. We analysed
factors. These factors include available remedies for the loan portfolio by industry sector to select samples
recovery, the financial situation of the borrowers, in industries vulnerable to the current economic
collateral valuation, the seniority of the claim and the situation and regulation measures. We also focused
existence and cooperativeness of other creditors. Whilst on loans with perceived higher risk and selected
the Group appoints an external appraiser for the samples from non-performing loans, overdue but
valuation of certain property and other illiquid collateral, performing loans and borrowers with negative warning
enforceability, timing and means of realisation also affect signs or adverse press coverage.
the ultimate collectability and thereby the amount of
expected credit loss allowances at the end of the performing credit assessments for the selected credit
reporting period. impaired corporate loans and advances by assessing
the forecast of recoverable cash flows through
We identified the loss allowance for expected credit inquiry, applying judgment and our own research. We
losses as a key audit matter because of the inherent evaluated the timing and means of realisation of
uncertainty and management judgments involved, and collateral and considered other sources of repayment
because the loss allowance is significant to the financial asserted by management. We also evaluated the
results and capital of the Group. consistency of management'’s application of key
assumptions and compared them with our own data
sources.
evaluating the experience, independence,
competence and integrity of the external appraiser
engaged by the Group to value certain property and
illiquid collateral, including comparing the valuations
with externally derived data such as commaodity prices
and real estate valuations; and
evaluating whether the disclosures relating to loss
allowance for expected credit losses met the
disclosure requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
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Recognition of interests in and consolidation of structured entities

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 3. (1) to the Financial Statements: Subsidiaries”, “Note 4. to the Financial
Statements: Significant AccountingJudgments and Estimates” and “Note 41. to the Financial Statements:

Involvement with Unconsolidated Structured Entities”.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Structured entities are generally created to achieve a
narrow and well defined objective with restrictions
around their ongoingactivities which includeproviding
investment services and productsto customers and
managing the Group’s assets and

liabilities.

The Group may acquireor retain an ownership interest in,
or act as a sponsor to, a structured entity, throughissuing
a wealth management product, an investment fund, an
asset management plan, a trust plan, a structured lease
or an asset-backed security. The Group may also retain
partialinterests in derecognised assets due to guarantees
or securitisation structures.

In determining whether the Group should retain any
partialinterests in astructured entity or should consolidate
a structured entity, management is required to consider
the risks andrewards retained, the power the Group is
able to exercise over the activities of the entityand its
abilityto influence the Group’sown returns from the
entity. These factors are not purely quantitative and need
to be considered collectively in the overallsubstance of
the transactions.

We identified the recognition of interests in and
consolidation of structured entities as a key auditmatter
because of the complex nature of certainof these
structured entities and because of the judgment
exercised by management in the qualitative assessment
of the terms and the nature of each entity.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
interests in and consolidation of structured entities
included the following:

making enquiries of management and inspecting
documents relating to the judgment process over
whether a structured entity is consolidated or not to
assess whether the Group has a robust process in
this regard;

selecting significant structured entities of each key
product type and performing the following
procedures for each structured entity selected:

—inspecting the related contracts, internal
establishment documents and information
disclosed to the investors to understand the
purpose of the establishment of the structured
entity and the involvement the Group has with the
structured entity and to assess management’s
judgment over whether the Group has the ability to
exercise power over the structured entity;

— inspecting the risk and reward structure of
the structured entity, including any capital or
return guarantee, provision of liquidity support,
commission paid and distribution of the returns,
to assess management’s judgment as to the
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
Group’s involvement in such an entity;

—evaluating management’s analysis of the
structured entity, including qualitative analysis and
the calculation of the magnitude and variability
associated with the Group’s economic interests in
the structured entity, to assess management’s
judgment over the Group’s ability to influence its
own returns from the structured entity;

— assessing management’s judgment over
whether the structured entity should be
consolidated or not; and

evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements
in relation to the recognition of interests in and
consolidation of structured entities with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
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Fair value of financial instruments

Refer to the accounting policies on “Note 3. (5) to the Financial Statements: Financial Instruments”, “Note 4. to the
Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates” and “Note 52. to the Financial Statements:

Fair Value of Financial Instruments”.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Financial instruments carried at fair value account for a
significant part of the Group’s assets and liabilities. The
effect of fair value adjustments of financial instruments
may impact either the profit

or loss or other comprehensive income.

The valuation of the Group’s financial instruments, held
at fair value, is based on a combination of market data
and valuation models which often require a considerable
number of inputs. Many of these inputs are obtained
from readily available data, in particular for level 1 and
level 2 financial instruments in the fair value hierarchy,
the valuation techniques for which use quoted market
prices and observable inputs, respectively. Where one or
more significant inputs are unobservable in the valuation
techniques, as in the case of level 3 financial
instruments, then estimates need to be developed which
can involve significant management judgment.

The Group has developed its own models to value certain
level 2 and level 3 financial instruments, which also
involve significant management judgment.

We identified assessing the fair value of financial
instruments as a key audit matter because of the degree
of complexity involved in valuing certain financial
instruments and because of the degree of judgment
exercised by management in determining the inputs used
in the valuation models.

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of
financial instruments included the following:

assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the
valuation, independent price verification, front office
and back office reconciliations and model approval
for financial instruments.

assessing the level 1 fair values, on a sample basis,
by comparing the fair values applied by the Group
with publicly available market data.

involving our internal valuation specialists to assist
us in performing independent valuations, on a
sample basis, of level 2 and level 3 financial
instruments and comparing our valuations with the
Group’s valuations. Our procedures included
developing parallel models, obtaining inputs
independently and verifying the inputs.

engaging our internal valuation specialists to conduct
model validation, on a sample basis, for the
valuation of complex financial instruments.

sassessing the appropriate application of fair value

adjustment that form an integral part of fair values,

inquiring of management about any changes in the
fair value adjustment methodologies and assessing
the appropriateness of the inputs applied; and

assessing whether the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements, including fair
value hierarchy information and sensitivity to key
inputs, appropriately reflected the Group’s exposure
to financial instrument valuation risk with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
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IT systems and controls over financial reporting

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As one of the largest banking groups in the world, the
Group’s IT systems are necessarily large and complex.

Automated accounting procedures and IT environment
controls, which include IT governance, controls over
program development and changes, access to programs
and data and IT operations, are required to be designed
and to operate effectively to ensure accurate financial
reporting.

Of particular importance are system calculations and data
logic regarding significant accounts, including interest
calculations, as well as interfaces between business
management systems.

The volume of on-line transactions of the Group
increased rapidly over the past year. With the continuous
development of new technologies, the Group is facing
new challenges on cyber security and data protection.

We identified IT systems and controls over financial
reporting as a key audit matter because the Group’s
financial accounting and reporting systems are
fundamentally reliant on complex IT systems and control
processes which are driven by significant transaction
volumes caused by the size of the customer base both in
the corporate and the retail banking businesses in China
and globally.

We involved our internal IT specialists in our
assessment of the IT systems and controls over
financial reporting, which included carrying out the
following audit procedures:

« assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the
continued integrity of all major IT systems fundamental
to dealing with the financial data, particularly financial
reporting.

evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the significant accounts-related IT
automated controls which are relevant to the accuracy
of system calculation, and the consistency of data
transmission, covering business in corporate loans,
financial asset service, interbank business, bills, retail
business and others, as well as key accounting
procedures; and

evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the cybersecurity management
mechanism, the operational security of key
information infrastructure, data and client information
management, and monitoring and emergency
management.

470/474



EDINETOOOO

O000O0000O0Oooo(ees9s?)

oOoOooodn

Adjustments and disclosures in relation to transition to the International Financial Reporting Standard 9

Financial instruments

Refer to “Note 2. (3) to the Financial Statements: Change in accounting policies”.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group has applied International Financial Reporting
Standard 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) since 1
January 2018.

IFRS 9 revised the requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial instruments previously adopted,
and requires the loss allowance of expected credit losses
to be recognised for relevant financial assets and credit
commitments. In addition, it also provides greater
flexibility of transaction types in applying hedging
accounting. The Group is required to make retrospective
adjustments on the classification and measurement, the
loss allowance, and hedge accounting of financial
instruments in accordance with the requirements of the
IFRS 9.

We identified the adjustments and disclosures in relation
to the transition to IFRS 9 as a key audit matter, because
of the complexity of the transition process which involved
changes in internal controls of the financial reporting
process, accounting treatments, and application of new
system data; also, management judgment was applied.

Our audit procedures relating to the transition to IFRS
9 included the following:

assessing the key internal controls of the financial
reporting process related to the transition to IFRS
9, including internal control processes related to the
selection and approval of accounting policy and
expected credit loss model methodology, and
information system related controls.

assessing the accuracy of the classification of
financial instruments, including obtaining a list of
financial instruments classified by management as at
1 January 2018, selecting samples to check the
contractual cash flow terms, and understanding and
evaluating the business model of the relevant
financial instrument portfolio.

involving our internal valuation specialists in
evaluating the valuation method of financial assets
and the key parameters used for financial assets that
are measured at fair value due to changes in
classification and measurement, and selecting
samples to independently verify their fair value.

with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, assessing the design and methodology
of the expected credit loss model, and evaluating
the key parameters including probability of default,
loss given default, exposure at default, discount rate,
forward-looking adjustment and other adjustment
factors, and evaluating the reasonableness of key
management judgments involved.

obtaining a list of hedge accounting items as at 1
January 2018 and selecting samples and checking
relevant hedging documents to determine whether
they meet the requirements of the IFRS 9.

obtaining journal entries relating to adjustments
made on transition to the IFRS 9 and comparing it
with the list of classification, valuation, expected
credit loss of financial instruments as at 1 January
2018, to assess the completeness and accuracy of
adjustment journals, and compliance with the
prevailing accounting standards; and

assessing whether the relevant disclosures in
relation to transition to IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018
were in compliance with the prevailing accounting
standards.
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Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.
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« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's reportis Wong Yuen Shan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2019
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